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» Chairman’s Statement

EERWMES

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic triggered a global crisis that made
the year extraordinarily difficult for economies worldwide. The two
major markets of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were also affected. Despite facing
the severe tests brought by COVID-19, and also the complex and
changing environment at home and abroad, China was able to stay
collected and pushed forward with epidemic control, implemented
measures to propel economic and social development across the
country and rolled out strategic plans on steadfast strides. As such, the
Chinese economy started picking up steadily since the second quarter
of the year, with production and demand warming up. China’s gross
domestic product for the year saw a 2.3% growth. As for Vietnam,
although affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, she was able to
contain the spread of the pandemic effectively with active preventive
measures. In 2020, her gross domestic product grew by 2.9%, mainly
driven by the manufacturing, industrial and construction sectors; the
agricultural sector managed a 2.7% growth.

At the beginning of the year, the COVID-19 pandemic struck China
hard and added uncertainties to the agri-food industry. The industry
continued to face systematic pressures and challenges. Spread of the
African swine fever, which began in 2019, eased during the year, but
the disease is likely to stay for the long term. In 2020, governments
at all levels in China earnestly implemented policies supportive of
swine production, helping farmers to speed up resumption of capacity.
Also, expecting African swine fever to persist, relevant preventive
and control measures were taken to drive the resumption of swine
production. As a result, overall swine market saw a recovery in supply
and prices started coming down gradually. On the broiler side, supply
going up and COVID-19 dampening consumption sentiment created
an oversupply in the broiler market, hence causing prices to linger
low.

Dedicated to encouraging enterprises to pursue sustainable and
high-quality development, China has been tightening relevant
environmental regulations, aiming to better protect the eco-
environment. As such, the livestock industry is stepping into a new,
ecology-driven era of development. Feed manufacturers, bounded by
regulations, have stopped using antibiotics as feed additives, and are
pushing for further transformation and upgrade. Scaled production
is now becoming mainstream. These factors combined have posed
systematic pressures and challenges to the traditional agri-food sector,
yet they will also provide the industry with opportunities and the
motivation to upgrade. The different challenges also presented the
industry with the all-important prompt to embark on digitalisation.
Employing new digital technology, animal farming, logistics and
other related operations can be integrated, forming a digitalised
swine production ecosystem — a step integral to the healthy, fast and
continuous development of the industry.
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China’s agri-food industry is massive, translating into multiple growth
impetuses for the Group. The Group will continue its commitment to
quality, safety, green practices and sustainable development. It will
adopt international standards and use advanced technologies to ensure
the high quality of its products and services and help bolster the CP
brand. We aspire to become a world leader and an example to emulate
in the modern agri-food sector.

In Vietnam, despite facing challenges from the COVID-19
pandemic, African swine fever and natural disasters, the economy
still recorded modest growth in 2020. In recent years, Vietnam had
signed a number of significant free trade agreements, including
The Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership with 14 other
countries in 2020. To capture opportunities presented by those free
trade agreements and push forward Vietnam’s livestock industry
reform, during the year, the prime minister of Vietnam approved
the national animal husbandry development strategy for 2021-2030.
The strategy centres around industrialisation and modernisation,
sustainable development and meeting demand for high quality and
safe food products in the country and from overseas. It also stresses
using advanced technologies to boost competitiveness of the agri-food
industry.

In late 2020, as a leader in the agri-food industry in Vietnam,
the Group established Southeast Asia’s largest integrated poultry
production complex in Binh Phuoc province in Vietnam, producing
poultry products for the domestic and export markets. Adopting the
most advanced technology and supporting sustainable production,
the establishment of this complex serves as the Group’s important
step towards capturing overseas demand for high quality and safe food
products. We will continue to invest in latest technologies as well as
contribute to a better environment. We believe the Group is at the
forefront of benefitting from the increasing demand for safe and high
quality agriculture products at home and abroad.

Looking ahead, continuing with the “Kitchen of the World” as its
vision, the Group will push to integrate its core competencies and
diligently pursue its integrated value-chain business model. We will
embrace end-to-end quality control, as well as eco-friendly and green
operations, offering safer and healthier food products that can meet
the diverse needs of consumers.

Finally, I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all members of
the team for their efforts and contribution to the Group in the past
year. My gratitude also goes to our shareholders and stakeholders for
their unwavering trust and support over the years.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 February 2021
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Aspiring to become the “Kitchen of the World”, we are dedicated to
creating safe and high-quality products across the agri-food value chain,
from feed milling, animal farming to food manufacturing. We embrace
sustainability and advanced technologies as we continue to develop our
business in China and Vietnam.
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Investing in China for over 40 years, the
“Chai Tai” name is well known and
trusted in the country.
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With over 25 years of experience in Vietnam,
our contribution to the country’s agricultural and
social development has been recognized.
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2020 2019
(Restated)
(Unit: US$ million) (Hfr 2 i #FEoE) (R 5)
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEEMWKHEREA
Revenue WA 4,333 3,495
Gross Profit B 1,282 699
Share of Profit of a 35%-owned Associate — CTI —FKA35%Z B A ) — IEKRBE — AL B A 66 -
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company AR ) B AR 6k A 2,155 346
Continuing Operations' R RS R 519 217
Discontinued Operations ORI R T 170 129
Gain on Deemed Disposal of CTI B EIERRE 2 W 1,466 -
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents)? A B B AR T i R (SEAIL) 2 8.507 1.365
Continuing Operations R R 2.049 0.856
Discontinued Operations ORI R T 0.670 0.509
Gain on Deemed Disposal of CTI AR 8 IR R 2 ek 5.788 -
Total Dividend Per Share (HK cents) RS GEAL) 10.6 3.2
Interim Dividend Per Share A I v B B 3.0 0.8
Final Dividend Per Share B e AT e 7.6 2.4
(Unit: US$ million) (Hifr : HHSET) 2020 2019
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMHERREKER
Property, Plant & Equipment LUE BN e ] 1,589 1,988
Investment in Associates =g/l Uk < 2,331 146
Total Assets A 6,597 5,346
Total Bank Borrowings & Corporate Bond HRGRAT A R B A S 1,136 1,735
Issued Capital OB AT AR 253 253
Shareholders’ Equity T SR E A HE 7 3,548 1,548
Total Equity HE £5 48 A 4,033 1,967
Revenue US$ million Gross Profit US$ million
WA BEET B BEEET
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to Shareholders BHEXETT Per Share AL
of the Company® 800 - BB 12 -
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Remarks ffff 5k
1. In 2020 profit attributable to shareholders of the Company from continuing operations before effect of net changes in fair value of biological assets was
US$511 million (2019: US$154 million). . N »
TR H RN SO AN A ) R T I T AR A W B R R A AR L WA RS I MR BT (SRR ¢ LS4 o
2. Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and convertible

g);eference shares in issue during the year.
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3. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company excludes gain on deemed disposal of CTIL.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

The Group operates in China and Vietnam. We are a leading agri-
food industry player in both countries and our businesses range from
feed milling, animal farming to food production.

During the year, the Group completed an important transaction in
China, marking our strategic move to create a leading integrated
swine business in China. The Group merged its China feed and
swine food businesses under Chia Tai Investment Co. Ltd. (“CTI”),
originally a subsidiary of the Group, with Charoen Pokphand Group’s
(“CPG”) swine business in China. In this transaction, the Group
contributed 87 China feed and 2 swine food companies (mainly
engaged in sale of pork) valued at approximately US$2.3 billion;
CPG contributed 43 China swine companies, valued at approximately
US$4.3 billion. The merger was structured as an all-share transaction
settled by CTI issuing new shares, representing 65% of CTI’s enlarged
share capital, to CPG. Consequently, the Group’s shareholding
in CTI reduced from 100% to 35%. The resulting business of CTI
becomes a top 10 player in both animal feed and swine farming
in China. This strategic move further strengthened the Group’s
integrated agri-food business model in China and enables us to better
capture growth opportunities arising from the commercialization of
feed milling and swine farming in China.

The transaction was completed on 1 December 2020. As a result,
the Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020
comprise, for the China part, of eleven months of its “old” China
business and one month of its “new” China business. In other words,
in the first eleven months of the year, the Group’s main businesses
in China included feed, poultry farming, swine food and value-added
processed food businesses. From 1 December 2020, the Group’s main
businesses in China included (i) poultry farming and value-added
processed food businesses operated by its subsidiaries, and (ii) feed and
integrated swine businesses operated by CTI (and its subsidiaries), an
associate of the Group.

In terms of financial reporting under consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, continuing operations principally cover (i)
our China poultry farming and value-added processed food businesses,
(ii) share of profit of a 35%-owned associate — CTI — in China and
(iii) our Vietnam operations. Discontinued operations principally
include our China feed and swine food businesses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

EEEBEN®R DN

KEXE

2SR 7% v 1 B R > A A A I 5K 2
R S AT W EEE 2 — o BAM i 3 5 Tk 25 B Rt
HEE - BT R R T

N REMPPREREE T —HEERLS - B
FAM 7 o 10 2 S 4 S0 B AR A S Z B SR A o AR
HEEEBERBRERRAF (MERBE ) (5 & %
A 4R ] 2 O R ) R R A R R A SR
HlCharoen Pokphand Group ([ CPGJ) #5553 %
B o TERLIRZE 5 > ACSE 7 o B 8T KL A
AIARKRER AR (REEFHANE) » R
A F2368 %00 » TCPGHR B M43RKFEAH » &
AR A 254368 00 o BLIH A DFAR 55 W A5 M 4 2 I
ER G IERBE M CPGEAT BB A A » 4l 1E
KBEEATHE O RBAMO5% « Bk » AR5 E A
TE KB 0 3 B LB I 4E100% M %35% © & B 1Y IE
RBEEEHE G T b BB R 5% 48 07 S Y i
T o I B R A — 2D R T AR I A Y R
WO i E T A SR GRS > 8 M B AR A o R £
BEF0 5 T P AT SR AL BT 3 AR B B R -

SR Z R R ZFE A HEK o W A
FMRE-FORET A= HIRE B
A B B T A BT b BB A
—fE AR ] R B SE R o B AUl AR A AR
A B b S AR R - KA - B
BB MEM T EMBEE AR FFE+H—H
AL > ACER ] A v B S 6 4 (i) phy R M ] A
B S B R A TR B 2R R (i) B LI A
R IE KB (B I g A =1 ) A8 78 W DR 15 7% 58
o

S S O T o R A AT R R b R AR R
B ST FAQEJREVENTESCE SRR VN - FHE S
B () FKAM35%Z2 BB AR - IERBE -
A U ) DA B (i) B AP 0 g S A > T L Ak A S
B JU) 2 A5 AT A v R R A S



14

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R

Management Discussion and Analysis
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GROUP RESULTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue, which
excludes discontinued operations, increased 24.0% to US$4,333
million (2019: US$3,495 million). Agri-food business in China
contributed 19.8% of the Group’s revenue while agri-food business
in Vietnam contributed 80.2% of the Group’s revenue. Overall gross
profit margin for the year was 29.6% (2019: 20.0%). The Group’s
profit attributable to shareholders was US$2,155 million. Excluding
the one-off gain on the deemed disposal of CTI of US$1,466 million,
the Group’s profit grew from US$346 million in 2019 to US$689
million in 2020. Extending the trend in the first nine months of 2020,
the full year profit growth was mainly due to a significant increase in
swine prices in Vietnam in 2020 when compared to 2019, resulting in
higher profit margin from the Vietnam farming business.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 8.507 cents (2019:
US 1.365 cents). Excluding the one-off gain on the deemed disposal
of CTI, basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 2.719 cents
(2019: US 1.365 cents). The Board has proposed a final dividend per
share (“DPS”) of HK$0.076. Including interim DPS of HK$0.03, total
DPS in 2020 was HK$0.106 (2019: HK$0.032). The Group also paid
a special DPS of HK$0.008 in 2020 to mark the Group’s 40 years in
China.

Total Revenue
FAON

4,333

US$ million
BEXET

A H

SEXE (&)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Agri-food Business in China

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 brought China’s
economy to a halt and caused some operational delays and disruptions
to the Group’s businesses. As a leading agri-food player in China, we
strive to maintain our production so as to enable a stable supply in the
food production value chain. Nonetheless, while the performance of
our feed business remained solid, those of our farm and food businesses
situated in hard hit areas during the initial COVID-19 outbreak were
impacted as a result of logistical issues.

The African swine fever situation in China started to come under
control in 2020 but overall swine prices remained high. This
situation motivated scaled farmers who have financial resources to
increase swine production, driving demand for swine feed in the
Group’s targeted feed segment — the commercial segment. On the
poultry side, the outbreak of African swine fever in 2019 led to some
farmers switching to poultry farming but consumer demand was hit
by COVID-19 in 2020. This situation resulted in an oversupply of
poultry and subsequent decline in broiler prices, benefitting our
poultry feed sales but hampering our poultry farming business.

Continuing Operations

Continuing operations in China cover our poultry farming and value-
added processed food businesses. In 2020, revenue from continuing
operations in China increased to US$856 million from US$714
million in 2019 as we continued to ramp up the production of our
food factories. Overall gross profit margin of the Group’s continuing
operations decreased from 19.2% in 2019 to 4.6% in 2020, mainly
affected by the operational disruptions caused by the initial outbreak
of COVID-19 and the reduction in broiler prices as compared to 2019.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations include our China feed and swine food
businesses for the period covering 1 January 2020 to 30 November
2020. Revenue of the Group’s discontinued operations in China,
which was de-consolidated for the entire 2020, amounted to
US$4,182 million (full year 2019: US$3,466 million). Profit for the
period from discontinued operations attributable to shareholders was

US$170 million (full year 2019: US$129 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Agri-food Business in China (continued)
Discontinued Operations (continued)

The Group’s China feed revenue for the first eleven months of
2020, which was de-consolidated for the entire 2020, amounted to
US$3,752 million (full year 2019: US$3,159 million). Swine, poultry,
aqua, other feed products and premix accounted for 50.4%, 31.8%,
7.0%, 6.7% and 4.1% of China feed revenue, respectively. China feed
sales volume was 7.83 million tons (full year 2019: 6.93 million tons).
Swine feed sales increased as China replenished swine inventory.
Also, the switch to poultry farming due to the earlier African swine
fever outbreak benefitted our poultry feed sales. Revenue from our
swine food business for the first eleven months of 2020, which was
de-consolidated for the entire 2020, amounted to US$430 million,
compared to US$307 million in the full year of 2019, mainly due to
the surge in swine prices compared to 2019.

Share of Profit of a 35%-owned Associate — CTI

CTI, as from the completion of the merger on 1 December 2020, is
principally engaged in China feed and integrated swine businesses.
The Group’s share of profits of this 35%-owned associate as from the
completion date was US$66 million in 2020 (2019: Nil). This amount
represented our 35% share of CTI’s profit for the month of December
2020.

Agri-food Business in Vietham

In 2020, Vietnam’s economy remained relatively resilient under
pressures from the COVID-19 pandemic, natural disasters and animal
diseases. While Vietnam was inevitably affected by COVID-19, the
impact on the country’s local economy was less severe compared to
other countries.

African swine fever had been a threat to the agri-food industry in
Vietnam since early 2019 and continued into 2020, with the second
wave hitting the industry in the fourth quarter of 2020. The outbreak
of African swine fever caused a decline in swine population. Supply
shortage in the market resulted in a surge in swine prices. Generally
speaking, swine prices in 2020 hovered at historical high levels. High
swine prices were beneficial to our swine farming business although
lower swine population in Vietnam had some effect on the demand for
swine feed. Overall, our Vietnam agri-food business remained strong.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Agri-food Business in Vietham (continued)

The Group’s agri-food business in Vietnam generated revenue of
US$3,477 million, representing an increase of 25.0% year-on-
year. Feed business accounted for 25.8% of the Group’s Vietnam
revenue, while farm and food businesses combined accounted for
74.2%. Overall gross profit margin of the Group’s agri-food business
in Vietnam leaped to 35.7% in 2020 (2019: 20.2%), mainly due to

increased margin from our swine farming business.

In 2020, total feed sales volume in Vietnam decreased 4.0% year-on-
year to 1.63 million tons but feed revenue increased 1.3% year-on-
year to US$899 million. Swine, poultry, aqua and other feed products
accounted for 29.4%, 23.4%, 45.6% and 1.6% of this segment’s
revenue, respectively. Our swine feed sales reduced along with lower
swine population. Furthermore, the COVID-19 pandemic dampened
demand for poultry, impacting our poultry feed sales. On the other
hand, the Group has expanded an effective shrimp feed marketing
programme that successfully raised the sales of our higher priced
shrimp feed, more than offsetting the decline in overall feed sales.

Combined revenue of the Group’s farm and food businesses in
Vietnam was US$2,578 million, a 36.1% increase year-on-year.
Swine farming continued to be the major revenue contributor of this
segment. Favourable swine prices for the year lifted the performance
of this segment. Average selling price of our fattening pigs in 2020
was approximately VND76,600 per kg while the average selling price
was VND46,200 per kg in 2019 — an increase of 65.8% year-on-year.

OUTLOOK

Going into 2021, despite positive developments on the vaccine front,
uncertainties stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic is expected to
continue. Outbreak of animal diseases would also bring uncertainties
and challenges to the Group — African swine fever remains a threat
and the avian flu new variant is also posing new challenges to the
agri-food industry. Overall, despite the solid results of 2020, we
remain cautious for 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets of US$6,597.2
million, representing an increase of 23.4% as compared to US$5,345.8
million as at 31 December 2019.

Net debt (31 December 2020: US$586.5 million, 31 December 2019:
US$1,292.5 million) to equity ratio (defined as total bank borrowings
and corporate bond minus cash and deposits divided by total equity)
was 0.15 as compared to 0.66 as at 31 December 2019.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

Bank borrowings and corporate bond of the Group are denominated
in U.S. dollars (31 December 2020: US$746.8 million, 31 December
2019: US$672.1 million), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) (31 December
2020: US$163.9 million, 31 December 2019: US$343.5 million)
and Renminbi (“RMB”) (31 December 2020: US$225.2 million, 31
December 2019: US$719.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current portion of long-
term borrowings amounted to US$44.3 million (31 December 2019:
US$330.0 million), and fixed interest rate borrowings amounted to
US$136.1 million (31 December 2019: US$361.0 million).

the year, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts

During

to manage its interest rate exposure for the floating interest rate
borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate notional principal
amount of these outstanding derivative financial instruments was

US$145.1 million.

All domestic sales in the PRC and Vietnam are transacted in RMB
and VND respectively and export sales are transacted in foreign
currencies. Foreign currencies are required for purchase of certain
raw materials, equipment etc. The Group monitors foreign exchange
movements and determines appropriate hedging activities when
necessary. During the year, the Group has entered into forward
exchange contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures of US$
denominated liabilities against RMB and VND. As at 31 December
2020, the aggregate notional principal amount of these outstanding
derivative financial instruments for US$ against RMB and VND was
US$143.1 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents of US$537.5
million as at 31 December 2020, an increase of US$112.8 million as
compared to 31 December 2019.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, out of the total borrowings of US$1,135.9
million (31 December 2019: US$1,734.8 million) obtained by the
Group, US$115.2 million (31 December 2019: US$186.7 million)
was secured and accounted for 10.1% (31 December 2019: 10.8%)
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land use rights with an aggregate net book value of
US$128.8 million) (31 December 2019: US$207.7 million) were
pledged as security.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group to
financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness of
independent third party customers of the Group. In the case of
financial guarantees provided which exceed the net asset value of the
relevant subsidiaries, our maximum contingent liabilities are limited
to the net asset value of these subsidiaries. The net asset value of
the relevant subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
US$22.2 million (31 December 2019: US$21.2 million). The
contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of such guarantees as
at 31 December 2020 were US$10.2 million (31 December 2019:
US$10.5 million).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s biological assets amounted to
US$718.4 million (2019: US$638.3 million). The increase in the
value of biological assets during the year ended 31 December 2020 of
US$80.1 million (2019: US$82.2 million) was mainly attributable to
purchases and raising of biological assets of US$1,151.2 million (2019:
US$1,749.1 million) minus sales of biological assets of US$979.9
million (2019: US$1,664.2 million). Details of the Group’s biological
assets are set out in note 20 to the financial statements of the annual
report. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a positive net change in fair value of biological assets of US$2.8
million (2019: US$105.6 million). We have complied with relevant
laws and regulations and have obtained the requisite licenses and
permits for carrying out our farming business from relevant regulatory
authorities, including the Investment Certificate issued by the
Management Board of Dong Nai Industrial Zone in Vietnam.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held, nor material acquisitions or disposals
during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed around 37,000 staff
in the PRC, Vietnam and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market conditions while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example,
medical insurance and training.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

B A R 2

a]
Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN
FEEE

AREMATHEARAEPR B LB TEFZHE
TR 1) B M R0 R o B TR AR O I S A AR
BB B AR Z FEE > AEMR S ZHA A
2 B PR % 25 P IS A R 2 S o A B PR A WD
CRCREFETAZTHZIFEELNRH022MEE
T(ZFE—JEFTZA=+—H : 0.21EK0) - &
KEAR_ZE_BETAZT—HAERZESBERZ
KA ABMBOIMESE LT (CE-NEFT A=+ —
H:0.11{&3%50)

EMEE

RE-FZREFZH=Z4—H s KREFHZEMEE
BRI EIL (ZF— L : 6.38f8F ) » P#
BLRCEFTAZ T HIEEENEYDEE L
FH0.80f FE L (ZF —Ju4E : 0.82f83L) » Ml
PR R EHAYEEATILSIMEEL (ZFE
4 1 17.491% 360 I AN B A 4 G A A R19.80fE €T
TR JUE  16.64EFEI) o REMAWEEMNGE
% SR 4E N B B R M 20 - AR E SR B4
TZHAHZ+—HILEE RN > A F $ A4 E0.0348 3
JC(ZF A 1.06fEFE0) EMEEANRMED)
A o AN AT AHBRE KL > 3P TR B S A A
BP0 A A SR T 7 L SRR R s ARG R
MR TREREER BN ERE-

FANEARE BEARBREE

Wi A A7 0 T 99 5 A o A SR P AR ACAE B AT R AR
HATRABEE - 58 A HEAT AL TR O 2 5 -

BERMEHER

RERZRETZAZTH > AREE R P
i B A W JC IS T #937,0004 8 B o A 4R AR 9% 1R B
A B ~ AL R BUAT AT % UL o T R - 3
WA 52 T AEAL o Jo At 0 B 1A L5 B0 - SR DR B
BBl o



20

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R

A

Corporate Governance Report
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C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high
corporate governance standards, the principles of which are to uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, accountability and integrity
in all aspects of business and to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) — Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) and the disclosure requirements of
Corporate Governance Report throughout the year 2020.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises fifteen directors, including
eight executive directors, two non-executive directors and five
independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the relationships among the Directors are
set out in the Biographical Details of Directors section of the
annual report.

(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Group.
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg are
the Chief Executive Officers of China area and Vietnam
area respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officers are distinct and separate with a clear
division of responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board while the Chief
Executive Officers are responsible for managing the Group’s
business.
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THE BOARD (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, directly and through its committees, leads
and provides direction for the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation by
the management, reviews the operational and financial
performance, provides oversight to ensure that a sound system
of risk management and internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) provide advisory, check and balances
for effective and constructive contribution to the Board to
safeguard interests of the shareholders and the Company as a
whole.

The management is responsible for execution of business
strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules —
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct for dealings
in the Company’s securities by its Directors. All Directors
responded to a specific inquiry by the Company and confirmed
that they complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during 2020.
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THE BOARD (continued)

)

(9)

Directors’ Training

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as
directors of the Company and of the business activities and
development of the Company. During 2020, all Directors,
being eight executive Directors, namely, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont, Mr. Narong Chearavanont, Mr. Bai Shanlin,
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan
and Mr. Yu Jianping; two non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont and Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe; and five
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Vinai
Vittavasgarnvej, Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo, Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith and General Udomdej
Sitabutr, participated in continuous professional development
by respectively attending one or more of the following:
trainings organized by the Company and other professional
organisations and director training webcasts and e-training
provided by the Stock Exchange.

General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company held
one annual general meeting, one special general meeting,
eleven Board meetings, five Audit Committee meetings,
three Remuneration Committee meetings, two Nomination
Committee meetings and two Corporate Governance
Committee meetings.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to perform their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, Directors can
attend board meetings in person or by means of telephone
conference or similar communications equipment.
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TEEBRRE
THE BOARD (continued) Exe(#)
General Meetings, Board Meetings and Board () REAS -EESRETSBTNZEESS
Committee Meetings (continued) & (])
The attendance of each Director of the meetings in 2020 is set TERINBEMEFN Z_ZEHTEaTEN
out in the following table: H s 2 e
No. of meetings attended/held
K/ AR B TRY
Annual Special Corporate
General General Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~Governance
Meeting Meeting Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Tk i i3 HH 4 bEER
REkE  BikE e ZHE %HE ZHE %HE
Executive Divectors A&%
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chaimnan) % A Jek (ZE £ I 0 10/11 - - - -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak RakEs 1 01 1 - 3B 0 -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont WLk 0 0 st - 13 12 -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont ELSs I 0 10/11 - - - -
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE o il 911 - - - -
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg i 11 Wil 1 - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan& 1: I 0 111 - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TRTEE Vil 11 11 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FhiE%
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Wik 00 00 9/11 55 - - 0
Mr. Yoichi [kezoe i~k I 1 10/11 - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors Ve Vi
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai VittavasgarnvejJ6 4 11 01 111 55 33 - -
Mss. Vatchari Vimooktayon Varchari VimooktayonZ+: I 0 1/11 - 33 2 -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo iR li I 1 565 - - 0
Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith (1) Pongsak Angkasich# & (1) - Wil 414 bl - - 1
General Udomdej Sitabutr (1) Udomdej Sitabutef % (1) - 0 44 - 0 - -
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (2) ERELE () 0 - 07 3 Wit 12 11
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes (3) Sombat Deo-isres i (3) I - M - 11 N 11
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul (3) Sakda Thanitcul e (3) Wil - 07 3 - 12 11
Notes: Mk :

(1) Each of Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith and General Udomdej

Sitabutr was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of

the Company with effect from 6 June 2020.

(2) Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung retired from the Board with effect from

the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on

5 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM”).

(3) Each of Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul resigned from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the 2020 AGM.
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THE BOARD (continued)
(h) Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in
annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section of the annual report.

The Board considers that, in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to four committees which
operate under their respective defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website. The attendance of each committee member to the committee

meetings in 2020, by name, is set out above.
(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(Chairman), Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej and Professor Dr.
Pongsak Angkasith (appointed in June 2020) and a non-
executive Director, Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Ma Andrew
Chiu Cheung was previously Chairman from 2005 to May
2019 and a member from May 2019 until his retirement from
the Board in June 2020. Mr. Sakda Thanitcul was previously a
member from 2008 until his resignation from the Board in June

2020.
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U]

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including support from the Internal Audit
Department, external auditor and management, to perform
its duties in reviewing the Group’s financial results, material
financial, operational and compliance controls.

During 2020, the Audit Committee held five meetings. The

following is a summary of work of the Audit Committee in
2020:

o reviewed the related financial information set out in
the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2019, and gave
recommendations to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2019;

o reviewed the related financial information set

out in the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2020,
and gave recommendations to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report from the external auditor to the
Audit Committee for the six months ended 30 June
2020;

o Reviewed the positive profit alert announcements and

the announcement pursuant to Rule 13.09(2) of the
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Future
Ordinance, and gave recommendations to the Board for
approving the publication of such announcements before
the publication of the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and the quarterly results for
the three months ended 31 March 2020 respectively;

o reviewed the internal audit reports of the Group;

° reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken
by the external auditor; and

° reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

U]

Audit Committee (continued)

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the related financial information set out in the annual report
and the annual results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2020 and gave recommendations to the Board for
approval.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and the
approval of the remuneration and the terms of engagement
of the external auditor. To ensure the external auditor’s
independence, the Audit Committee reviewed the audit and
non-audit services undertaken by the external auditor during

the year.

During 2020, the remuneration paid by the Group to the
external auditor is set out below:

A

=

AR BREZRGFRHMRE T
FAE+ A= AR AR R R 24 3
ROy 9 BT R B B R Sl
I o

FHZ BT A BN A Z AT - A
A1 RE S0 B 7 4t A I A% R Y T 4 SIS A
K o By HE DRSNS AZ WO A M S - W R
AR AR P E P A S T AT I A%
YE T 28

e T RAR > ARG S Ak AP A B Y
EWE

2020

B

(US$’000)

Category of Services JIR 5 % 50 (FxLTc)

Audit Services % IR 2,436
Review engagements and FHHEM R

agreed-upon procedures AT E 2P 577

3,013

Other services oAt AR 7% 1,060

Total ok 4,073
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Vinai
Vittavasgarnvej (Chairman), Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon
and General Udomdej Sitabutr (appointed in June 2020) and
two executive Directors, namely Mr. Adirek Sripratak and
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont. Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
was previously Chairman from April 2012 to May 2019 and a
member from May 2019 until his retirement from the Board
in June 2020. Mr. Sombat Deo-isres was previously a member
from September 2005 until his resignation from the Board in
June 2020.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration policy and structure for all directors
and senior management, and consider and recommend to
the Board the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the
success of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the
Company to its shareholders. The objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive
packages based on business requirements and industry
practices.

During 2020, the Remuneration Committee held three
meetings to determine remuneration packages for the Directors
and senior management and other remuneration matters.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors (including the
executive Directors who are regarded as the Company’s senior
management) for 2020 are set out in note 10 to financial
statements.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mrs. Vatchari
Vimooktayon (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and General
Udomdej Sitabutr (both appointed in June 2020) and two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Adirek Sripratak and Mr.
Suphachai Chearavanont. Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung was
previously a member from April 2012 until his retirement from
the Board in June 2020. Each of Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr.
Sakda Thanitcul and was previously a member from April 2012
until his resignation from the Board in June 2020.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual(s)
nominated for directorship and assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for successive terms of one year each
and, together with all other Directors, are subject to retirement
by rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. According to the Company’s bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, no less than one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

During 2020, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to (i) review and assess the independence of all independent
non-executive Directors and review the profiles and
contributions of the retiring Directors, and (ii) review the
Board composition and consider the nomination of new
Directors.
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Subsequent to the year end, the Nomination Committee, RN E s IRAZ B EM GBIk
having reviewed and assessed the independence of all AT IE 5 2 0 o S 2 T JBE st T i IR
independent non-executive Directors and reviewed the profiles EEFZEE L ER > 85 o e A
and contributions of the retiring Directors who have offered AT REHRFEERET LR TSR EE -
themselves for re-election, recommended the Board to propose
the re-election of such retiring Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
Details of retirement and re-election of Directors are set out BIEREREREZFEHRRFEHRESIHE
in the section headed “Directors” on page 51 of the annual HH|—Hio
report.
The Company adopted a board diversity policy which sets out AKATRMEREEZ ALK > BlEf Bz
the approach to achieve diversity in the Board. The Company HEETLZ LN T« RAFR BRI
is committed to maintain high corporate governance standards BEAEEIRART » i R EE L L E R
and recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse € 1)U i DL ok AT B0 IR o
board to strengthen its effectiveness and governance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity e N B IR — R P Lo b 8 A R > G
considerations, which include but are not limited to gender, AR R - £ - XILEABEER - H
age, cultural and educational background, professional R B Mk RN REEE
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The EIEEARANF SRR T o
Nomination Committee will also take into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs.
Board Diversity Profile
E R TR (4N
15 —
Independent Agriculture
Non-executive >70 B
12 — Director
W IERAT S Accounting and
Finance
Non-executive R G SE
9 — Director
Number of Directors BT
EEIN 3

6 —

3 —

0 —

Gender Designation Age Expertise and Experience
il Tt AR SO0 £
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)
(iii) Nomination Committee (Continued)

The nomination policy adopted by the Company is set out
below:

1 Purpose

1.1 The Nomination Committee of the Company has the
primary responsibility of identifying and nominating
suitably qualified candidates to become Directors (to
fill casual vacancies and as new Board members).

1.2 This Policy sets out the approach with respect to
the selection and nomination of candidates for
directorship of the Company so as to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business for the Board to consider and,
if appropriate, appoint as additional Directors or as
Directors to fill casual vacancies, as the case may be,
or make recommendations to the shareholders of the
Company for election as Directors at general meetings.

2 Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements
2.1 The Nomination Committee may select suitably

qualified candidates to nominate to the Board from
such resources as the Nomination Committee considers
appropriate, including through referrals by members of
the Board, by the management of the Company and by
external professional agencies and other resources.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

2

2.2

2.3

Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall consider the factors
listed below, together with any other factors as the
Nomination Committee may consider appropriate, in
assessing the suitability of any candidate:

- character, reputation and integrity;
- qualifications, accomplishments and experience;

- capacity to devote sufficient time to discharge
duties amidst other significant commitments;

- effect on the diversity of the Board, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional and
industry experience, skills and expertise;

- (where the proposed candidate is being
considered as a candidate for an Independent
Non-executive Director position) ability to
fulfil the independence requirements under the
Listing Rules; and

- potential contributions to the Board and any
other relevant factors.

The list of factors stated above is for reference only
and not intended to be exhaustive or definitive. The
Nomination Committee shall assess all relevant factors
with a view to achieve the Company’s corporate
strategy and organisational needs and has the discretion
to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

The candidates shall timely provide such information
and documents relating to their nomination as the
Nomination Committee or the Board may request,
including but not limited to any such information as is
required for disclosure under the Listing Rules and their
written consent to be elected as Directors and to the

public disclosure of their information.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

»

7

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRSE

ExgRE(E

(iii)

REZEE (H)

2

2.2

2.3

TEER - BENXHER (&)

P& 4 Zx B 7 A Al 4 40 38 N
PEIRE » 7% 8 T SRR ClLR § #4 Z&
B R & WA bR &)

- A - BRI 5
- AR~ OB A AL 5

- A7 B8 ) 75 oAt B R G A
J2 40 W ] JEAT O

- HEHRFL OB E > AiFE
AN BRI > ARl > SR AT 3
BHES > HREMATHELR >
RE A1 S5 38 Sl 5

- (ot A 738 A 7% 58 i 2 8 L
PUATE AL AN R8) (i B
) ¥ 8 Sk L SE 5 A

- o o o A B B R AT T 3L
At FH B PR 3K -

BRI L E 2 > I rE ek
HEth - ROEZHTEUEBAF
F i S SR W A ALk 5 SRR A% B A AH B
PRI 28 0 175 i 44 LR 2 A R AT T A
+ o

i N HE Je i P2 4 Z B TR F iy
PR AT RE TR 2 A7 B L 32 4 R A
SCHE > B G AR R B AR 4 i B
S R AT ] R B L B R T B o
Lo 0 B 02 i 3L R 2 38 i ) K

31



32

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R

Corporate Governance Report
LEERRE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)
3

3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Rules and Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and
in advance of the meeting invite nomination of
candidates from members of the Board, if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may put forward other
candidates irrespective of whether such candidates have
been nominated by members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of
all necessary information relating to the candidates,
evaluate each of such candidates at the meeting based
on the criteria set out in Section 2 above to determine
whether to make a nomination to the Board.

The number of candidates nominated by the
Nomination Committee may exceed the number
of casual vacancies or vacancies for Director’s
appointment by the Board or at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to the appointment of candidates as Directors
and its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at any general meeting.

Any proposed candidate is entitled to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the meeting of the
Board at which his/her appointment is to be considered
or the general meeting at which he/she is to stand for
election by serving a notice in writing to the Company.

Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority,
under no circumstances may a member of the
Nomination Committee disclose any information to the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
whilst such information has not been disclosed by the
Company to the public.

Review

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy
from time to time, as appropriate, and discuss any
revisions that may be considered appropriate, including
to ensure that it remains relevant to the Company’s
needs and reflects both current regulatory requirements
and good corporate governance practice, and
recommend them to the Board for approval.
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(iv)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
6 Disclosure of Policy

The Policy may be disclosed in such manner as the
Board considers appropriate and in compliance with
any applicable regulatory requirements or guidelines.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor
Dr. Pongsak Angkasith (Chairman) (appointed in June 2020)
and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, a non-executive Director, Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont and an executive Director, Mr. Bai Shanlin
(appointed in November 2020). Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung
was previously Chairman from August 2016 to May 2019 and
a member from May 2019 until his retirement from the Board
in June 2020. Mr. Sombat Deo-isres was previously a member
from August 2016 until his resignation from the Board in June
2020. Mr. Sakda Thanitcul was previously a member from
August 2016 and became Chairman in May 2019 until his
resignation from the Board in June 2020.

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board with the primary responsibilities to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
review and monitor training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to the
employees and the directors; and review the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2020, the Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings to review the Group’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed the Group’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2020 and reviewed the environment, social and governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a risk management policy
which is designed to manage the risk of failure associated with
the Group while achieving its business objectives and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. A risk appetite statement has been established to define
the extent of risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its
strategies and business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different level of
management within the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board also (i) oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and (ii) evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The
Board delegates the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to the
Audit Committee, which monitors the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department.
The Internal Audit Department carries out independent review
of key business processes and controls, while key findings and
recommendations for improvement are regularly reported to the
Audit Committee. The external auditor also reports any control issues
which have been identified in the course of audit or review work
to the Audit Committee. Management is responsible for designing,
implementing and monitoring risk management and internal control
systems, whereas risk owners appointed by the management are
responsible for identifying, analysing and prioritising risk issues
for further consideration by management, and ensuring that the
risk monitoring and control system are working effectively and
risk mitigation actions are implemented in a timely manner within
business units.

Effectiveness Review

During the year, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board considers that
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate. The Board also considers that the Group
has adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

Continuous Improvement

We are committed to continually improve our risk management
and internal control framework and will continue to enhance the
integration of risk management and internal control into our business
process.

For handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information in accordance with the legal requirements and,
where required, communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in a
timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened by the Board on requisition, as
provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may
from time to time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in
default, may be convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to the
Board for convening a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

If the Board fails to convene a meeting within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing
(and not less than 10 business days) shall be given to all members of
the Company.

To Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company can make enquiry to the Board by
writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong.

To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than one hundred members, can submit a written requisition to the
Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or state the business to be dealt with at that
meeting and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company no less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or no less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his willingness to
be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his personal data, at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting at which the candidate is proposed for election and ending no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a
director are available on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles of the Company in relation to the
communication with shareholders, with the objective of maintaining
full, open and timely communication with shareholders. Information
would be communicated to shareholder in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
These publications are available on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mzr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 56, Chairman of the Company,
has been an Executive Director of the Company since 2005 and
a Vice Chairman from February 2010 until his appointment as
Chairman of the Board in May 2019. He also holds directorships
in several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont has
extensive multinational investment and management experience in
various industries. He is also Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG Company”). He is a director and Chairman
of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) and
CP ALL Public Company Limited (“CP ALL”) (both listed on the
Stock Exchange of Thailand), a non-executive director and Chairman
of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (“CTEI”) (listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)), a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. (listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and an executive
director and Chairman of C.P. Lotus Corporation (“CP Lotus”)
(which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until
its withdrawal from listing in October 2019). Mr. Chearavanont was
previously a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited
(“True Corporation”) (listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand). He
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
and Public Administration of New York University, USA.

Mr. Adirek Sripratak, aged 74, has been an Executive Director and a
Vice Chairman of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company
since April 2012. Mr. Sripratak has been a director of CPF since
1998, its Vice Chairman since 2013 and Chairman of its Executive
Committee since 2017. He was previously the President and Chief
Executive Officer of CPF from 2003 to 2017. He is also a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company and of CPF. Mr. Sripratak is
also a director of CP ALL and Siam Makro Public Company Limited
(“Siam Makro”) (both listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand).
He has more than 40 years’ experience in the agri-business and food
industry. His valuable experience is widely recognised and has led to
his appointment to a number of public offices and positions. He is the
Honor President of the Thai Broiler Processing Exporters Association
and was previously a Senator of the National Assembly of Thailand
and an Honorary Director of Chiang Mai University Council. He
received Honorary Doctorates from a number of universities in
Thailand including Maejo University, Mae Fah Luang University,
Rajamangala University of Technology Suvarnabhumi, Chiang Mai
University, Rajamangala University of Technology Isan and Kasetsart
University.
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Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 53, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2008, Vice Chairman of the Board
since May 2019 and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since
September 2019. Mr. Chearavanont has extensive experience in the
telecommunication and broadcasting industries. He is a director,
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Executive Board of CPG
Company and a director and Chief Executive Officer of True Visions
Public Company Limited and True Move Company Limited. He has
positions in the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand: True Corporation (director and Chairman), CPF (director
and Vice Chairman), CP ALL (director and Vice Chairman) and
Siam Makro (director and Chairman). He is also an executive director
of CP Lotus. Mr. Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of Science degree
in Business Administration from Boston University in USA, majoring
in Financial Management.

Mzr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 55, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since June 2019, having previously served as an
Executive Director of the Company from 2005 until his resignation
from the Board in 2010. Mr. Chearavanont has extensive experience
in retail, telecommunication, agri-food and other industries. He is a
director of the following companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand: True Corporation, CP ALL and Siam Makro. He is also
an executive director and the Vice Chairman and of CP Lotus. Mr.
Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration from New York University, USA, a Certificate of
Advance Management Program in Transforming Proven Leaders into
Global Executives from Harvard Business School, Harvard University,
USA and an Honorary Doctorate degree of Business Administration
from Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand. He also completed
the Systematic Innovation of Products, Processes, and Services
programme at Massachusetts Institute of Technology Sloan School of
Management.

Mr. Bai Shanlin, aged 61, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since February 2010. He was the Chief Executive Officer
(Feed Division) of the Company from February 2010 until April 2012
since which time he has been the Chief Executive Officer (China
Area). Mr. Bai was appointed a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company in November 2020. Mr. Bai has extensive
experience in the management of agri-business operations. He joined
Charoen Pokphand Group in 1991. Mr. Bai also holds directorships in
several companies within the Group. He is also a part time professor
at Gansu Agricultural University and Renmin University of China.
He obtained a Professional Diploma in Animal Science from Gansu
College of Animal Husbandry, the Governmental Exchange Specialist
Certificate in Agricultural Management from the Australian
Ministry of Foreign Affairs and a Specialist Certificate in Livestock
Management in the PRC.
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Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg, aged 68, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since October 2011 and Chief Executive
Officer (Vietnam Area) of the Company since April 2012. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg has over 30 years of experience in animal feed sales
and breeding. He has been with Charoen Pokphand Group since
1980 and is currently a member of the Executive Board of CPG
Company. Mr. Jiumjaiswanglerg also holds directorships in several
companies within the Group. He was previously a director of CPF. Mr.
Jiumjaiswanglerg graduated from the University of the Thai Chamber
of Commerce with a bachelor degree in Economics.

Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan, aged 72, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2012. Mrs. Watcharananan
has also been an Executive Director of CPF since 2002 and also a
director of several of its subsidiaries. Mrs. Watcharananan graduated
from Thammasat University, Thailand with a bachelor’s degree in
Economics.

Mr. Yu Jianping, aged 60, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2017. Mr. Yu is currently a senior executive
of the Group, primarily responsible for the food business of the
Group in China. He also holds directorships in several companies
within the Group. Mr. Yu has been working for the Group since
1995. Mr. Yu received a Bachelor of Science degree from the Faculty
of Mathematics, Jilin University in China in 1982 and a Master of
Economics degree from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences in China in 1989.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 62, had been an Executive Director
and Executive Vice Chairman of the Company from 2005 until
his re-designation as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
August 2010 when he was also appointed a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Jiaravanont has also been a member
of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company since
August 2017. He has extensive experience in investment, finance,
banking and strategic business development in Asia and USA. Mr.
Jiaravanont is also an executive director of CP Lotus. He is currently
the Senior Executive Assistant to the Chairman-Finance of Charoen
Pokphand Group and a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.
Mr. Jiaravanont obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
Occidental College, California, USA and a master degree in Business
Administration from New York University, USA.
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Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 61, has been a Non-executive Director
of the Company since October 2015. Mr. lkezoe is also a non-
executive director of CTEIL. Mr. Ikezoe is currently Deputy CEO for
East Asia Bloc, Senior Officer of Asia and Oceania Bloc, CP and
CITIC (Overseas Operation) of ITOCHU Corporation (listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange and formerly known as C.ITOH & Co.,
Ltd.) and Chairman of ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited, ITOCHU
Shanghai Limited and ITOCHU (China) Holding Ltd. Mr. Ikezoe has
been working for ITOCHU Corporation since 1983. He received his
Bachelor of Arts degree from the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka
University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej, aged 70, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2012 and a
member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since May 2019. Mr. Vittavasgarnvej
was the Director General of The Treasury Department, Ministry
of Finance, Thailand from 2010 to 2011 and the Director General
of The Revenue Department, Ministry of Finance, Thailand
from 2008 to 2010. Mr. Vittavasgarnvej holds positions in the
following companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand:
CPF (independent director and member of the Audit Committee),
Sahamitr Pressure Container Public Co., Ltd. (independent director
and Chairman), Ekarat Engineering Public Company Limited
(independent director and Chairman of the Audit Committee) and
Srisawad Corporation Public Company Limited (independent director,
Vice Chairman and Chairman of the Audit Committee). He was
previously an independent director of Syn Mun Kong Insurance Public
Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand). Mr.
Vittavasgarnvej obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and
a master’s degree in Political Science from Thammasat University,

Thailand.

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon, aged 68, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2013 and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company since
May 2019. She was also appointed a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company in May 2019 and became its Chairman
in September 2019. Mrs. Vimooktayon held various government
positions in Thailand from 1997 and retired from the position of
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce in September
2013. She is currently an independent director and member of the
Audit Committee of CPF. Mrs. Vimooktayon obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration (Accounting) from Thammasat
University, Thailand, a bachelor’s degree in Laws from Sukhothai
Thammathirat University, Thailand and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from National Institute of Development
Administration, Thailand.
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee
since January 2020, and he was appointed a member of the
Nomination Committee in June 2020. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.
He is also an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
CTEI, CSI Properties Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC
(Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited; Kidsland International Holdings
Limited and Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr.
Cheng was previously an independent non-executive director of
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and CP Lotus. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from
University of Kent, the United Kingdom in 1983 and a Master of
Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and Finance,
from London School of Economics and Political Science, the United
Kingdom in 1984. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith, aged 72, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company, Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee since
June 2020. Prof. Dr. Pongsak has extensive experience in agriculture.
He is currently Chairman of Pracharat Rak Samakkee Chiang Mai
(Social Enterprise) Co., Ltd., Chancellor of College of Agricultural,
Innovation Biotechnology and Food, Rangsit University, President
of Thai Arabica Coffee Association and Executive Director and
Head of Coffee Research Royal Project Foundation. He has been an
independent director of CPF since 2013 and also serves as Chairman
its Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainable Development
Committee and a member of its Audit Committee and Remuneration
and Nominating Committee. He obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Agriculture from Chiang Mai University, Thailand, a Master of
Science Degree and a Doctor of Education Degree from Oklahoma
State University of Agriculture and Applied Science, the USA. He
also completed various agricultural and management related courses in
the Netherlands.
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General Udomdej Sitabutr, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee since June
2020. Gen. Udomdej held a number of positions throughout his career
with the Royal Thai Army. He was First Army Area Commander in
2010 and became Chief of Staff in 2012 and Commander-in-Chief of
the Royal Thai Army in 2014 before his retirement from the Royal
Thai Army in 2015. He was also the Deputy Minister of Defence of
Thailand from 2014 to 2017. Gen. Udomdej obtained a Bachelor of
Science Degree from Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy and
completed various courses at Command and General Staff College and
National Defence College in Thailand.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont and Mr.
Narong Chearavanont are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Meth
Jiaravanont. Mr. Adirek Sripratak is the elder brother of Mrs. Arunee
Watcharananan. Save as disclosed above, there is no other material
relationship among members of the Board.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group operates in Vietnam and China. In Vietnam, the Group is
principally engaged in the (1) production and sale of animal feed, (2)
breeding, farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and (3)
production and sale of value-added processed food products. In China,
the Group is principally engaged in poultry farming and production
and sale of value-added processed food products. The Group also has
a significant investment in a company operating in China which is
principally engaged in the production and sale of animal feed and
breeding, farming and sale of swine and sale of pork.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement section, Financial Highlights section and Management
Discussion and Analysis section of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance and the key
relationships with stakeholders are set out below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Report 2020 to be issued.

The Directors are not aware of any important event affecting the
Group since the end of the financial year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are discussed

below. Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set
out in note 49 to the financial statements of the annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Volatility of Commodity Prices

Price of farm products is dependent on the demand and supply as
well as the economic condition and consumer purchasing power and
confidence. When supply exceeds demand, there is a negative impact
on the selling price of the farm products which in turn affects the
performance of the Group.

On the other hand, the Group’s results may also be affected by
price volatility of main ingredients used in the production of animal
feed, including corn, soybean meal, wheat and fish meal. These raw
materials are basic agricultural commodities and their prices are
affected by global commodity prices as well as domestic demand and
supply. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity price information when purchasing
these raw materials.

Product Quality and Safety

Product quality and safety are the most important issues in agri-food
business. Failure to maintain quality control during the manufacturing
process may lead to poor quality products and result in complaints,
claims for compensation or product recalls, penalties and damage
to the Group’s reputation. The Group is committed to producing
high quality and safe products from its manufacturing process and
has traceability systems for raw materials used and quality assurance
systems throughout its supply chains.

Customer Demand and Preference

Customer demand for a particular kind of meat may change due
to loss of consumer confidence as a result of epidemic outbreak or
a change in consumer preference and taste. Also, as consumer’s
purchasing power increases, preference may also shift from low cost
protein sources to higher cost protein sources. A decline in demand
for any particular kind of meat will directly affect the sales of such
meat, indirectly affect the demand for the associated feed products
as well as the demand for the food products made from such meat. In
order to keep alert to customers’ demands and determine appropriate
marketing strategies, management continuously follows the behavioral
change and satisfaction of consumers.

Animal Disease Outbreaks

Any epidemic outbreaks in livestock, poultry or aquatic animals would
affect the selling prices of our products and the results of the Group.
The Group will continue to provide regular training to its employees
to keep up with the knowledge and understanding on diseases and
outbreaks, as well as continuously conduct surveillance, follow-up,
data analysis and communication of information on diseases and their
outbreaks.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s businesses are principally located in mainland China
and Vietnam. All domestic sales in mainland China and Vietnam
are conducted in RMB and VND respectively, whereas export sales
and import of raw materials, machinery and equipment are conducted
in foreign currencies. Also, certain subsidiaries in mainland China
and Vietnam have borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
Depreciation of RMB/VND against foreign currencies would result in
loss on translation of these foreign currencies denominated borrowings
and increase the costs of imported raw materials, machinery and
equipment. Furthermore, depreciation of RMB/VND against US$
would also adversely affect results of the Group, as the results of
the subsidiaries in mainland China and Vietnam would be reduced
on translation from RMB/VND to US$, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange movements and consider hedging when necessary. Please
refer to note 49(c) to the financial statements of the annual report for
the foreign currency risk exposures of the Group as at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest Rate Fluctuation

The Group had total bank borrowings of US$1,135.9 million as
at 31 December 2020, 88% of which were at floating rate which
subjects the Group to interest rate risk. In the decision making for the
selection of sources of capital, the Group will consider various factors
such as rate of return expected by shareholders, current and expected
interest rates in the market and debt-to-equity ratio of the Group.
Please refer to note 49(a) to the financial statements of the annual
report for the interest rate risk exposures as at the end of the reporting
period.

Compliance Risks

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in mainland China
and Vietnam and are subject to different industry standards and
government regulations in different jurisdictions. These standards
and regulations include food hygiene and safety related laws and
regulations, environmental protection regulations, employment
regulations and relevant tax laws, etc. The Group’s internal
legal department will ensure compliance with the laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation and minimizing our impact on the environment. As a
testament of our commitment to environmental protection, some of
our operations in China and Vietnam are certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, which reflects our stringent
environmental policies and objectives. We have adopted strict
measures to control the discharge of wastes and pollutants. We have
also implemented an array of energy saving measures to reduce costs
and energy consumption in our production processes. In 2020, there
was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

We also require our suppliers to operate in strict compliance with
relevant environmental regulations and rules. Their environmental
performances are evaluated on a regular basis.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

The Group regards its employees as one of its most important
assets. We strive to provide motivation and awards to employees
who demonstrate outstanding performance. Our employee benefits
include medical insurance, annual leaves, training, and discretionary
performance bonus. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with the national regulations on equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination.

We place great importance in establishing a safe and healthy work
environment for our employees. In our operations, safety trainings
are offered to production staff. We have obtained OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems certification
in some of our food operations, which serves to demonstrate
our capability in managing the potential occupational hazard in
workplaces.

Customers

The Group has a diversified customer base and we perceive customers’
satisfaction with products and services are key to our success. The
Group has set out rigorous procedures to ensure that safe, nutritious,
environmentally friendly products are produced and delivered to
our customers. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction, the Group’s
sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions. With continuous
feedback of our customers, we will continue to improve our product
and service qualities.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Key Relationships with Stakeholders (continued)
Suppliers

We carefully choose suppliers that share the same commitment to
product quality and work ethics with us. In our procurement process,
we select our suppliers based on a number of assessment criteria,
including their service quality, environmental and social performance,
and ability to supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We
also perform on-site inspections of our suppliers as and when necessary

to ensure our requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements of the annual report.

During the year under review, (i) a special dividend of HK$0.008
(2019: nil) per share, and (ii) an interim dividend of HK$0.03 (2019:
HK$0.008) per share were declared and paid.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$0.076 (equivalent to
approximately US 0.974 cent) (2019: HK$0.024 (equivalent to
approximately US 0.308 cent) per share, totaling approximately
US$246,834,000 (2019: US$77,947,000) (based on the total number
of issued ordinary shares and convertible preference shares as at
the date of this report). Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 11
June 2021, the 2020 final dividend will be paid on 6 July 2021 to the
ordinary share holders and convertible preference share holders whose
names appear on the registers of members of the Company on 23 June

2021.

The register of members holding ordinary shares of the Company
will be closed from 8 June 2021 to 11 June 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of ordinary shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to ascertain shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 11 June 2021, all transfer forms for ordinary
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 7 June 2021.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

In addition, the registers of members holding ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares of the Company respectively will be
closed from 21 June 2021 to 23 June 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the 2020 final dividend, all transfer forms for
ordinary shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,

Hong Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 18 June 2021.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2020, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RO R ZF-)N\E R ZFAHF
US$’°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FiFx  Fxfo  FrFr  Frfr - FErTi
Total assets Fig =g 6,597,182 5,345,838 4,611,362 4,232,929 3,633,425
Total liabilities FS =Ry 2,564,472 3,378,800 2,909,138 2,717,565 2,214,677
Non-controlling interests I Jri ] A 2 484,328 418,764 346,721 277,654 295,182
Equity attributable to /NN
shareholders of the Company JE Ak HE 25 3,548,382 1,548,274 1,355,503 1,237,710 1,123,566
6,597,182 5,345,838 4,611,362 4,232,929 3,633,425
Profit for the year attributable to A< 2\ &] Bt 5 HE Al
shareholders of the Company T A1 (R A 56 41
(exclude gain on deemed (RN N3
disposal of Chia Tai B A R A E]
Investment Co., Ltd. ([EXREE] 2
(“CTI”)) W) 688,796 345,803 281,659 41,867 260,278

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 16

to the financial statements of the annual report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2020, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in notes 50 and 40 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to US$1,406,836,000 (2019: US$1,435,285,000), out of
which US$246,834,000 (2019: US$77,947,000) has been proposed as
a final dividend for the year. Details of the proposed final dividend are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements of the annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy which sets out the approach
of the Company on the declaration and payment of dividends to
shareholders of the Company.

The Board is responsible for considering and, if appropriate, declaring
any interim dividend or recommending any final dividend to the
shareholders for approval every year. Any approved dividends must
not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Declaration or recommendation of any dividend will take into
consideration the Company’s results of operations and financial
conditions, business strategy and future development and any other
factors that the Board may deem relevant. No dividend shall be
declared or paid except out of the Company’s profits and reserves
lawfully available for distribution. The payment of dividend is also
subject to applicable laws and regulations, including any applicable
restrictions under the Company’s Bye-laws.

Future declarations or recommendations of dividends may or may not
reflect the Company’s historical declarations or recommendations
of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Board.
At the time when the Board makes the announcement as to its
recommendation of final dividend, if any, in respect of the last
completed financial year, it will also endeavour to indicate whether,
and, if so, how much dividend is, in the absence of unforeseen
circumstances, expected to be declared and/or recommended in
respect of the current financial year.

In 2020, the Group completed the transaction of merging its China
feed and swine food businesses under CTI, originally a subsidiary
of the Group, with Charoen Pokphand Group’s swine business in
China. As a result, a substantial portion of our new China business
runs under CTI, an associate of the Group, which can stand on
its own with regards to expansion and funding. In the absence of
unforeseen circumstances, the Board intends to raise dividend pay-out
to approximately 50% of net profit attributable to shareholders for the
financial year ending 31 December 2021.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$4,392,000 (2019: US$3,907,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue and purchases of continuing operations attributable to the
five largest customers and the five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue and purchases for the year ended 31
December 2020 respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Adirek Sripratak

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Narong Chearavanont

Mr. Bai Shanlin

Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan
Mr. Yu Jianping

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont
Mr. Yoichi Tkezoe

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej

Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith (1)
General Udomdej Sitabutr (1)

Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung (2)
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres (3)

Mr. Sakda Thanitcul (3)

Notes:

(1) Each of Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith and General Udomdej Sitabutr was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 6 June 2020.

(2) Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung retired from the Board with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2020
(the “2020 AGM”).

(3) Each of Mr. Sombat Deo-isres and Mr. Sakda Thanitcul resigned from the Board

with effect from the conclusion of the 2020 AGM.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
were appointed for a term of one year, subject to renewal by mutual
agreement, and, together with all other Directors, are subject to
retirement by rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at
annual general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 82, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, Mr. Yoichi lkezoe, Mr.
Vinai Vittavasgarnvej and Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon will retire
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 46 to the
financial statements of the annual report, none of the Directors had
any material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and the related party disclosures as disclosed in note 46 to the
financial statements of the annual report, there had been no contract
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2020.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s securities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code are set out below:

B A R 2
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Report of the Directors
ESHREE

EERFRTRAEREAQAREMERE
BHROREBRONERR LR

PERIFET A= H > WERE SR R B
1 5535200 BLAE pi A 2 W] A7 2 %% G i i c 8% > X
SR B¢ A A S S i A 2 ) B 0B A2 i 8 A R A - A%
N B EATBON B R A A R B R I s 1 Y
i B A Bl M v R i R % (4% o B YT B R ) 5
XVl pr e 4 ) @ym

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long (a) EERAQATNER (FA)
Positions)
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued ordinary
ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
A2 ]
P % 2 B A7 0 I S A
HHELW 54 Ji& 4oy B H LAY T 43 b
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 21,000,000 0.09%
R ek HaERHEA A
(b) Directors’ interests in shares of associated (b) EBRAQATANEBLEENER (FAR)
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited FAL¥EBEERA A
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of director Capacity shares held associated corporation
A5 FH R 2
[REEFY N
WA B4 Pt ¥ BB A B H R ONEp i
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Beneficial owner 210,000 0.09%

AR e T A A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND

PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR

SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

A

FERRRBEFSRMERARER T
BEEARESEIARENAL

PERIRET A= H o MRS R
Bl 553360 L A2 Hh AR 2 W) A7 2 B AL P AL 8k > T
WAL GEAAFMEEREEITHANE) RAAF
VR T 1 B AL R P AT O RS SR RN T

Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares and the issued ordinary
underlying shares share capital of
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity held the Company
A 24 W]
ity ko TS ERRA
JBE 3 44 W - B 1 3 9 E MAA S
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(Ht7E1) (WiEl)
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner, interest of 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)
Public Company Limited controlled corporation and
concert party
HARYEA N ~ fEdl g E R X
—HATHMAL
Charoen Pokphand Group (3) Interest of controlled corporation 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)
Company Limited 2 1 3k B R 2

ITOCHU Corporation 4) Beneficial owner and concert party 19,017,584,153(L) 79.00(L)

A S Y S v A AR —BATEHMH AL

Notes: Mt
(1) The Letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) [LIRFEIFA -

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) had a long position
in 19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company which included
(i) 1,261,077,748 convertible preference shares beneficially owned by CPF; (ii)
11,738,547,097 ordinary shares beneficially owned by CPF Investment Limited
(“CPFI”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPF; and (iii) 6,017,959,308
ordinary shares which were beneficially owned by ITOCHU Corporation
(“ITOCHU”) in which, as a result of certain provisions in an agreement entered
into between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU, CPF was for the purpose of Sections
317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, taken to be interested in.

(3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited had a long position of
19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company through CPF, its

controlled corporation.

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(TCPF.) #419,017,584,153 e A% 2 w] JBe A K # B PB4 (4
) o o @G CPFE 48 HE A 191,261,077, 7488 7T 44 Jit
P e B ey 5 (i) CPF& & B A b )& A WICPF Investment
Limited ([ CPFIJ) B %5 8 A #911,738,547,097 )% % i It Ji%
3 5 B (iii) B FECPF ~ CPFIAIAR i 8 1 3 Ak X & 4k ([HF
TOE K8 1) T S RT R e b TR o R R O A R ) 4R
317(1) () K A3 1806 T 7 » CPF#H AR BE A I S8 1 2%
BEA 196,017,959,308 8 35 18 B JBt 43 0 HE 25 o

3) Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited 5 # CPF (3§
i3 M) F5 419,017,584, 153 B A 2 Wl B4 K Bl Je 3 (%
q) o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR

SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4) ITOCHU beneficially owned 6,017,959,308 ordinary shares of the Company.
As a result of certain provisions in the above mentioned agreement entered
into between CPF, CPFI and ITOCHU, ITOCHU was, for the purpose of
Sections 317(1)(a) and 318 of the SFO, taken to be interested in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which CPF was interested apart
from by reason of that agreement. As such, ITOCHU had a long position in
19,017,584,153 shares and underlying shares of the Company in aggregate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in the annual general meeting held on 22 June 2012. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, being 1,698,783,571 ordinary shares of the Company,
based on 16,987,835,710 issued ordinary shares of the Company as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme in 2012. Such
maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of all the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
now represents 7% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at
the date of this report.

No share option was granted during 2020. As at 31 December 2020,
the Company had no outstanding share options.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 39 to
the financial statements of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FAERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into the R#EE_-F _-FHE+_H=1+—HILFERN » K4
B O HE4T T 51 B A2 5 3 2R AR B b i R B i A R A
TE TR 5 o

following connected transactions that are subject to the Listing Rules’
reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.

The Vietnam Production Equipment and Construction HME4EEREREESH
Contracts

R-F-NWETAZTHEAZFFFENAL
H > A & W K M} 2 7] BEKSP Vietnam Co., Ltd.
(TKSPME RS |) %51 LR & IF) (40 T8 a2k e s 18 &%
AR

On 30 December 2019 and 9 April 2020, two subsidiaries of the
Company entered into the following contracts with KSP Vietnam
Co., Ltd. (“KSP Vietnam”) (collectively, the “Vietnam Production
Equipment and Construction Contracts”):

Subsidiary Date of Contract Nature Contract Sum

Wi 2+ w1 Gl 324 Bt
(approximate amounts)
(BE#)#H)

C. P. Vietnam Corporation 30 December 2019 Installation of electrical system and related VND30.50 billion
(“CPVC”) “E-UETZA work for feed crumble machine (approximately
C. P. Vietnam Corporation =+H 22 S0 R T B 1A TR SRR A AR B A US$1.31 million)

(feevel) 3054 B e i
(#1314358)
CPVC 9 April 2020 Construction of shrimp hatchery buildings VND187.90 billion
CPVC ZRZFENANLHA and related work (including internal roads, (approximately
fences, drainage system and electrical work) US$8.10 million)
EE LG A B A (B A E R - 1,879 B K G
B~ Bk R BRI E R TR (#8108 3 7T)
CPV Food Co., Ltd. 9 April 2020 Supply and installation of slaughter machine VND31.26 billion
(“CPV Food”) R FZENANHE B 4 2 s A (approximately
CPV Food Co., Ltd. US$1.35 million)
(TCPVR #h 1) 312,61 I
(#1358 3878)
CPV Food 9 April 2020 Supply and installation of equipment for eight VND33.30 billion
CPVE& fih ZRZFENANLHA broiler farms (approximately
H )\ M 1A F 55 B8t HE 22 25 5 Al US$1.43 million)
333
(#143% 3 7C)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Vietnam Production Equipment and Construction
Contracts (continued)

As at 9 April 2020, being the date of the Company’s announcement,
Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF’) was
interested in approximately 49.74% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company and Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CPG”) was interested in approximately 48.44% of the issued share
capital of CPF. Due to CPG’s near majority shareholding in CPF,
the Company and CPG had agreed to treat CPG as a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and accordingly CPG and its associates
were treated as connected persons of the Company. As KSP Vietnam
was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions contemplated under the
Vietnam Production Equipment and Construction Contracts were
treated as connected transactions of the Company under the Listing

Rules.
Office Tenancy Agreement

On 10 April 2020, Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. (“CTI”) (as lessee),
the then indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an office tenancy agreement (the “Office Tenancy Agreement”)
with CPQS Realty and Development Co., Ltd. (“CPQS”) (as lessor)
in relation to the lease of certain office premises in Beijing with a
total leased area of approximately 5112.65 square meters for use by
CTI and its subsidiaries. Subsequently on 14 May 2020, the same
parties entered into a supplemental agreement to revise the term of
the Office Tenancy Agreement such that the rental period would run
from 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2023.

The monthly rental payable for each of the 12 months ended 14 May
2021, 14 May 2022 and 14 May 2023, amount to RMB1,354,852.25,
RMB2,709,704.50 and RMB1,354,852.25, respectively.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its associates were treated
as connected persons of the Company. As CPQS was a subsidiary
of CPG, the transactions between CTI and CPQS were treated as

connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The PRC Construction and Project Management Contracts
for New Shrimp Breeding Facilities

On 13 August 2020, C.P. Aquaculture (Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd. (“CP
Zhanjiang”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a construction contract (the “Construction Contract”) with
CSCEC-CP Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (“CPCEC-CP”) and a
project management contract (the “Project Management Contract”
and together with the Construction Contract, the “PRC New Shrimp
Breeding Facilities Contracts”) with Chia Tai Handing Modern
Agricultural Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Handing”) to develop
new shrimp breeding facilities in Zhanjiang, Guangdong, the PRC.

Pursuant to the Construction Contract, CSCEC-CP, as contractor,
shall be responsible for the design, construction and related work
for the new shrimp breeding facilities. The construction period was
276 days from the date of the Construction Contract and the total
contract sum was approximately RMB81.9 million.

Pursuant to the Project Management Contract, Chia Tai Handing,
as project manager, shall be responsible for carrying out the project
management of the entire shrimp breeding facilities development
project for a project management fee of approximately RMB4.4
million.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates were treated as connected persons of the
Company. As (i) CSCEC-CP was 50% owned by CPG and (ii) Chia
Tai Handing was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions contemplated
under the PRC New Shrimp Breeding Facilities Contracts were
treated as a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules.
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Report of the Directors

ESHREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) ERXS (E)
The PRC Project Management Contracts FEEEEESRE

During the period between 10 April 2020 and 24 August 2020, a
number of subsidiaries of the Company entered into certain project
management contracts with Chia Tai Handing (collectively, the
PRC Project Management Contracts”) to appoint Chia Tai Handing
as the project manager to manage the development projects at food
production facilities which were being developed by these subsidiaries
in the PRC. The amount of the project management fee payable under
each of such contracts is set out below:

WR-BZRENATHE_Z_FF/N\H_1+WMH
I > WO A 4y W) B i 2 ] S IE K B O ST A T H
HEMERE (GHITREREEAR]) » ZRIEX
S R RSB 5 AR B o A PR 4 D B > AL
H R R R B R H o A B R BE A H
HE A SRS

Subsidiary Date of Contract Project Management Fee
) /58 2 W) & F B HHEMA
(approximate amounts)
(HE#9 2 #0)

CP Food Enterprise (Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd. 10 April 2020 RMB452,000

(“CP Qinhuangdao”) “RZEFMATH N R #4528 70
EREMAE(RES)AMRAF

(TIERREE])
Chia Tai Food Enterprise (Qingdao) Co., Ltd. 15 April 2020 RMB934,000
EREMAEEES ARAA SR IRFEMATHRHA N RW93 48 50
Jilin Chia Tai Food Co. Ltd. 19 May 2020 RMB152,000
T WRIE K& i A BRA F “ROFRELATIUA AR ¥E15.28 0
C. P. Food (Nantong) Co., Ltd. 25 May 2020 RMB149,000
IERA A (B FRAF SRR AZTHH N R#E14.9% 50
Chia Tai Food (Suquian) Co., Ltd. 29 May 2020 RMB3,559,000
EREH(EE) ARAFH ZRIFFEHAZTIUH N RHE355.98 76
C. P. Food (Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd. 7 June 2020 RMB324,000
ERA & () ARAF SR IRFENALH NERWE32.48 50
Fujian Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd. 8 June 2020 RMB229,000
KA A BRA ] ZRIZFEANANA ANR¥22.98 50

Fujian Hetai Agro-Industry Co., Ltd.
AR AR A

Longyan Baotai Agro-Industry Co., Ltd.
HE M B A% SRR R

Longyan Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (“Longyan CT”)
HE R IE KA R A A ([HE B IE K )

Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd.
WAL IE KA R A #

Longyan CT
HE Bt 1E K

8 June 2020
“RIRFEANANH

8 June 2020
“EREAANA

8 June 2020
TRIRFEANANH

10 June 2020
SEEEAATH

24 August 2020

“ERIFENAZTIH
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RMB1,020,000
N RW100.28 568

RMB213,000
ANRWE21.38 50

RMB349,000
N RM34.98 70

RMB866,000
AR H86.68 70

RMB19,200,000
ANE¥1,92085 58
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The PRC Project Management Contracts (continued)

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates are treated as connected persons of the Company.
As Chia Tai Handing was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the PRC Management Contracts were treated as
a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Acquisition of the Swine Business and the Deemed
Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 14 September 2020, CTI, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and CP China Investment Limited (“CP China”) and CP
Qinhuangdao, which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into an agreement (the “Swine Business Agreement”) with
Chia Tai Animal Husbandry Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“CTAI”/
the “Vendor”), pursuant to which CTI agreed to purchase, and the
Vendor agreed to sell, the equity capital of 43 companies which were
established in the PRC and principally engaged in the breeding,
farming, slaughtering, food processing and sale of swine in the PRC
(the “Acquisition”) for an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB28,140 million (equivalent to approximately US$4,109 million).

The consideration was settled by the issue to the Vendor by CTI of
new shares in CTI representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged
by such issue. Pursuant to Rule 14.31 of the Listing Rules, such issue
constituted a deemed disposal of CTI (the “Deemed Disposal”).

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its associates were treated as
connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. As the Vendor was a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, each
of the Acquisition and the Deemed Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company and was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held on
2 November 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions that are subject to the
Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in annual report.

Supply
High Orient Enterprises Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master supply agreement with High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”) (the “2019 Master HOEL Supply Agreement”),
for the supply by the Group to HOEL and its associates (the “HOEL
Group”) of various feed-related, farm-related and food-related
products (with related services) produced or procured by the Group
such as animal feed, feed raw materials, livestock, aquatic stock and
processed meats and food products. The 2019 Master HOEL Supply
Agreement took effect on 1 January 2020 and would continue until 31
December 2022.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and
their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As HOEL
was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master HOEL Supply Agreement were
treated as continuing connected transactions of the Company under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2019 Master HOEL Supply Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 18
December 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the approved
annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the 2019 Master
HOEL Supply Agreement was US$1,500 million and the actual sales
recorded amounted to US$1,473,996,000.
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High Orient Enterprises Limited
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Supply (continued)
ITOCHU Corporation

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master supply agreement with ITOCHU Corporation
(“ITOCHU”) (the “2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement”) for
the supply and sale of the feed-related, farm-related and food-related
products (with related services) produced or procured by the Group,
such as animal feed, feed raw materials, livestock, aquatic stock, and
processed meats and food products, to ITOCHU and its subsidiaries
from time to time (“I'TOCHU Group”). The 2019 Master ITOCHU
Supply Agreement took effect on 30 October 2019 and continued
until 31 December 2020.

As at 30 October 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, ITOCHU was interested in approximately 25% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company and was a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement
were continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU
Supply Agreement was US$8 million and the actual sales recorded
amounted to US$3,215,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement, on 18 November 2020, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with ITOCHU, which
took effect on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31 December

2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase
High Orient Enterprises Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master purchase agreement with HOEL (the “2019
Master HOEL Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase of feed raw
materials, packaging materials, breed and farm livestock and aqua
stock, meats and other items required by the Group in the production
and sale of animal and aqua feed, farm and food products (with related
services) by the Group from the HOEL Group. The 2019 HOEL
Master Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2020 and would
continue until 31 December 2022.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and
their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. As HOEL
was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement
were treated as continuing connected transactions of the Company

under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2019 HOEL Master Purchase Agreement and the annual caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
on 18 December 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
approved annual cap for the transactions contemplated under the
2019 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement was US$1,930 million and
the actual purchases recorded amounted to US$1,345,258,000.

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2017, the Company had
entered into master purchase agreement with Chia Tai Enterprises
International Limited (“CTEI”) (the “2017 Master CTEI Purchase
Agreement”), for the purchase of various chlortetracycline products
and such animal drugs (including any antibiotics) required by the
Group’s feed and farming businesses (the “2017 CTEI Products”) from
CTEI and its subsidiaries (the “CTEI Group”). The 2017 Master CTEI
Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2018 and continued

until 31 December 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (continued)

On 30 July 2020, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with CTEI (the “2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase
Agreement”) to expand the categories of products to be purchased
by the Group from the CTEI Group. The Company also proposed to
increase the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
US$4.4 million to US$5.5 million. All other terms of the 2017 Master
CTEI Purchase Agreement remained in effect.

As disclosed above, CPF was the controlling shareholder of the
Company. As at 30 July 2020, being the date of the Company’s
announcement in relation to the 2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase
Agreement, CPF was also interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued share capital of CTEI. Companies in the CTEI Group were
therefore associates of CPF and connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Transactions between the Group and the
CTEI Group under the 2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2020 Supplemental CTEI
Purchase Agreement was US$5.5 million and the actual purchases

recorded amounted to US$4,852,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2017 Master CTEI Purchase Agreement (as supplemented by the
2020 Supplemental CTEI Purchase Agreement), on 30 July 2020, the
Company entered into a new master agreement with CTEI, which
took effect on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31 December

2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Purchase (continued)
ITOCHU Corporation

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 October 2019, the Company had
entered into a master purchase agreement with ITOCHU (the “2019
Master ITOCHU Purchase Agreement”) for the purchase of feed raw
materials, packaging materials, breed and farm livestock and aqua
stock, meats and other items required in the production and sale of
animal and aqua feed, farm and food products (with related services)
by the Group from the ITOCHU Group. The 2019 Master ITOCHU
Purchase Agreement took effect on 30 October 2019 and continued
until 31 December 2020.

As at 30 October 2019, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, ITOCHU was interested in approximately 25% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company and was a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU Supply Agreement
were continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2019 Master ITOCHU Purchase
Agreement was US$10 million and the actual purchases recorded

amounted to US$2,004,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under the
2019 Master ITOCHU Purchase Agreement, on 18 November 2020,
the Company entered into a new master agreement with ITOCHU,
which took effect on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31

December 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Vietnam Trademark Licence

Prior to the reporting period, on 30 December 2019, CPVC had
entered into a trademark licence agreement with CPG (the “2019
Vietnam Trademark Licence Agreement”), whereby CPG granted
CPVC a non-exclusive right to use certain trademarks owned by CPG
(the “Vietnam Trademarks”) in connection with CPVC’s business
operation. The royalty fee was equivalent to 1.5% of the net revenue
of CPVC and its subsidiaries from time to time (the “CPVC Group”)
(including any subsidiary which had been granted a sub-licence to
use the Vietnam Trademarks) from sale of the products manufactured
by the CPVC Group or by third party engaged by the CPVP Group
and provision of services with the Vietnam Trademarks attached or
promoted by the use of Vietnam Trademarks by the CPVC Group.
The 2019 Vietnam Trademark Licence Agreement took effect on 1
January 2020 and would continue till 31 December 2022.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates were treated as connected persons of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
transaction contemplated under the 2019 Vietnam Trademark
Licence Agreement was treated as a continuing connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2019 Vietnam Trademark
Licence Agreement was US$61 million and the actual royalty fee
incurred amounted to US$50,971,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

PRC Trademark Sub-licence

Prior to the reporting period, on 10 August 2018, CP China entered
into a master trademark sub-licence agreement with CTAI (the
“2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement”). Pursuant
to the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement, CTAI
had agreed to sub-license to subsidiaries of CP China in the PRC a
non-exclusive right to use the trademark in the PRC in connection
with the production, distribution and sale of certain designated
food products under Class 29 and the provision of ancillary retail,
management and consultancy services under Class 35. The royalty
rates payable in respect of the use of the trademarks under Class
29 ranged from 0.2% to 0.4% of net sale value. No royalty fee was
payable for the use of trademarks under Class 35. The 2018 PRC
Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement took effect on 14 August
2018 and continued until 31 December 2020.

For the reasons disclosed above, CPG and its subsidiaries and
their respective associates were treated as connected persons of
the Company. As CTAI was a subsidiary of CPG, the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement were treated as a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year 31 December 2020, the annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence
Agreement was US$7.2 million and the actual royalty fee incurred
amounted to US$1,790,000.

As the Company intended to continue the transactions under
the 2018 PRC Master Trademark Sub-licence Agreement, on 30
December 2020, CP China entered into a new master sub-licence
agreement with CTAI, which took effect on 1 January 2021 and
would continue until 31 December 2023.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and had no material findings of non-
compliance to report to the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have also
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company has complied with the relevant announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transactions with joint ventures, associates and ITOCHU, rental
income and expenses and interest income with HOEL, which are
disclosed as related party disclosures in note 46 to the financial
statements of the annual report, do not fall under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction, or were
fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and thus are not
disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE
LISTING RULES

2016 Facility Agreement

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated
term loan facility agreement with Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A.,
Hong Kong Branch and Kasikornbank Public Company Limited
(“Kasikornbank”) as mandated lead arrangers, other lenders (together
the “2016 Lenders”) and Kasikornbank as agent, relating to a facility
amount of US$600 million (the “2016 Facility”) made available to the
Company by the 2016 Lenders (the “2016 Facility Agreement”). The
2016 Facility was used to repay all amounts owing by the Company
under the US$410 million term loan facility agreement dated 19
December 2012 and to finance the working capital and/or general
corporate requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the 2016 Facility Agreement, it would be an event of
default if CPF and its subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage
of the legal and beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share
capital of the Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the 2016 Facility
Agreement to become immediately due and payable and any
commitments under the 2016 Facility to be cancelled.

2020 Facility Agreement

On 31 July 2020, the Company entered into a 5-year syndicated term
loan facility agreement with Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong
Kong Branch as mandated lead arranger, other lenders (together, the
“2020 Lenders”) and Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited as agent
relating to a US$400 million facility (the “2020 Facility”) made
available to the Company by the 2020 Lenders (the “2020 Facility
Agreement”). The 2020 Facility was used to refinance indebtedness
under the 2016 Facility Agreement and some other existing
indebtedness, as well as general working capital of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the 2020 Facility Agreement, it would be an event of
default if CPF and its subsidiaries cease to own the largest percentage
of the legal and beneficial interest in the total issued ordinary share
capital of the Company and cease to have control over the Company.

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the 2020 Facility
Agreement to become immediately due and payable and any
commitments under the 2020 Facility to be cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation
pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2016, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in a company
which is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
animal feed, poultry farming and trading as well as the processing
and trading of chicken meat products in the PRC. As a result of the
acquisition, poultry farming and trading and meat products trading
have been added to the range of the Group’s business in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Adirek Sripratak, Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont,
Mr. Bai Shanlin and Mr. Yu Jianping were directors (but not
substantial shareholders) of CPG and/or a number of its subsidiaries
which are principally engaged in businesses including farming and
food products business in the PRC (the “Excluded Companies”).
Accordingly, these Directors have disclosed their interest in
businesses which may compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the farming and food products business of the
Group in the PRC, pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As the Board functions independently from the boards of the
Excluded Companies, the Directors believe that the Group is capable
of carrying on its farming and food products business in the PRC
independently of the farming and food products business carried on by
the Excluded Companies.

The Directors, including those who are considered to have an interest
in the farming and food products business carried on by the Excluded
Companies, will, as and when required under the bye-laws of the
Company, abstain from voting on any resolution of the Board in
respect of any contract, arrangement or proposal in which he/her or
any of his/her associates has a material interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware that any of the
Directors had interest in any business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 145, every Directors shall be
indemnified out of the funds of the Company against all liabilities
incurred by him/her as such Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance for its Directors and officers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year 2020, the Company applied the principles
and complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Arunee Watcharananan
Director

Hong Kong
24 February 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BET 3RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the
shareholders of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 81 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as

Independent Auditor’s Report
B3R BRI E

REESTEE

IR S T R AR R AT A TS B > Ry AR
AR MBI N E G B A EE R - BRI
A8 T A 7 R R A AR A I R Ml LR SRR
o FAM A s L IR L B A -

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
animal feed products, livestock and aquatic animals and
value-added processed food products.

The terms of sales contracts relating to goods acceptance by
customers are similar and revenue is generally recognised
when the products are collected by the customers from the
Group’s premises or when the products are delivered to the
location designated by the customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to an
inherent risk of manipulation by management to meet
targets or expectations and because errors in the recognition
of revenue could have a material impact on the Group’s

profit for the year.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue included

the following:

o evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue

recognition;

o challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards;

o inspecting manual adjustments to revenue raised
during the reporting period which met specific risk-
based criteria, enquiring of management the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying documentation;

o assessing whether revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate accounting period and in accordance with
the terms of the sales contracts by comparing a sample
of sales transactions recorded around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
goods dispatch notes or documentation indicating the
customers’ acknowledgement of delivery of the goods

sold; and

o identifying significant sales returns from the
sales ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the

appropriate reporting period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Valuation of current livestock - swine

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s biological assets mainly represent piglets and
fattening swine which are presented as “current livestock
— swine” in the consolidated financial statements and are

measured at their fair value less costs of disposal.

Management determined the fair value based on market
prices and, where market prices were not available for
certain age groups, based on market prices of other age
groups, with adjustments to take into account differences
in weight. The Group’s current livestock — swine had an
aggregate value of US$528 million as at 31 December 2020.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s current livestock
— swine as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the Group’s total assets and the significance of the
changes in fair value of biological assets to the Group’s
profit before taxation and because the valuation of swine
requires significant management judgement and estimation,
in particular in determining the market prices for swine of
different age groups and in making adjustments for weight
differences.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the Group’s
current livestock — swine included the following:

° evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to swine
management, in particular, the classification of swine
into different age groups and the assessment of swine
quantity;

° comparing, on a sample basis, the physical count
quantities of swine for each age group to that as set
out in management’s fair value calculation table;

° assessing the experience and knowledge of the
relevant personnel from the Group who were involved
in assessing the value of swine at the reporting date;

° discussing with management the methodology
adopted in estimating the fair value of swine and
challenging key estimates and assumptions adopted in
the valuations by comparing market prices for swine
of different age groups with available market data and
by utilising our industry knowledge;

° assessing whether the fair value of swine was
calculated in a manner consistent with the Group’s
fair value model by recalculating the fair value of
swine based on the inputs, in particular the market
prices for swine and weight difference adjustments,

adopted by the Group; and

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the valuation of swine with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

A
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2021
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e HEWE R

SRORFET A= HIREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &

2020 2019
R R R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Sy i FEoLFoo
(Restated)
(REH)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FrE B EEY
REVENUE KA 5 4,332,939 3,495,240
Cost of sales & 8 AR (3,051,310) (2,796,044)
Gross profit EH 1,281,629 699,196
Net change in fair value of biological assets 4 ¥ % & 2 foff 2 5 B 5 4 6, 14 2,820 105,554
1,284,449 804,750
Other income, net JC At W A\ 7 33,907 15,330
Selling and distribution costs BB B 4r 8 AR (114,261) (94,280)
General and administrative expenses T RERE R (224,038) (210,436)
Finance costs B 7 B AR 8 (104,707) (109,816)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A 6 P B e 48 -
Joint ventures GERE 23 (50) (37)
A 35%-owned associate — CTI — Ak 35% =2 Bk 45 A A
—ER#&H 24(a) 66,450 -
Other associates Al W 2 A W 24(a) (226) (58)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX o 56 iy ¥ 1 9 941,524 405,453
Income tax i 12 (189,158) (81,113)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM AR A R
CONTINUING OPERATIONS NS | 752,366 324,340
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRILEEER
Results from operating activities, net of tax ~REFEHEEZ BREZ EH 188,657 143,364
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI PR B I R Z W% 1,466,255 -
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR FROM K H L& IL B B % 2
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS WA A s P 41 1,654,912 143,364
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A A i 2,407,278 467,704
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME i 2 Uk 2R
Continuing operations FEREER
Items that will not be reclassified HEBEBAGEHSHE
subsequently to profit or loss: HEZHH :
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of office [HE 3 &= e
premises, net (B8) /&R 16 (7,142) 612
Income tax effect Jir 15 ot 5 22 37 1,339 19
(5,803) 631
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2020 2019
SECEE F
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt E e Enyan
(Restated)
(RRE )
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  H: i 4 i W i (%)
(continued)
Continuing operations (continued) AR BB ()
Items that may be reclassified HERRgHEESEE
subsequently to profit or loss: HEZHEH
Exchange differences related to B 4Dl S AR R 2
translation of foreign operations T R I 38 25 4 69,381 (8,114)
Cash flow hedge — effective portion BHeERBEEN - A RMEFE
of changes in fair value 8 2 7 A (1,261) -
Income tax effect Fi 3B 253 -
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE A G Al 2 T WAL £
Associates W 2% A7) 24(a) 2,065 -
70,438 (8,114)
Other comprehensive income from KRB R RS B R AR
continuing operations, net of income tax 4 T W 3% 64,635 (7,483)
Discontinued operations DA ILRERY
Items that are or will not be reclassified HESAGETMBEEHSZ
subsequently to profit or loss: JHH :
Equity investments at fair value through RE 2 48 B # A FUAE 2 I8 At
other comprehensive income (non- ZTH AR TR (R WA BR
recycling) ) (6,388) 3,568
Income tax effect Jit 45 Bt g 1,597 (1,791)
Disposal of other financial assets H B At 4 7 O - 638
Surplus on revaluation of office premises, M A AR
net 16 - 60
Income tax effect JT 1 G R 2 37 - (40)
(4,791) 2,435
Items that may be reclassified subsequently ~ HZA[GE T HH 0 JEHE
to profit or loss: HEZIHH -
Exchange differences related to B A b 3 % A e L 2
translation of foreign operations HH R B 30 5 30,766 (6,074)
Release of reserve upon deemed BRAEHBERBEZ
disposal of CTI it A Il 3% (16,629) -
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE A G Al 2 G WAL £
Joint ventures (e 23 1,380 (265)
Other associates NEW N A | 24(a) 6,006 (1,748)
21,523 (8,087)
Other comprehensive income from KBTS EF RIS
discontinued operations, net of income tax A% HAth 2> T e 35 16,732 (5,652)
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N B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
2020 2019
B e I
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt 0T 7T E/nyan
(Restated)
(RRE )
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B it # Bt £ Ac 45 3G fih 4 1 g %
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME
TAX 81,367 (13,135)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME A4 % 1 Y i 48 4
FOR THE YEAR 2,488,645 454,569
Profit attributable to: i B BB T
Shareholders of the Company PN/
Continuing operations e il 14 519,153 216,940
Discontinued operations O ILREER 169,643 128,863
688,796 345,803
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI BRI R Z s 41 1,466,255 -
2,155,051 345,803
Non-controlling interest I e o e i 2R
Continuing operations YR s 233,213 107,400
Discontinued operations DRI RS R 19,014 14,501
252,227 121,901
2,407,278 467,704
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 4 Tl W # 48 % & & 7 -
Shareholders of the Company PN/
Continuing operations PRI 604,728 212,419
Discontinued operations &R ILREER 156,287 121,769
761,015 334,188
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI BAE R Z i 1,466,255 -
2,227,270 334,188
Non-controlling interest I e i e E £
Continuing operations PR R 212,273 104,438
Discontinued operations O IR 49,102 15,943
261,375 120,381
2,488,645 454,569
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

A H

2020 2019
R R R
Note US cents US cents
M &t SE Al FEA
(Restated)
(REH)
EARNINGS PER SHARE AR oy ) JB 5 M AY Z A Tt i P
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 15
Basic and diluted 3 A K i
Continuing operations PR R E T 2.049 0.856
Discontinued operations A ILREE 0.670 0.509
2.719 1.365
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI AR 8 IE R IE Z Weai 5.788 -
8.507 1.365

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 13 to the
financial statements.

Note:

On 1 December 2020, Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. (“CTI”), originally a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of 43 entities that are principally
engaged in swine business from Chia Tai Animal Husbandry Investment (Beijing)
Company Limited (“CTAI”), a related company of the Company, for an aggregate
consideration of RMB28,140 million (equivalent to approximately US$4,312 million).
The consideration was settled by means of issuance of new shares in CTI to CTAI
representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged by such issue. Upon completion of this
transaction on 1 December 2020, CTI is owned as to 35% by the Company and 65% by
CTAL

Accordingly, the financial results of CTI for the period from 1 January 2020 to 30
November 2020 were de-consolidated and presented as “Discontinued operations” in the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. Prior year comparative information has also been restated
to conform with the current year presentation. Financial results of CTI for the month of
December 2020 were equity picked up and shown under “Share of profits and losses of a

35%-owned associate — CTI” on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

AR JBE 2 e G A I S A R R 13 R

Mfat

ERABRE B ARA R (TEXRRE D) > B —RKALAF G A
ZHE AR > R FZRET T — H BRI IE R &R
H)ARAR (TIERER] > —HKARAFRBEAF > POl H435
BB RSB AT WA > A2 281 400 AN R (R R 4
431208 3€50) o MARR E DUIE K88 347 OB B SO > Al IE R
BB BEATR A RIEARICS5% o R ZRET A —HERK
W% > AN A FEA 35%IE KA > JEBR65% A i IE KRB HFFA

Bt s ERBRERRE-ZRE-HA-HEF—H=Z+HILY
[10 0¥ B0 2 S AT A SV 5 R RS i 3 AL I 008 B R 5 4 U5
SRIFAE ) B 2 T D R C AL A B ORI R B 2
B o Py O EAAE RO SR S o IEARBRER R F
A T I B S A R DA 2 3 B MR S A A 4 T W 2 e DT HE
A R 18 2 — R A35% 2 B8 AT - IERRE |25 -
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR OR &

At 31 December 2020 A~ F - &RE+_H=+—H

2020 2019
R e T
Note US$’°000 US$’000
M aE F#C Tt FEoLFoo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I i B B e
Property, plant and equipment LE B N & 16 1,588,640 1,988,328
Investment properties wEWE 17 859 11,904
Land use rights - b 5 W 18 89,129 207,105
Other right-of-use assets Hfth £l WE & A 19 418,173 421,209
Non-current biological assets FEEMAEYE E 20 79,622 66,350
Intangible assets I G 21 - 33,375
Investments in joint ventures REBSENRE 23 35 16,915
Investments in associates T 8 o m) W B 24 2,331,002 145,547
Other financial assets Hfth 4 b & 25 - 17,206
Goodwill S 26 - 35,030
Other non-current assets At I 3% B 65,014 69,918
Deferred tax assets I B IE R 37 8,242 12,154
Total non-current assets BB B E 4,580,716 3,025,041
CURRENT ASSETS B &
Inventories Fety 27 409,167 753,403
Current biological assets B A 20 638,820 571,946
Trade and bills receivables JE W B 5 W ik M 28 123,285 258,011
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FH AT MR K ~ 34 4 S o Ath JE e i 3 29 295,802 295,081
Pledged deposits [REELEE 30 11,896 17,699
Time deposits with maturity over three ) H M= A 2 e R
months 30 1,605 2,293
Cash and cash equivalents Ble kB 4E&SEY 30 535,891 422,364
Total current assets 2 B) B 2,016,466 2,320,797
CURRENT LIABILITIES i Bh £
Trade and bills payables FE A+ & 5 W ok Mo 31 391,224 446,116
Other payables and accruals Fo At A B 3k S T AR E 32 434,101 559,094
Lease liabilities HEAME 35 38,076 36,749
Bank borrowings SRAT AR K 33 306,307 1,174,796
Income tax payables WA B £ A 58,241 21,390
Total current liabilities FAb O R= iy 1,227,949 2,238,145
NET CURRENT ASSETS Ui By & R 788,517 82,652
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A e Y B FUAR
LIABILITIES 5,369,233 3,107,693
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REAETHMRR K
At 31 December 2020 A &R “Z4E+H=+—H

2020 2019
CECBE SBNE
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE E e a7 FoLFoo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I i B £ £
Lease liabilities MR 35 442,471 440,361
Bank borrowings SRAT A 3K 33 829,620 548,180
Corporate bond e X 34 - 11,833
Other non-current liabilities A I 9 B £ A 36 24,882 57,908
Deferred tax liabilities B HE B VE A A 37 39,550 82,373
Total non-current liabilities A Ik W B £ 08 1,336,523 1,140,655
NET ASSETS & 4,032,710 1,967,038
EQUITY BE 5
Equity attributable to shareholders A 2 ) Bk S ME A BE 25
of the Company
Issued capital BB AT A 38 253,329 253,329
Reserves ik f 40 3,048,219 1,216,998
Proposed final dividend R R ] R S 13 246,834 71,947
3,548,382 1,548,274
Non-controlling interest FE e P RE 25 484,328 418,764
TOTAL EQUITY HE £5 48 30 4,032,710 1,967,038

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the AFE __—HF_H_+HMHBRAFREFFHMER

Company on 24 February 2021. RHET DL 8 o
Adirek Sripratak %% %6 Arunee Watcharananan
Director # % Director #H
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2o A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

N AL dHE M2 o4
mEERE K
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ARTRREL
Other
financial
assets
fair value
Share teserve  Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Isued  premium Contributed ~ Capital ~ Merger ~ Hedging (non- revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling ~~ Total
apitll  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  recycling)  reserve funds  reserve  profits dividend Total interest  equity
bikE
RRERE
g 4] i Kk alk i (R R b L ME - KRR AN FEi L 1
Ik EEE  BRE [ ] BlE ERE)  EHRE BEEE  GERE ¥ & 45 [ IOt
Note — USF000  USSO00  USE'000  USSO00  USE'000  USPOO0  USE'000  USPO00  USE'000  USPO00  USE'000  USPO00  USS'000  US§'000  US§000
Kt Erfr Frfr Eifr Eifr Eifr Fifn Eifn Fofr Eifn Fifr Eofr Fifn Fifr Fofr #rfr
(note 40(0)  (note 40(a))  (nore40(g)) ~ (note 400B)) ~ (note 40(c))  (note 40(d)) ~ (note 40(e])
(WEE00) (Hitan) (R0 (BEOL) (RaE0C) (B0 (HaH0e)
At1 January 2020 REBZZE-N-H B339 00 S4B 68T (1613,180) - B 03B BLML (15094) L8TT98 TIOHT L5480M4 418764 1967038
Profit for the year RERH - - - - - - - - - - 155031 - L5050 250001 2401718
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRithERE
Exchange differences on translation SRR RBTI 2
of foreign operations EiEH - - - - - - - - - 90,705 - - 90705 9440 100147
Equity investments at fair value through EalERAREER
other comprehensive income HAT 8 - - - - - - (6,388) - - - - - (6,388) - (6389)
Income tax effect ity bl - - - - - - 1597 - - - - - 1597 - 1597
Cash flow hedge - effectve porion of changes in -+~ HAKREY - AR E%L
fair value Fian - - - - - (893) - - - - - - (893) (368 (1.261)
Income tax effect ity - - - - - 179 - - - - - - 179 T4 153
Surplus on revaluation of ofice premises, net HERERATER 16 - - - - - - - (1142) - - - - (7,14) (A
Income tax effect fiBnye 3 - - - - - - - 1339 - - - - 1339 -1
Share of other comprehensive income of: Bl
Joint ventures ARbE B - - - - - - 1 - - 1359 - - 1380 - 1380
Associates B () - - - - - - - - - 8071 - - 8071 -8
Release of reserve upon deemed disposal of CTI - B EEKBREZ & 4 - - - - - - - - - (16629) - - (16629) - (16629
Total comprehensive income for the year EReilEAN - - - - - (1) @m0 - B8 1501 L0 I35 148866
Acquisiion of subsdiaries R RE AR - - - - (15609) - - - - - - - (15609) 1009 (13,670)
Capital injection by a non-controlling R U HANON
equity holder - - - (%) - - - - - - - - (99) - (%)
Dividend paid to non-controling equity holders % P Fi bl B MK A - - - - - - - - - - - - - (760400 (T6,040)
Special dividend dilec 13 - - () - - - - - - - - - () - (159)
2019 final dividend declared ERCE-MERIRE - - - - - - - - - - - My MM -
2000 interim dividend CECREMIRA 13 - - (4 - - - - - - - - - (4 - (743
2000 fnal dividend proposed RECE-RERURE 13 - — (M6834) - - - - - - - - Med - - -
Decmed disposal of CT] HEEARR i - - -4 -89 (LT (151 - - - (120800) (121800)
Trnsfer inout) #1/() - - - - - - - L) S 60 - - - -
At 31 December 2020 e 3k 2.3 Ul et | 193309 10740¢ S05.00% 33501 (1,634,386 * (T14)* - 5009 009 (074390 3S42486% 68 38381 48438 4030710
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b#% B B &R A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥

=

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AL TR
Other
financial
assets
fair value
Share resetve  Property PRC  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium Contributed ~ Capital ~ Merger (non- revaluation  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  account  Surplus  reserve  reserve recycling)  reserve funds  reserve profits  dividend Total interest equity
SHEE
MR
g [} gl #k aff (RWER h¥ HE BE AR ik F
Bk EEK REE R fi R ERE) EHRE BEEE  WBEE M AMRE AR s WA
Note  US§'000  US§000  US§000  US$'000  US§000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US§000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000 US§'000
Wit #FLfr FEifx Fifr Erfr Erfr Erfr EFifrn Eifa Eifa Eifx Eifx ErTfi Erfrk Eix
(note 40(f)) (note 40(a)) (note 40(b)) (note 40(c)) (note 40(d)) (note 40(e))
(WatH00) (WiE00) (RE00) (i) (Batdod) (Watoe)
At 1 January 2019 REZ-E-H-H 153,319 10740 979,382 12,620 (1,613,900) 133 68924 166,124 (136,331) 1,522,8%9 84443 1355503 346120 1,702,124
Impact on initial application of BRI
IFRS 16 LT %47 - - - - - - - - - (18n) - (181)  (10640)  (385313)
Adjusted balance at REB-RE-A—H
1 January 2019 W 153,329 10740 91938 12,620 (1,613,900) 133 68924 166,124 (136,331) 1494986 84443 1307030 336,081 1,663,711
Profit for the year KRR - - - - - - - - - 35803 - 345803 121,901 467,104
Other comprehensive income for 4 A Jff 2 g -
the year:
Exchange differences on translation ~ SbHE B MBI
of foreign operations R EH - - - - - - - - (12,668) - - (12668 (1,520 (14,188)
Equity investments at fair value REBERAREER
through other comprehensive Hf AT i
income - - - - - 3,568 - - - - 3,568 - 3,568
Income tax effect ERyE 3 - - - - - (1,791) - - - - - (1,791) - (1,791)
Disposal of other financial assets R AR E - - - - - (84) - - - m - 638 - 038
Income tax effect By E 3 - - - - - 0 - - (20) - - - -
Surplus on revaluation of office WERFEHFRE
premises, net 16 - - - - - - 072 - - - 607 - 672
Income tax effect % 37 - - - - - - (1) - - - - (21 - (1)
Share of other comprehensive R Ff 2 ds
income of:
Joint ventures aEbE Ji] - - - - - (36) - - (229) - - (265) - (265)
Associates BaAR 2T - - - - - - - - (1,748) - - (1,748) - (1,748)
Total comprehensive income LY TR
for the year - - - - - 1,677 051 - (14645) 346,305 - 34188 120381 434,569
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — R W A - - - - (19 - - - - - AU - (3,119)
Capital injection by a non- ERitlid BUT AN
controlling equity holder &K - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,058 1,058
Dividend paid to non-controlling % F bl ff i
equity holders [T 43 - - - - - - - - - - - - (39,756 (39,756)
2018 final dividend declared HER-F-NEAMRA - - - - - - - - - - (84443)  (84443) - (84,443)
2019 interim dividend SEOLERARE D - - () - - - - - - - - (%)) - W)
2019 final dividend proposed REZE-NEAMRE 1 - - (117 - - - - - - - 17941 - - -
Transfer of retained earnings of C.P. ~ CPVCAZEAWHEE
Vietnam Corporation (‘CPVC") BA
to share capital - - - 319,554 - - - - - (319,554 - - - -
CTI share capital reorganisation FAREEATA - - - 176559 3,831 (11,03) - (13,033) 31 (196,189) - - - -
Transfr nf{ou) #A/(H) - - - - - - - 319% - (3190 - - - -
At 31 December 2019 REZ-WEF-AZH—H 153309 10740%  8T5453%  608,733* (163,181 (Q215)F  69575%  I3LO4I*  (150,945)* 1,087,798* 94T 1548114 418764 1967038
ES %k

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of US$3,048,219,000 (2019: US$1,216,998,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

solidated Statement of Cash Flows

™ A =
,%/T = Iﬁ ﬁ /Jili =28 %
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

2020 2019
SEOBE 2K
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit FLF FIL T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEWHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax W% A58 i 38
Continuing operations RS EE 941,524 405,453
Discontinued operations IR s R 41 1,708,446 183,787
Adjustments for: RO
Bank and other interest income AT R AR B WA 7 (13,444) (11,762)
Net change in fair value of investment BEWEAREE T FH
properties 7 116 2,615
Net change in fair value of derivative e T HARME
financial instruments i3 1 R 7 12,565 (2,009)
Short-term lease payments O e 00 L 4 T 9 20,598 12,951
Finance costs BB AT 8 129,314 142,399
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment LE RN V- & P 9,16 141,869 128,543
Amortisation of land use rights - H R 2 9,18 4,057 4,688
Depreciation of other right-of-use assets Al 5 BE 2 BT B 9,19 53,621 44,857
Depreciation of biological assets stated at cost less % BAS I B 5t 478 K Sl 8 2k 4%
accumulated depreciation and impairment BiRZ BB EZ I E 9,20 48,505 43,551
Amortisation of intangible assets LS T P& 1] 21 2,819 2,462
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, HEWE ~ KiE Lk
net N 4R 153 9,16 3,012 1,302
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W3 R Tk e e 9,16 - 15,567
Impairment of trade receivables, net JRE Wt 52 5 R ok kA 9,128 1,231 2,569
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and other TR - %4 KA
receivables JRE Wi e 3k kAP 9,129 - 2,589
Net change in fair value of biological assets M R A B 6 (2,820) (105,554)
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI AR IR R E 2 Wt 41 (1,466,255) -
Share of profits and losses of: WAV i ) R s 4
Joint ventures HEk 23 (4,294) (2,597)
Associates I 2% A ] 24(a) (91,161) (26,448)
1,489,703 844,969
Increase in inventories &M (1,968) (123,852)
Increase in biological assets ) ¥ 2 (119,663) (19,808)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills JE Wi 52 50 Rk % S 08 (M) i A
receivables (291,607) 87,737
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TS REK ~ 4% 4 T 3L Al JRE i B 3k
deposits and other receivables (3hm) /A (274,275) 82,702
Increase/(decrease)in trade payables WE £} 52 55 Wk 3 (i) 230,165 (26,877)
Increase in other payables and accruals Al JE AR MRk I R4 2 353,022 36,572
Cash generated from operations REEEZBE 1,385,377 881,443
Short-term lease payments O Ao e 300 L 5 o T 9 (20,598) (12,951)
Interest elements of lease rental paid S AEME 2 B0 8 (49,934) (46,335)
Interest paid SRS (85,940) (103,625)
Income tax paid [BRLRIRETA (205,718) (121,068)
Net cash flows generated from REBHMHZ
operating activities BHEeREFH 1,023,187 597,464
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRETHRER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
2020 2019
“ERORY “ER A
Note US$’000 US$’000
Wit Ean FIL T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REGHZBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment il B3~ B B (445,865) (346,746)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities b 3 B £ A (3,275) (5,244)
Increase in land use rights £ R RE B 18 (4,077) (28,442)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets HAeb IR B g wEwm s/ (W) 18,586 (37,634)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B J A ) 46(a)(xi) (69,216) (9,671)
Deemed disposal of CTI BB IR K3 41 (430,145) -
Dividend received from joint ventures WA ESERE 166 2,531
Dividend received from associates W 2 A W) B S 54,963 6,293
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and WY -~ R Kkt BT aE
equipment 10,816 8,746
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights HH B - R T A K OE 1,256 249
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets H B It 4 0K 7 BT A K0 25 - 1,720
Receipt from PRC government on factories R 5 4 28 iy € # 1o RF BAS: k JE
relocation 30,866 47,311
Interest received SR B 13,444 11,762
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFH MM B &0 R FH (822,481) (349,125)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEWEHZ B e E
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new bank borrowings T 18 SRAT R 30 (c) 2,113,529 1,655,480
Repayment of bank borrowings T3 SRAT A 30 (c) (1,906,336) (1,586,142)
Redemption of corporate bond i I A 2 4 5 30 (c) (11,973) (130,545)
Capital injection from a non-controlling I i o) W 25
equity holder TR A B A - 2,058
Capital element of lease rental paid O AL E M4 2 R &80 35 (43,282) (34,096)
Decrease in pledged deposits S & A 5,222 16,879
Decrease in time deposits with maturity FHABB=MAZ
over three months TE W WA 1,087 12,927
Dividend paid to shareholders of the Company OB T AR F B R (201,364) (110,425)
Dividend paid to non-controlling equity holders O AT I e ) 2 T TRt B, (76,040) (39,756)
Net cash flows used in financing activities A0 ) P ) 2 B R R (119,157) (213,620)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Bl 4 B B4 5 (H W 56 3 4R
CASH EQUIVALENTS 81,549 34,719
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4FHIZ B &R B E&FHD 422,364 392,890
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A B 3 4 B) 2 3 B 31,978 (5,245)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERZBERBEEHD
AT END OF YEAR 30 535,891 422,364
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Notes to Financial Statements

BF 7% R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (the “Company” or “CPP”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
ordinary shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are located at Victoria Place, 5th
Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and 21st
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,
respectively.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”), joint ventures and associates of the Group were
involved in the following activities:

Continuing operations

. (i) poultry farming and (ii) production and sale of

value-added processed food products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”)

° significant investment in an associate operating in the
PRC which is principally engaged in the production
and sale of animal feed and breeding, farming and sale
of swine and sale of pork

. (i) production and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals,
and (iii) production and sale of value-added processed
food products in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam
(“Vietnam”)

o investment and property holding
Discontinued operations

. (i) production and sale of animal feed and (ii)
production and sale of swine food products in the PRC

At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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Ji— A RERE ML AR B A -
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% 35 b B 23 B AL A Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda
B Ay v BB IE 1697 A il h 02 14 o

J AR o A 2 R B SU g 2 A (A [ A 4R
1) ~ AR B A A e BB A ] > T B
ERPIE S/

FREKERE

. W N RIEE (T E ) ()R
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. A v AL B — R A R R R
B ZHEAR LEREFENBY
ARk o BEAH - 7 A G R K B
A

. TP Ak A e (B R ) (i)
SEERL > (i) B - A ER
B MOKEE > DA B (iii) 8 S R m A

. B R S B
ERIEEEXRE

. TP P R (i) 8 B A Rk M (i) E B 1

b E i

Mo REFT_A=+—H > EERZE
A H] 2 H 4% Y I 2 B Ry AR R A B Sk
fICharoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited ([ CPF 1) » J& B4y it %8 B a8 2% 2 5
T ol | A W N U i =
RAEARAF M EHZERE R AT - CPFA—XKH
A Z& B 5 i B SF B Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited ([CPGJ) HKFFHZ AF] o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for office premises, investment properties,
certain biological assets, other financial assets and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value
or at fair value less costs of disposal, where appropriate. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full, except for
the unrealised loss which are eliminated only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit
balance.

A

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of new standards, amendments
to IFRSs and interpretations that are first effective for
the current year. Of these, the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations may be relevant to the
Group:

Amendments to Definition of a Business

IFRS 3
Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
[FRS 16 (early adopted)

Amendments to Definition of Material

IAS 1 and IAS 8

None of the amendments have had a significant financial
effect to the Group. The Group has not applied any new
standard, amendment or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current year.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB issued a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual Framework!

IFRS 3

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as Current or
IAS 1 Non-current?

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
IAS 16 before Intended Use'

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
[AS 37 Contract

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
[FRS 10 and IAS

28 (2011)

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Annual Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,

CHEMESRERNERY KRS E

Ay

WEAMBHRELT A > PEFEHENEE
7 A A R R A~ A RT AR R R > K
FERCFET A= HIEEERRE
B> HLA AR A B B A AR A o e DU B

[llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41!

improvements to

IFRSs 2018-2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that the impact
of adopting the amendment and new standards will have
on the consolidated financial statements are unlikely to be
significant.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

o4 —®E-% 5 FH

AREEG B

194 5% A 5 i TRk P S HESE

#e HI 53455

B El AR B IR A E R

e T gk

2] B w1 e W B SE RN BEE

H16%E Vik- Nl ae Ok

BB E Rt EEMESA — BT A

3T R ERT AR

BB BN REEFERGEL ARG E

10%% M 4 B €r B G E R E

FhHE I 2R 285% B

(2011) & ST

2018-20204F [ B 16 5T 190 5% B 5 i 45 1 ) 5%

T s it 4 o 1) 195 ~ 1B W% B 5 i o e

AF B HISEO%E ~ I W% B 75 it
- B 555 1 6555 AH B R
A1) e 1o 5% T ) 5
4158

1 Mo B R B PR 2 A

R
2 Mo H R R R A A
1

’ ARA TR 2 2 AR T B R A

25 T B IE B0 UCER AN % ST AT oL B AL E
AT B B R R B B A
255 T 28 R A % S T AR o B AR
ST 5 T B R M BT R R o



2.4

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B ER

»

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =
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24 FEEHHEME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement in the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances, in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(ii)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(iii)

the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method, as for associates (note 2.4).
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policies decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are recognised initially at cost. The cost of the
investments includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of equity-accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date
that significant influence commences until the date that

significant influence ceases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
an equity-accounted investee, the carrying amount of the
investment including any long-term interest that forms part
thereof, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(a) has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(ii)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for

the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(f) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(g) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(h) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations of entities under common control are
accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method. Under
the pooling-of-interests method, the assets and liabilities
of the acquiree are stated at their historical carrying values
at the date of acquisition and the difference between the
consideration transferred for a business combination under
common control and the total of (i) the acquisition date
historical net asset values of the acquiree attributable to the
Group and (ii) the pre-acquisition reserves of the acquiree
combined by the Group is accounted for as a contribution
from or a distribution to, as appropriate, holding companies in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Accordingly,
there is no goodwill or a gain on bargain purchase as a result
of a business combination under common control. The results
of the acquiree under a business combination under common
control are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Office premises

Office premises are stated at their open market values on
the basis of annual professional valuations performed at each
financial year end. Changes arising on the revaluation of
office premises are dealt with as movements in the property
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual premise basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the valuation of the office premises over their estimated useful
lives of 30 years to 50 years.

On disposal of an office premise, the relevant portion of the
property revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of other
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after other property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of other property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognised such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
other property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to
33.33%

9% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles and transport facilities

Where parts of other property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

Other property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

2.4

TEEHERESE (&)

M¥E - BERRERTE (5)

At ¥ BERRE (&)

oA 3 ~ W5 B i 2 97 8 7 AR 8 L 3
Al ST AT 5 P 4 S0 DL A G L AR 3 S
SRR ET ST o EIRYTEE PR ) & AR P 8
RUE :

T M 2%%4.5%
W 5 B b AR 6%FE15%
TR~ 3 O A B 10%%33.33%
VR B % 3 % 9%%33.33%

In oAt 3 ~ W K B Z ALBIE H A A A
R TR AR > 4% JE H RESR A B BE 6 Loy
TE % T H A RS B Ty B LTS o
BRAEAE ~ 0B AR BT R AT 5 R R D i
1] S8 DB A PR AT IR e > WA T B > AT

oAt 3 ~ W5 B i S RS0 2 e i 2 AT )
AR Ay M 7 B O O o % e TR
1A f A AU R 2 IhE A R R o R AE AR
b R A o A T A R A3 A M B R
e AR T 25 PO R > T ML B A R A
A A OO BRI T B 2 e

EEIRE

e TREIR M AE B P i 8 - TR
JAE o A TR e A IR 25 A iy 2R R M s 4R
AHR > WA GHPEDTHE o JRAS 645 BB R
A B e T St 0 9 0 A A B R ik
i BERAS o B AR TR 58 R K CRER A BE A
hF o A i TRR 6 B R A RO - W5 X
Ealu iy Pig i

99



100

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the property held as a right-of-use asset which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
period of the retirement or disposal.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
at the date of change in use is accounted for as follows:

(i) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss in the period the
change in use took place.

(ii)  any resulting increase in the carrying amount is

credited to profit or loss, to the extent the increase

reverses a previous impairment loss for that property,
or restores the carrying amount of the property to an
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the property in prior years; and any remaining
part of the increase in the carrying amount is credited
directly to equity in the property revaluation reserve.

On subsequent disposal of the property, the relevant

portion of the property revaluation reserve realised

is transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent customer relationship of the Group
and are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives, from
the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives
used for this purpose are 14-22 years. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets other than land use
rights and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets include swine, poultry and aquatic livestock
and are measured at their fair value less costs of disposal,
except where the fair value cannot be measured reliably or
when the costs are not materially different from the fair value
due to short production cycle, in those cases they are stated
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and where
appropriate, less any accumulated depreciation.

Gains or losses arising from initial recognition of biological
assets at fair value less costs of disposal and from a change in
fair value less costs of disposal of biological assets are included
in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

The cost of biological assets comprises its purchase price and
any costs attributable in raising the biological assets.

For biological assets stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, the
depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write
off the cost of these biological assets over their estimated
productive period of 12 months to 36 months. The expected
productive period of these biological assets is reviewed
regularly, and adjusted when appropriate. The carrying values
of these biological assets are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate that the
carrying values may not be fully recoverable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets, office premises, investment properties,
biological assets stated at fair value less costs of disposal
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

2.4

TEEHERESE (&)

EMEE

YR B - RE ROKE IR A R
TR R AR G B ME A R R BE AT 5 EL
IR Bl E A A 1 B L AR AT T R
AL e 4 R e A S8 TR OK 2 ) W BR A > AE L
A5 DU T % AR AT T 2R e 4R > B
G IR AT ) 3R 1 47 05 B

0 U i R 4 2 AL I DR B B AR B MR ) A
B Qo M O U VR R A B ) 0 T
A A A WA e N R BT R R AR N

Py ¥ R BRAS  A L JE \BR J
E B A AT AT A o

ST 45 A R T B AT T R R R
BB v P 0 E o TR T R A W A TR
WA 1248 H 3608 H DA LA Uk
JRAS Gt B o i S 2 A A T A 7 AR DK
N » R A T BRI AT R -
W W R AT 1 0 o T 2 MR T
A RE R B2 v IR > AT WA AR A

FERMEERE

B B 5 B R A A WA T A
(Brmhe e - wEMT - BEWE - HARME
TR TR AR L A G A ) Y O S A O
BRAh) > M85 R4l A T A o B
T G De] < A A AR R LA 2 8
L B 2 Fo AL 99 B B SR T o W e A
B A5 A ) B P A > B % A R A
B8 S 7 At B K 2 R A W BB o AE L
TEOUT > A W T < 9 4 5 P i 2 B4 2R R
AL HEGE o

103



104

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
IFRS 15 of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

(i) General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (12-month
ECLs). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (lifetime

ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

(ii)  Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

(ii)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9, other than
derivatives, are measured at amortised cost. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

(i)

(ii)

Financial liabilities at amortised costs (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
“Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECLs allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another

from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the

terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such

an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of

the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and

the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify
for cash flow hedge accounting, in which case recognition of
any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item

being hedged.
Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated
with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes
in foreign exchange rates and variable rate borrowings (cash

flow hedges).
Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective portion
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective
portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the
profit of loss.

The amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting
(including when the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting is
discontinued, but the hedged forecast transaction is still
expected to occur, the amount that has been accumulated in
the hedging reserve remains in equity until the transaction
occurs and it is recognised in accordance with the above
policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take
place, the amount that has been accumulated in the hedging

reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss immediately.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the weighted
average basis, and net realisable value after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

(ii)  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(i) when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

(ii) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15. Besides, the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense is
recognised when incurred if the amortisation period of the
asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one
year or less, using the practical expedient in paragraph 94 of

IFRS 15.
Sale of agri-food products

Revenue from the sale of agri-food products is recognised at
the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, i.e., when the products are collected by the
customers from the Group’s premises or when the products are
delivered to the location designated by the customers. The
Group’s sales contracts do not permit sales returns except for
where the products are damaged or defective.

Some contracts for the sale of agri-food products provide
customers with volume rebates. The volume rebates give rise to
variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to
certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during a period exceeds the threshold
specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates,
the most likely amount method is used.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

L ON -+
KREBEFEHZKA

R A SIS A B R RS A P I > &
TR WA S 8 T A R DL 40 % 45 4 R
BRI - BL% 3T 6 IR O e

B A I R AR A T R o U DLACAR
VA FELIOT % B it R T S P IR T A AR
L BUGwE o AT AU R AE & 7] BA 46 5 4l 5
B o Sl 2 B R o L E A A AR A B R
T 5 P B 1% e 0] g e I AR T RS 1 B AR TR
EHCINRR S AN o4

ST % P A ik SR G AR A S R 2
¥ 300 R 2 — 4 o R A ) o PR R G A
et SR 1SR BEVE S B I RE L Z 31 > A
7 35 TR R0 Y R T B 32 ) (R o b
Bl > i TR 400 W 389 S5 e A S 3 301 )
AR AR > ACHE [ HE A R B B 4 o
R 5515 5% B ¥ 94 1 B M B R AR i 2
I e 8 2 B 3

BHUEGRHHE

B R A Al Y WO\ A B E T D RE RS T R
PR TE R > B AR 5 AR 45 I R 5 SR I i
IRF B AE FE AR AR P R I o R b
RS B Fa A > AR 81 B A A R
BE -

U RO BB I Ay R PR T i
Pram o P E A 7 AR o

(i) Ry

A B0 TS A it W RO S ) AL
AW FIAR > W] 1 B B8 5 4R A3t 9 4t
BT o P 0E % P AT S
TH o 5 7 At TEOUI R AT 411 #l T AR
L > 8 FH di 7T BB Y T 35 o

113



114

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
(including directors) is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share, if any. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, and up
to the reporting date, the Company had no share options
outstanding.

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC government,
subsidiaries of the Group in mainland China are required to
make specific contributions to the state-controlled retirement
plan at rates not more than 16% (before 1 May 2020: 20%)
(the percentage to be determined by each of the government
of the provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities)
of the total salaries of the employees in mainland China.
Certain provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities are
overburdened by the pension insurance due to higher number
of retired people, it is required to make specific contributions
at rates higher than 16% (before 1 May 2020: 20%) (the
percentage to be determined by each of the government of
the provinces, autonomous regions or municipalities) of the
total salaries of the employees upon approval of the ministry
of labour and the ministry of finance. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to the retired employees.
The employees of the subsidiaries are entitled to a monthly
pension at their retirement dates. The subsidiaries have no
further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions.

Severance allowance

The severance pay to employees in Vietnam is accrued at the
end of each reporting period for Vietnamese employees who
have more than 12 months in service up to 31 December
2008 at the rate of one-half of the average monthly salary for
each year of service up to 31 December 2008 in accordance
with the Labour Code, the Law on Social Insurance and
related implementing guidance in Vietnam. Commencing
from 1 January 2009, the average monthly salary used in this
calculation is revised at the end of each reporting period
using the average monthly salary of the 6-month period up
to the reporting date. Any changes to the accrued amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Pursuant to Law on Social Insurance effective from 1 January
2009, a subsidiary of the Group in Vietnam and its employees
are required to contribute to an unemployment insurance
fund managed by the Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The
contribution to be paid by each party is calculated at 1%
of the lower of an employee’s basic salary and 20 times the
general minimum salary level as specified by the Vietnam
government from time to time. With the implementation of
the unemployment insurance scheme, the Group is no longer
required to provide severance allowance for the service period
after 1 January 2009.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. The
capitalisation rate for the year is based on the actual cost of
the related borrowings. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits or contributed surplus
within the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollar, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period and
differences are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are currencies other than the
United States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss are translated into United States dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of the exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries, which arise throughout the year are translated
into United States dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic, operating and/or other characteristics.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and other financial assets at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level I:  Based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3:  Based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic area
of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax profit
or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain
or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

A

2.4
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Notes 16(e), 17(b), 20(e) and 48 contain information about
the assumptions relating to valuation of office premises,
investment properties, biological assets and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainties are
as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount when events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of
the assets, or, where appropriate, the cash generating
unit to which they belong, is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at the
reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal. For the
estimation of value in use, the Group’s management
estimates future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

On 1 December 2020, CTI, originally a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of
43 entities that are principally engaged in swine business
from CTAI, a related company of the Company, for an
aggregate consideration of RMB28,140 million (equivalent
to approximately US$4,312 million). The consideration was
settled by means of issuance of new shares in CTI to CTAI
representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged by such
issue. Upon completion of this transaction on 1 December
2020, CTI is owned as to 35% by the Company and 65%
by CTAI (note 41). The Group continues to operate three
operating segments, namely, the China agri-food segment, the
Vietnam agri-food segment and the investment and property
holding segment (collectively referred to as the “Continuing
Operations”). Prior year comparative segment information has
been restated to conform with the current year presentation.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services:

Continuing operations

° the China agri-food segment is principally engaged in
poultry farming, and production and sale of value-added
processed food products in the PRC;

° significant investment in an associate operating in the
PRC which is principally engaged in the production
and sale of animal feed and breeding, farming and sale
of swine and sale of pork;

° the Vietnam agri-food segment is principally engaged
in (i) production and sale of animal feed, (ii) breeding,
farming and sale of livestock and aquatic animals, and
(iii) production and sale of value-added processed food
products in Vietnam; and

° the investment and property holding segment is
principally engaged in leasing properties owned by the
Group and investments in group companies.

Discontinued operations

o the China feed and swine food segment is principally
engaged in (i) production and sale of animal feed and
(ii) production and sale of swine food products in the
PRC.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Discontinued operations (continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance
costs on bank borrowings and corporate bond are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and deferred tax assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank borrowings, corporate bond,
income tax payables and deferred tax liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at a
point in time when our customer obtains control of promised
goods, i.e. when the products are collected by the customers
from our premises or when the products are delivered to
the location designated by the customers. Disaggregation of
revenue from major product lines is disclosed in notes 4(a)
and 5. Disaggregation of revenue by geographical location of
customers is disclosed in note 4(b)(i).

The remaining performance obligation is part of a contract
that has an original expected duration of one year or less,
therefore, such information is not disclosed as a practical

expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15.
(a) Reportable operating segments

The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information
for the Group’s reportable operating segments from
continuing operations for the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

4  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 RETEER (E)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEBRKEIE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020

BEZZFFET A= HIREE

Investment
China Vietnam  and property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
w4 WHEN  REERDE
TES B mEH e ok
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
EnFi EI o Ee o EIe o
Segment revenue 2 EWRA
Sales to external customers HETHREF 855,934 3,476,772 233 4,332,939
Intersegment sales iz AP 2,215 403 - 2,618
858,149 3,477,175 233 4,335,557
Reconciliation: W
Elimination of intersegment sales SM I 8 K 8 (2,618)
Consolidated revenue FEAalA M
Segment results ARER
The Group AREE (28,779) 966,790 (13,286) 924,725
Share of profits and losses of: JE Al i A1) s R -
Joint ventures - - (50) - (50)
A 35%-owned associate — CTI —FM35% 2 B8 A H
—EAR# 66,450 - - 66,450
Other associates Ho AT 2% A v (226) - - (226)
37,445 966,740 (13,286) 990,899
Reconciliation: HEIEA
Bank interest income BATH B A 6,449
Finance costs on bank borrowings SRAT B ok 2 B % AR (55,815)
Elimination of intersegment results SRR 2 SRR A (9)
Profit before tax e 5 i i A 941,524
Other segment information Hofb 7 R
Depreciation and amortisation P R 56,433 139,467 1,046 196,946
Capital expenditure* AR B S 110,855 187,406 44 298,305
Additions of other non-current assets, net: B 34 J: b I it B % A 4 ¢
Acquisition of subsidiaries B O 2 )
— Property, plant and equipment S E WV EL 23,915 - - 23,915
— Other non-current assets - KR E 5,059 - - 5,059
Non-current biological assets FEE AW E & - 75,718 - 75,778
Other right-of-use assets JCft i R O (362) 57,945 - 57,583
Other non-current assets S I B 2,183 4,886 - 7,069
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(a)

Reportable operating segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Including additions to property, plant and

equipment and land use rights, but excluding

assets from acquisition of subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2020

ReETBER R

(a) HERLESE ()

BEZFFHETA=Z1T—HIRE

J ()

* BAGYE - W5 B i K
5 FHHE Z 0T 5 > BOR (45 WO
FOF B 2 ) i A 2 R o

REFZEEFZH=1—H

Investment
China Vietnam  and property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
I R 4K WHRE  RERDE
BmER BREH IR ET k]
US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
Enfi EI o #EL T FE T
Segment assets AR 3,771,146 2,203,163 477,468 6,458,371
Reconciliation: WETEE
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2358 [ 2 ME Witk #6 8 (418,829)
Unallocated assets RATE E 557,634
Total assets Mg 6,597,182
Segment liabilities A BALR 984,032 761,563 3,988 1,749,583
Reconciliation: AHEEE
Elimination of intersegment payables 3 35 ) 22 W A8k K B (418,829)
Unallocated liabilities Ao FE 1,233,718
Total liabilities AR ﬂ
Other segment information HAb G B
Investments in joint ventures REBAENTE - 35 - 35
Investments in associates R AR R E 2,331,002 - - 2,331,002

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

125



126

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N BB R A 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
4  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEIFERE)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEBRKEIE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2019 (Restated) BE_Z-WF+HA=+—HILF
BE (R EF)
Investment
China Vietnam  and property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
R R MR RS BERME
RS BMmEH e & A
US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
FIL T FIL T Fr T Eomon
Segment revenue AERA
Sales to external customers HETHRER 713,712 2,781,298 230 3,495,240
Intersegment sales SRR IR 2 B 1,244 1,029 - 2,173
714,956 2,182,321 230 3,497,513
Reconciliation: WEEE
Elimination of intersegment sales SR 8 4 8 (2,273)
Consolidated revenue HEAERA 3,495,240
Segment results AEER
The Group N 48,138 429,559 (9,070) 468,627
Share of profits and losses of: WAl i ) I B 4R,
Joint ventures ABA%E - (37) - (37)
Other associates AT E A H (58) - -
48,080 429,522 (9,070) 468,532
Reconciliation: WEEHE -
Bank interest income SRATHR B A 1,330
Finance costs on bank borrowings SRAT Ak 2 A 2 AR (64,390)
Elimination of intersegment results Rz E 8 (19)
Profit before tax 3 58 i ¥ ) 405,453
Other segment information HAb G B
Depreciation and amortisation P8 R B 49,696 127,216 1,045 178,017
Capital expenditure* B 86,254 181,548 159 267,961
Additions of other non-current assets, net: 57 35 3 s I i B B A A ¢
Non-current biological assets FHEE G E - 42,457 - 42,457
Other right-of-use assets JEAb A 17 106,184 - 106,201
Other non-current assets Sl IR B 213 14,420 - 14,043
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4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4 RKREIEEHR(H)

(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWEHRKEDE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2019 (Restated) (continued) BE_Z-WFE+HA=+—HILF
B (RES]) (5)
* Including additions to property, plant and * BRI - BB I & L
equipment and land use rights. 5 I RE =2 7 1 o
At 31 December 2019 W_F—-NFE+_HA=Z+—H
Investment
China Vietnam  and property
agri-food agri-food holding
operations operations operations Total
I R 4K WHRE  RERDE
BmER BREH IR ET k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000
EnFi EI o Ea EIe o
Segment assets AR 2,789,062 2,035,781 436,043 5,261,486
Reconciliation: W fiEH
Elimination of intersegment receivables 433 [ 2 JE Wit 3 1% 8 (370,158)
Unallocated assets R B G E 454,510
Total assets W 5,345,838
Segment liabilities SR 1,224,729 681,527 4,130 1,910,386
Reconciliation: WETEE
Elimination of intersegment payables 3 35 ) 22 M A8k K B (370,158)
Unallocated liabilities Ao FE 1,838,572
Total liabilities AR M
Other segment information HAb G B
Investments in joint ventures REBAENTE 16,713 202 - 16,915
Investments in other associates Tl B A B BB 145,547 - - 145,547
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
4  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 REFEER(E)
(continued)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers from (i) KEFBEEEREBIREFZ
continuing operations KA
2020 2019
SEOEE U
US$’°000 US$°000
FEoLF o FoLFo
(Restated)
(E5)
Mainland China o 5] K B 855,660 712,913
Vietnam o] 3,406,720 2,720,978
Elsewhere e Ath b 70,559 61,349
4,332,939 3,495,240
The revenue information shown above is based LBV E R T %% P A b
on the location of the customers. S HE o
(i) Non-current assets (i)  HFHBEE
2020 2019
SEoRE RN
US$’°000 US$°000
i i FLF
Mainland China o B K e 2,890,684 1,909,582
Vietnam o ges] 1,189,575 1,026,309
Elsewhere At b 5 492,215 59,790
4,572,474 2,995,681
The non-current assets information shown LB Z Ik B R TR
above is based on the location of assets and ARS8 > WA EHFE I
excludes other financial assets and deferred tax & B P TR SEBLIE B E o

assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
REVENUE 5 WA
An analysis of revenue from continuing operations is as WA > IS R AR B FR A R S B
follows: SIATIE ¢
2020 2019
TRTRE ZERUE
US$°000 US$°000
BV FL T I
(Restated)
(EF)
Revenue from contracts with customers FKEHEFEHZ A
(within the scope of IFRS 15) (1 15 % i 765 R 75 2 1
155819 # A7)
Sales of goods from: BB R -
China agri-food operations W R AR R
— Farm business — B ER 528,406 434,809
— Food business —BEMER 327,527 278,903
Vietnam agri-food operations R AR
— Feed business — i BL 2 7 898,487 887,113
— Farm business — R EH 2,422,843 1,783,777
— Food business —BEMER 155,443 110,408
4,332,706 3,495,010
Rewvenue from other sources VS I=EN T
Rental income from investment and property & M4y £ E%
holding operations ZHEKRA 233 230
4,332,939 3,495,240
NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF BIOLOGICAL &6 EYEENARBEZEEFERE

ASSETS

Net change in fair value of biological assets represents the
difference in fair value from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. Net fair value change consists of (i) negative realised fair
value changes of US$257,748,000 (2019: US$152,772,000)
in respect of biological assets held as at 1 January 2020 and
(ii) positive unrealised fair value changes of US$260,568,000
(2019: US$258,326,000) in respect of biological assets stated
at fair value as at 31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
7  OTHER INCOME, NET 7 HtWAF#E
An analysis of other income from continuing operations, net, RS EBEZHMBBRAFHEIMWMT :
is as follows:
2020 2019
SEoEE S
US$°000 US$°000
E e By an
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Bank interest income SRAT R BB A 6,449 1,330
Other interest income HoAlF) B W A 5,480 1,353
Rental income MERA 303 1,286
Government grants B RF A B 8,004 1,654
Income from sale of consumables and packaging %€ ¥4 S 2 2 A B
materials 7,498 5,607
Net change in fair value of investment WEWEN LS EEE
properties (note 17) (Btat17) (116) (368)
Net change in fair value of derivative financial 74 4x il 1. H 2 fo {6 % B i 401
instruments (12,565) 2,009
Foreign exchange differences, net A BT S 2 LR AR 11,653 2,079
Income from early termination of lease contracts #& 4 ILF & & F 2 W2 3,016 -
Others HoAth 4,185 380
33,907 15,330
Government grants included above are subsidies or incentives Lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%@%* B 2 3 R
from the government in respect of certain investments of the }ﬁiﬁyﬂﬂ H E@ﬁ??&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁb ° ﬁﬁﬁ
Group in the agricultural industry and areas promoted by the b S5 BT Al Bl 3 S0 AT ] 1% AR JE AT Eg{%#ﬂj%
government in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions I Wﬁa%%ﬁ%ﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁitﬂ I AR T
or contingencies relating to these grants. Government iy ’AEU@*é"\m;‘% o BB R DL R Z IR SE A
grants received for which related expenditure has not yet (HiE32536) -
been undertaken are included in deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position (notes 32 and 36).
8 FINANCE COSTS 8 B 3 B AR
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as Fr U B B A AT AN
follows:
2020 2019
ZRTRE G SRS
US$°000 US$°000
FIL T8 FL T T
(Restated)
(R HF)
Interest expense on bank borrowings AT 2P B #EH 58,625 69,336
Interest expense on lease liabilities MEAKZNEEB 48,892 45,426
Less: Interest expense capitalised* W AR AR (2,810) (4,9406)
104,707 109,816
* Interest expense was capitalised at interest rates based on the respective * F B E G AL T3 4% Sk ik 2 R 3.5%

loan facilities of 3.5% — 7.0% per annum (2019: 5.2% — 7.0%).
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9

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is

BR Bt A 3% A

SR T AR SR B BB R A AL AT By

arrived at after charging/(crediting): (F§FA) T34 :
2020 2019
e e 22 ZE N
Note US$’000 US$’000
Kt L Tt FL T I
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Cost of inventories sold O EEE A 3,051,310 2,796,044
Depreciation of property, plant and LE B Y & & P
equipment 16 99,239 90,590
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb i RE 2 B 18 956 2,409
Depreciation of other right-of-use assets -l fii FI i & & 2 P78 19 48,246 41,461
Depreciation of biological assets stated at 3% B A TR 2 51 H7 8 K IR A4
cost less accumulated depreciation and BARBIRZ LW EE
impairment Z e 20 48,505 43,557
Impairment of trade receivables, net TE W &2 5 W K U9 A T3 A 28(a) 1,231 2,569
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and  FAA}EREK ~ 324 S H s fE
other receivables W M 3 A - 2,589
Impairment of property, plant and W3~ W Bk i =2 A
equipment 16 - 15,567
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant MM ¥ - WE &R
and equipment, net WG, (s ) A 665 (23)
Lease payments of short-term lease and RO AL A B
leases of low-value assets exempted from KA EEEME WM E
capitalisation £+ 3k 19(b) 13,905 5,481
Auditors’ remuneration A% S0 T 4 1,703 1,239
Rental income MEBRA (536) (1,516)
Employee benefit expenses (including fRERmA X (BHE#ESE
directors’ emoluments — note 10): T 4 — Bt sE10) -
— Wages, salaries and benefits in kind —-TE -HEK
FEBL & 25 346,802 256,953
— Pension scheme contributions — B4 it 3 6,785 5,224
353,587 262,177
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

10

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 EZME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) A BRG] SE383 ()R AT (W
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the TR BB BRI e > N4 P
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
B R
we EBENE  BIKERR 184 ok
Note US$’000 US$°000 US$°000 U8$°000 US$°000
Wit Fi i FiL i Fi i ELFI FL i
Year ended 31 December 2020 T 1
FERZF—HIEEE
Executive directors: Bl
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont NS - - - - -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak Bk - - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont W - - - - -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont LI (ii) - - - - -
M. Bai Shanlin HEMIEE - 963 - 424 1,387
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg s - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan & 1 - - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping TRYEE - 957 - 424 1,381
- 1,920 - 848 2,768
Non-executive directors: FBfHEE
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont iR - - - _ _
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe W E— 4 - - _ _ _
Independent non-executive directors: B FEHATEH
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej J6 4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari Vimooktayon & £ 31 - - - 31
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo WA 4 (iif) 31 - - - 31
Professor Dr. Pongsak Angkasith Pongsak Angkasith#( % (vi) 18 - - - 18
General Udomdej Sitabutr Udomdej Sitabutriff & (vi) 18 - - - 18
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung TR S (iv) 15 - - - 15
Mr. Sombat Deo-isres Sombat Deo-isresie A (v) 15 - - - 15
Mr. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda ThanitculJE 4 (v) 15 - - - 15
174 - - - 174
Total directors’ emoluments EEME G 174 1,920 - 848 2,942

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R



10

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 ES=#M< (&)
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Bonus Total
Fi e R
e EBENE  RIEEEHR 84 okl
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000
Mt FLFr Em FrFi ELFr FLFr
Year ended 31 December 2019 BEZZ-NE
FIAZF—HIREE
Executive directors: WrESE:
M. Dhanin Chearavanont Bl A (i) - 530 - - 530
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont PN - - - - -
Mr. Adirek Sripratak B3k - - - _ _
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont EiE I - - - - -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont O ik 2k (ii) - - . _ _
Mr. Bai Shanlin HEREE - 919 11 355 1,285
Mr. Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg Sooksunt Jiumjaiswanglerg - - - - -
Mrs. Arunee Watcharananan Arunee Watcharananan® 1 - - - - -
Mr. Yu Jianping FRFRE - 916 18 355 1,289
- 1,365 29 710 3,104
Non-executive directors: FULESE:
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont R - - - - -
Mr. Yoichi Lkezoe R E— S - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B HITH S :
Mr. Ma Andrew Chiu Cheung B R A (iv) 31 - - - 31
Mr. Sombat Deo-istes Sombat Deo-isres 4 (v) 31 - - - 31
M:r. Sakda Thanitcul Sakda Thanitcul % 4 (v) 31 - - - 31
Mr. Vinai Vittavasgarnvej Vinai Vittavasgarnvej 56 4 31 - - - 31
Mrs. Vatchari Vimooktayon Vatchari VimookayonZ 1: 31 - - - 31
155 - - - 155
Total directors’ emoluments EEMEBaH 155 2,365 29 710 3,259
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N BB R A 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 $R & B A
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10 EEMS (@)
Notes: ik -
(i) Resigned as executive director effective from 10 May 2019. (i) BERATER S R NWERATHER-
(i) Appointed as executive director effective from 1 June 2019. (ii) WREBPTHEF S RF—NEASH—HA
2 o
(iii) Appointed as independent non-executive director effective from 1 (iii) WRICHB L IERTES » R R RE—H—
January 2020. H AR -
(iv) Retired as independent non-executive director effective from the (iv) BAEBLIEATH S » RO RENH AL H R
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 AT 2 A W R AR R B [ ] Z AR R 48
June 2020 (“AGM 2020”). PN CEE
(v) Resigned as independent non-executive directors effective from the (v) BB IEHATES » R RERFEFEKR
conclusion of the AGM 2020. AR AR o
(vi) Appointed as independent non-executive directors son 6 June 2020. (vi) MBI FENHANB R B LI RAiT#
Ho
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments WRE_FRETZH=Z1T—HIREE
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to ACSR [ 3 S0 ST AT A ujﬁj’%ﬁﬂﬂj\i
join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of AR T 8 A i A\ A 35 T AR g 2 R G 4 R Al
office (2019: nil), and there was no arrangement under which fE (ZF—JUAE « %) » I 36 6 38 35 ik B sl Il
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2019: R RALMT & 2 ZHE (U ) -
nil).
11 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11 EUGEESHFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two BN TR H R B SR (2R
(2019: two) directors. Details of their emoluments are set out A 2fn) B > K4 2 5 TR bk
in note 10 above. The emoluments of the remaining three FERELO o R F3AL (ZF—JUusE : 3fL) FEH# %
(2019: three) non-directors are as follows: ZMemT
2020 2019
SECEE SE
US$’000 US$°000
F L FiL Sy an
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind F - H A K IR 4 F 25 2,923 2,805
Bonus #E 4 1,174 1,168
4,097 3,973
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below:

US$1,090,001 to US$1,154,000 (equivalent to
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000)

US$1,218,001 to US$1,282,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000)

US$1,282,001 to US$1,346,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

US$1,346,001 to US$1,410,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000)

US$1,603,001 to US$1,667,000 (equivalent to
HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000)

B AR

»

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

11

TfuBEHMES (&)

B T T JE O B A9 AN R LT A0 4
mE

1,090,0013& € %1,154,0003€ J&

(FH % J*8,500,001 #% & &

9,000,000% 7T )
1,218,0013& 7€ %1,282,0003€ J&

(FH % 29,500,001 #% & &

10,000,000% )
1,282,0013& 7€ %1,346,0003€ J&

(1% $410,000,001 3 5C &

10,500,000% )
1,346,0013& € % 1,410,0003€ J&

(1% $410,500,001 3 5C &

11,000,000 )
1,603,0013& 7€ %1,667,0003€ J&

(HH % #412,500,001 ¢ &

13,000,000% )

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments was

paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees of

the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

as compensation for loss of office (2019: nil).

The above information of five highest paid employees of the

Group took into account both continuing operations and

discontinued operations.
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2020 2019
—RoRE BN
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
1# A % H 1E 5 % H

1 _

- 1

- 1

1 1

1 _

REREZFZEZET A= HIREE
A 4F5 ) SIf 0 S Ak T < A e s 7 TN O L 2 A
iy —= AL > DA% 8 A A 458 P s A o A A 2
A 2 7R BRI 5 AR A (% — JLAE - ) o

DA A 458 I A S e 8 T O L 2 R
BRSSO IR A8 28 o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

12

INCOME TAX 12

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in
Hong Kong during the year (2019: nil).

Subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Vietnam are subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) and 20% (2019:
20%) respectively on their taxable income according to the
PRC and Vietnam corporate income tax laws. In accordance
with the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC and
Vietnam, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and
Vietnam enjoy various income tax exemptions or reductions.

=

Fre®t

AR TP A A B R A A A W AT o R R
WA 5 Bt DLAR T AR 45 JBE PO AR A8 R 74 B 488
SR ) o

R 9 v 1B T A S T A BB o Y K
8 2 B 2N E R R E SR e A 43 B 5 B
5% (F—JubE : 25%) K20% (B —
AR 1 20%) SR A o MR R I KRR =2 A
B 0 5~ B B 0 ) o A [ o e e e
T A R A TR T R R A o

2020 2019
SEoBE S RE
US$’000 US$°000
Ve For T T
(Restated)
(FEF)
Current — the PRC AAE —
Charge for the year ENC ] 33,490 20,970
Under/(over)-provision in prior years DEEED (£)5HR 8 (251)
Current — Vietnam AR — W
Charge for the year A4 JE S 168,764 55,184
Under-provision in prior years VA AR BE At 4R 4,981 -
Deferred (note 37) WAL (M iE37) (18,085) 5,210
Total tax expense from continuing operations  AN4E JE 3K H #  R & E 7 2 BlIE M
for the year S 189,158 81,113
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
INCOME TAX (continued) 12 FieHi (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense from continuing T ] et (AR ] A ) A
operations applicable to profit before tax at the statutory tax BRGSO OB R G5 SM 2k B Fr i g
rates for the PRC and Vietnam in which the Group principally EBBRB LR LEHBER (ke
operates to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a BR)ZEAMMEBEZ MG ERINWT
reconciliation of the applicable tax rates (i.e. statutory tax
rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
2020 2019
“ERORE I SR
US$°000 % US$’000 %
F0Fi FILFIT
(Restated)
(B 5)
Profit before tax e G 36 941,524 405,453
Tax expense at statutory tax rate e E BLAET FI B S 195,143 20.7 19,808 19.7
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or P € A 0 IR L R LA
enacted by local tax authority ZBIKBR (30,313) (3.2) (9,974) (2.5)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on F AR M o O A
the distributable profit of the Group’s W43 U T S R
subsidiaries in the PRC 10% 2% % 11,852 13 10,279 25
Adjustments in respect of current AT IR A A S R B R
tax of prior years #® 4,989 0.5 - -
Profits and losses attributable to JEAL & 8 A 3 B8 A A
joint ventures and associates i A R ks (10,934) (1.2) (2,701) (0.7)
Income not subject to tax T B (25,943) (2.8) (20,401) (5.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax YR 5 E 13,524 1.4 22,484 5.6
Tax losses not recognised RETERR %GR 39,579 4.2 1,289 1.8
Tax losses from prior years utilised B DL AE AL s 4 (8,081) (0.8) (5,690) (1.4)
Others Jfe (658) (0.1) 19 0.0
Tax expense at the Group' s effective tax %A 1 BB R T HAY
rate 85 5% i 189,158 20.0 81,113 20.0

The share of income tax attributable to associates from
continuing operations amounting to US$4,472,000 (2019
(restated): nil), are included in “Share of profits and losses

of associates” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

13

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

DIVIDENDS 13 KRE
2020 2019
R R —“E N
US$’000 US$°000
L Tt FKILT T
Special — HK$0.008 (equivalent to Ly | Y )
approximately US 0.103 cents) (2019: nil) 8 55 B 0.008 % IC (FHZE A 4
per ordinary share and convertible 0.103%Al) (=& —Ju4E : )
preference share 25,983 -
Interim — HK$0.03 (equivalent to ) I 5 B A AT R AR S Ik
approximately US 0.385 cents) (2019: 0.033 7T (FH 551 #10.3853A1ll)
HK$0.008 (equivalent to approximately (ZF—Ju4 : 0.008%# 70
US 0.103 cents)) per ordinary share and (FH 2508 #90.10335410) )
convertible preference share 97,434 25,982
Proposed final — HK$0.076 (equivalent to BRI — 4 B B &
approximately US 0.974 cents) W]t JBE 4 A 1B 0.076 ¥ G
(2019: HK$0.024 (equivalent to (FH &3 #70.97436410)
approximately US 0.308 cents)) per ordinary ~ (ZZ&F—Ju4 : 0.024#5 70
share and convertible preference share (FH 45 1 #10.308FA1l1) ) 246,834 717,947
370,251 103,929
The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 BEZFRFET A= HIREEZ R

December 2020 is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
total amount of the proposed final dividend was calculated
based on the number of ordinary shares and convertible

WHEFHH -

preference shares of the Company in issue on the date of this

annual report.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

14 PROFIT BEFORE NET CHANGES IN FAIR 14
VALUE OF BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Certain biological assets of a subsidiary and an associate

of the Group are measured at their fair value less costs of

disposal. Net change in fair value of biological assets is

included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income. Had these biological assets stated at cost, the profit

attributable to shareholders of the Company from continuing

operations for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
have been US$510,903,000 (31 December 2019 (restated):

US$153,651,000).

EMEEAARERHFERZER

—RTAFA L —REE AR 25 T4
Wy R T R AR B ARG R - SRR A
RS EMEEARMEZEE T -
BEZEMEERRARSR  BE R
EFZH=Z4— B IR T AR A R BR
ZF B AR SR v I A 54%1,090.3 85 3£ o0
(ZE2—WFE+H=+—H EEF]) : &

5,365.1#3E70) o

2020 2019
TRTRE ZRUE
Note US$’000 US$’000
A BV FIL T
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Profit attributable to shareholders of the [ J&§ P AN A w2
Company from continuing operations T AR 8 B 2 B B 519,153 216,940
Less: e
Effect of net changes in fair value of W EEA RAEEE)
biological assets of FHUE B E
— a subsidiary ——FXFNATH 6 (1,404) (63,289)
—a 35%-owned associate — CTI ——FKAG35%Z &
A - EREE (6,846) -
(8,250) (63,289)
Profit attributable to shareholders of the A4 % & 2 ft{H 5% Bl 15 41
Company from continuing operations A8 T i N
before effect of net changes in fair value B ZFFHKBEKZ
of biological assets Yz H) 510,903 153,651
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

15

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

¥ B B & R & 7

15

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

and convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data:

RATRRREML Z2ERER

g SR HE A R 4 i ) 2 BB A A R B
WAL 47 P ¥ M) R 47 1 L R AT 2 3 90 B B T 4
I A5 51 Bt T B - 2 B o

B A A e 0 i ) T AL DL T R R

2020 2019
e e 22 “E g
US$’000 US$°000
FIL T FIL T T
(Restated)
(FREF)
Earnings it 1
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders i i 5t 38 43 Ji Bk A J% 3 3 %5 A1) =2
of the Company, used in the basic and 22 B B SRS 4 A s R AR
diluted earnings per share calculation,
arising from:
— Continuing operations —FHERE 519,153 216,940
— Discontinued operations (note 41) —ORIL RS (M it4l) 169,643 128,863
— Gain on deemed disposal of CTI (note 41) — B B IE R 2 sk
(Mfit41) 1,466,255 -
2,155,051 345,803
2020 2019
SECEE CFJUE
Shares i 3y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FH O B354 % 5 A T i 9 365 R =2
and convertible preference shares in issue AAE BBEAT I I8 B T e B
during the year, used in the basic and diluted 18 Jg % i HE ~F 35 4

earnings per share calculation

25,332,914,980

25,332,914,980
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 W% BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and ~ Motor vehicles
Office Industrial Plant and office  and transport Construction
premises buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
R ik
EL &5 TH#T e B B Rt s i HRIR Eak|
Note US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$$'000 US$’000 US$°000
Wi ELTFx FLFx FLTx FLTx FLTx ELTx ELTx
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (e)) and (c))
(Wita)Rte)  (Witb)R() (Wit b))
At 1 January 2020: REBZBE-A—H:
Valuation it 82,026 - - - - - 82,026
Cost Bk - 1,088,810 1,174,128 189,439 34,702 344,986 2,832,065
Accumulated depreciation and Ziti B R
impairment - (314,556) (469,397) (117,856) (23,954) - (925,763)
Net carrying amount it 82,026 774,254 704,731 71,583 10,748 344,986 1,988,328
Net carrying amount: IR A
At 1 January 2020 REZZRE—-A—H 82,026 774,254 704,731 71,583 10,748 344,986 1,988,328
Continuing operations HHEEER
Additions R - 9,751 7,889 11,849 1,259 267,557 298,305
Deficit on revaluation, net A FER (7,142) - - - - - (7,142)
Acquisition of subsidiaries B B 24 ) 46(a)(xi) - 16,416 3,303 3,395 208 593 23,915
Depreciation provided during the year — 4E 3 # 9 (947) (34,603) (47,632) (14,338) (1,719) - (99,239)
Transfer in/(out) A/ () - 91,599 55,422 13,320 8,027 (168,368) -
Transfer from investment properties WHRENE 17 - 4,058 - - - - 4,058
Disposals h - (4,201) (1,737) (754) (22) - (6,714)
Exchange realignment HE 34 4 324 7,161 23,217 1,216 305 6,109 38,332
Discontinued operations CRILSEEE
Additions RE - 14,223 7,022 3,798 1,822 128,463 155,328
Acquisition of a subsidiary Rt — K W A 41(e)(xi) - 1,144 2,532 230 96 35 4,037
Depreciation provided during the year  4E g7 #7 # (515) (13,887) (21,491) (5,410) (1,327) - (42,630)
Transfer in/(out) HWA/ (1) - 12,393 16,496 1,208 46 (30,143) -
Transfer to investment properties I RGN E 17 - (132) - - - - (132)
Disposals h - (3,388) (2,645) (909) (172) - (7,114)
Exchange realignment [ 3.3 1,050 21,519 15,144 1,769 428 10,048 49,958
Deemed disposal of CTI BAE B AR 41 (16,675) (342,561) (241,391) (28,020) (6,878) (175,125) (810,650)
At 31 December 2020 RERZRE
+ZA=+—H 58,121 553,746 520,860 58,937 12,821 384,155 1,588,640
At 31 December 2020: REZBZFE
+ZA=1+—H
Valuation il 58,121 - - - - - 58,121
Cost A - 762,160 793,304 139,352 22,187 384,155 2,101,758
Accumulated depreciation and B R
impairment - (208,414) (272,444) (80,415) (9,966) - (571,239)
Net carrying amount W T 58,121 553,746 520,860 58,937 12,821 384,155 1,588,640
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 W% - BERRHE (H)
(continued)
Furniture, ~ Motor vehicles
Industrial Plant and fixtures and and transport Construction
Office premises buildings machinery  office equipment facilities in progress Total
R %8 HER
[CE3 &4 THETE T B b Y Y it B3 pi3ean B
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000
Wit EL T Emon ETTT ETTT ETTT ETTT EL T
(notes (a) (notes (b) (note (b))
and (e)) and (c))
(Wita)R(e) (Wit Rc) (W)
At 1 January 2019: REZ-AE-A—H:
Valuation i 82,711 - - - - - 82,711
Cost A - 989,802 1,075,550 170,158 32,807 260,270 2,528,587
Accumulated depreciation and R R
impairment - (279,841) (420,006) (106,128) (24,011) - (829,986)
Net carrying amount T R 82,711 709,961 655,544 64,030 8,796 260,270 1,781,312
Net carrying amount: 0
At 1 January 2019 REZ-ME-A—H 82,711 709,961 655,544 64,030 8,796 260,270 1,781,312
Continuing operations FHEREEH
Additions wE - 586 13,044 8,825 300 253,761 276,516
Surplus on revaluation, net HhGas 612 - - - - - 612
Depreciation provided during the year  4F fy 5 7 # 9 (945) (29,559) (46,830) (12,309) (947) - (90,590)
Transfer in/(out) HA/ (i) - 45,336 65,295 9,010 3,056 (122,697) -
Transfer from investment properties WAHLEME 17 - 4,177 - - - - 4,177
Disposals & - (1,676) (2,008) (694) (30) - (4,408)
[mpairment Wi 9 - - (15,567) - - - (15,567)
Exchange realignment I 5830 346 (2,930) (4,517) (74) (14) (1,138) (8,327)
Discontinued operations DRILBEEHE
Additions R - 999 2,360 4,871 1,041 70,774 80,045
Surplus on revaluation, net BFA R 60 - - - - - 60
Acquisition of subsidiaries R 24 41(e)(xi) - 10,022 5,178 284 54 91 15,629
Depreciation provided during the year — 4E 79 # (559) (12,775) (17,765) (5,410) (1,444) - (37,953)
Transfer in/(out) A/ () - 55,313 55,470 4,017 279 (115,079) -
Transfer from investment properties WAL EmE 17 - 124 - - - - 124
Disposals e - (1,739) (2,984) (649) (268) - (5,640)
Exchange realignment 34 % (199) (3,585) (2,489) (318) (75) (996) (7,662)
At31 December 2019 REZWE
+ZH=1—H 82,026 774,254 704,731 71,583 10,748 344,986 1,988,328
At 31 December 2019: REZ-RE
FZAZE-H
Valuation il 82,026 - - - - - 82,026
Cost A - 1,088,810 1,174,128 189,439 34,702 344,986 2,832,065
Accumulated depreciation and LEER ST
impairment - (314,556) (469,397) (117,856) (23,954) - (925,763)
Net careying amount T 82,026 774,254 704,731 71,583 10,748 344,986 1,988,328
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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b

3

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16

M- BERHRE (&)

(continued)

Notes: Wit

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s office premises were (a) AR > AR [ 2 7 A T A BT A
stated at open market values. R o
Had the Group’s office premises been stated at cost less accumulated i A 558 I g S e L AR B BT AR
depreciation, the carrying amount of the premises at the end T R0 R Z MR T (M 25 173.6 89K 00 (2%
of the reporting period would have been US$1,736,000 (2019: —JU4E £ 356283 50)

US$3,562,000).

The revaluation deficit of US$5,803,000 (2019: revaluation surplus of S HAS03M KL ZEMBH (ZF—JuE .
US$651,000) has been recognised in other comprehensive income and 65. 1H K0 Z WAL BAR) TH I At 2 1 W 2% 1 R
accumulated in property revaluation reserve of the Group during the TR P9 B AR 455 0 A 3 T A ok (BRI
year, net of deferred tax (note 37). ERTE) (F5E37) -

(b) At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s property, plant and (b) RERZFELF A= —H s AREED P E K
equipment in mainland China with an aggregate net carrying amount B2 35 T 3~ W5 Bk i sl R E 9,247
of US$92,470,000 (2019: US$153,135,000) were pledged to secure HRTC (S —JUAE L 15,313,583 50) CAF &
certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 33(a)). A A ] 3 1 SRAT A R 2 KA (FiERE33(a)) o

(c) At 31 December 2020, the Group’s industrial buildings with (c) RERZFEFZH=Z—H s REEZ T M
an aggregate net carrying amount of US$66,910,000 (2019: TR 6,691 8 FE oL (ZF—E L IR
US$163,157,000) have not yet obtained ownership certificates. 6,315. 78 3 70) W R 5 AL -

(d) As at 31 December 2019, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts (d) MoZ—NAET A= —H > AREEFEAG T
of certain plant and machinery of farm and food businesses in Vietnam T 7 FE R B SR O T R e B AR T e
and the carrying amount of those plant and machinery was written S > BB TR B A 1 R O A %
down to their recoverable amounts of US$23,218,000. During the year FET Il 442,321,800 - MRE R —JUE
ended 31 December 2019, an impairment loss of US$15,567,000 was T A=+ —HIREE » WAEHE K R1,556. 78
recognised in “General and administrative expenses”. The recoverable JC AR (47 B4 B8 F ] o e s o 3% W [l 4
amounts are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These HE T A T AR R S o AR ST AR IR AT B
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets e A% Y i 7 647 301 1 B B TR R AT R BB i R T
estimated by management covering a six-year period. Cash flows B o 73 47 JU) Y B B it 8 T 45 % W A 51 B 1
beyond the six-year period are extrapolated using an estimated Yy B R BB ATHE AL o Bl A YR T 4R B 1 2% 3k
weighted average growth rate of 5%. The cash flows are discounted TUTH o SR Z YT RTIBEAT > N R W B2 3% AH B
using a discount rate of 12%. The discount rates used are pre-tax and T B e % A B < 4 ) TR B o
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant ant and equipment.

(e) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (e) LYE B0 &5 & R PAY WK
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) ARMEZ R

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TRMNRREWRAREERZWE - K
property, plant and equipment measured at the end of the T B A e R R R R A R o
reporting period on a recurring basis.
Fair value measurement as at
31 December categorised into
RT_A=Z+—HA MR 48
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
58 SN et Yl k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
b n S n FKILTF T FILTIT
2020 e e 22
Office premises LE3 &3 - - 58,121 58,121
2019 TR U
Office premises LEZ 5. - - 82,026 82,026
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16
(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(e) Fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2; office premises
of discontinued operations amounted to US$16,675,000 was
transferred out of Level 3 during the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used
in the determination of fair values within Level 3 of the
hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable inputs at the end of
the reporting period used in the valuation models.

Type Valuation technique
it 177 %
Office premises in Hong Kong Market comparison approach
LA 9 B 1 SR 5 2P a 37
Office premises in mainland China Market comparison approach
AL 7 F R K e Y T S i35 e

(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Office premises of the Group were revalued based on
valuations performed by RHL Appraisal Limited, an external
independent and qualified valuer. The Group’s finance team
discussed with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and
results when the valuation was performed for annual financial

reporting purpose.

The fair value of the office premises in Hong Kong and
mainland China are determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent quotation or sale prices of

comparable properties on a price per square metre basis.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated price per
square metre would result in a significant increase/decrease in
the fair value of the office premises.
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M BERRE (&)

Wfatk : (47)

(e)

W3 ~ BT K B A S ()

(i)

RIAEZHH (H)

REZRDRERE-NLETZH
Z+—HIRAEREN > WS — KA )
MZHZE s CRIERESEEZHE
M EE1,667 5 ETRREE R
AR A Z A H R RO A = A
) o A4 I 2 ISR T IR R R
8% A 0 SR P 2 R o

TR HUR 5 = AU 0 4 SO B R
PR A Z AW 7 35 e He Al e =X vl A
M EEATBEN S Y -

Key unobservable inputs

EEAMHENZ Y

Estimated price of US$51,428
(2019: US$59,365) per square metre
P I5 R Z Al FHE 51,4285 00
(2019: 59,365376)

Estimated price of US$9,821
(2019: US$7,181 — US$9,522) per square metre
P J5 R Z Al E % 9,8215858
(2019: 7,181387€ - 9,522 £7E)

(i)

B =AM 1 2

52 B 2 7 ST I 4 A AT AL R K
AUAT PRI A PR A ) (B 8 o R 7
AN ) T AR Z REAG R o PRIAE B
SR 2 4% I A AT A SR A IR > ACAR I 2
Vb 85 T R 429 s L YAl I 5 i L £ AR

(o8 YL PNET T E S S e/
BT ¥ 5 B R 2 25 B 3
Y 20590 AR £ (P T K)o

PR Z Al EHE R R BT B
THUHERT L ARMEKR BT T
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWHE
2020 2019
SECEE SRk
Note US$’000 US$’000
M 7t BV e n
At 1 January WH—H—H 11,904 19,047
Continuing operations FRE R EEY
Net changes in fair value AW R i 7 (116) (368)
Transfer to owner-occupied properties R g HE 16 (4,058) (4,177)
Exchange realignment [ ba, ) 2% (43) (19)
Discontinued operations CRILREEY
Net changes in fair value AW R i - (2,247)
Transfer from/(to) owner-occupied properties ¥ H /(3]) H FH# % 16 132 (124)
Exchange realignment [ ba, ) 2% 615 (208)
Deemed disposal of CTI BAAE B IR R E 41 (7,575) -
At 31 December “Nt+—-H=+—H 859 11,904
Notes: Mt -
(a) All investment properties of the Group are situated in mainland China. (a) JI A 5 W 38 5 A 7 b IR B o
(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (b) waEMENA RMER R

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s

investment properties measured at the end of the reporting

period on a recurring basis.

(i) ARAEZ RS

RS BT R AR SR B Z B 3
TR B R R A R -

Fair value measurement as at

31 December categorised into

RTZA=Z+—HARMGHEZ 8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S8 SO0 B0 k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FKILTIL FILTIC FILTIT FILTIT
2020 I e 52
Investment properties "EWE — - 859 859
2019 —EZ—JuE
Investment properties Eiasg/ES - - 11,904 11,904
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17

Notes: (continued)
(b) Fair value measurements of investment properties (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2; factories and
farms of discontinued operation amounted to US$7,575,000
was transferred out of Level 3 during the year ended 31
December 2020. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used
in the determination of fair values within Level 3 of the
hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable inputs at the end of

reporting period used in the valuation models.

Type Valuation technique
e A8 5 8
Factories (2019: factories and farms) in ~ Replacement cost approach
mainland China B AR
PR R B R (T —JusE -
3=
(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties of the Group were revalued based on
valuations performed by Beijing Huadeheng Assets Evaluation
Co., Ltd., an external independent and qualified valuer.
The Group’s finance team discussed with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and results when the valuation is

performed for annual financial reporting purpose.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, replacement cost
approach was used for the valuation of the factories and
farms in mainland China by reference to the cost to replace
the assets at present time and their length of period used, as
the result from this method is considered a more accurate

reflection of their fair values.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated replacement
costs per square metre would result in a significant increase/

decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
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REWE (&)

Bt (4F)
(b) W 3 A A R i (B
(i) ARG Z R (H)

RE-ZR-RER-FE-NETZA
Et—HIREERN > BB — RSB %
M Z B2 s CRILBEEEZME
B GEAT57. 58 KRR E T
FAE+ A=A BRI A =4
Bl o A 45 [ 22 W 5 T 0 4 0 A e
01988 24 1 40 0 T 2 RS o

TR HUR 55 = AU 4 SO B SR
JIE 8% T AW 7 3 e HeAd A e =X vl
M EEATBEN S Y -

Key unobservable inputs

FEARMBENZY

Estimated cost of US$684 — US$693
per square metre (2019: US$23 — US$166)
Bk 2 Al HE 6843608 — 69350
(ZF— L4 239558 - 1663570)

(i)

H A=A A MG 7] 1 2 G

AR A [ B B 3 0 A R AT AL I
O 3R DL A AT PR W (O
Be A A% AW B ) BT A Z 0 A i -
A1 JE IV B i I AT 0 SR AN I AR AR
A 2 ok 5 T 4 o L YA 0 o i L £
P AR e Al R o

BRI RER ZE-JUET A
S e RN T PNy
Z AN TS BB A Y: - 2HEWE
LR A B T A > 0
il 393 VT AR A B A 2 N S

BV Ik Z A EHEE AR ER B
THRTEHEEYRZIARMBEKREL
Tt/ Tk o
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
LAND USE RIGHTS 18 LA
2020 2019
TR OEE R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M F L Fi FEILFoo
At 1 January w—H—H 207,105 178,399
Continuing operations FEREER
Additions wE - (7,557)
Disposal H e (382) (249)
Amortisation provided during the  4& N 5T 3 #f &
year 9 (956) (2,409)
Transfers from other non-current 16 3 At Ik 7 Bh A A A
assets 58 -
Exchange realignment [ ba. i) 2% 4,260 (777)
Discontinued operations DR ILREEY
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA B B G A ) 41(e)(xi) 107 4,702
Additions wE 4,077 35,999
Disposal & (874) -
Amortisation provided during the  4& N 5T $& #f &
year (3,101) (2,279)
Transfers (to)/from other 16 At IR 7 B
non-current assets () A (113) 2,515
Exchange realignment [ ba. i 2% 7,793 (1,239)
Deemed disposal of CTI BLAE B IE R 41 (128,845) -
At 31 December mt_H=+—H 89,129 207,105
Analysis of leasehold land by 8 95 AH 8% - Ml BT A A B4 B
location: WM
Mainland China PN 66,435 183,913
Vietnam FuE] 22,694 23,192
89,129 207,105
Note: Wit

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately US$36,318,000 (2019: US$54,596,000) were
pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group (note 33(b)).
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
19 OTHER RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, farms

and warehouses, as well as machinery, vehicles and other

equipment used in its operations, having lease terms between 2

and 51 years.

HitEAEEE

ACHR A R R A I e R R
R > DRSS ~ I R A B R R A

[ > ALEB B2ES514F -

2020 2019
SEoEE Uk
Note US$°000 US$’000
M 7t B n FIL T
At 1 January w—H—H 421,209 -
Impact on initial application B R A I R I s it e I
of IFRS 16 SE16%EZ B - 343,307
Adjusted at 1 January w—H—Hii%% 421,209 343,307
Continuing operations FEREEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries WAL i B B A ) 46(a)(xi) 4,796 -
Additions R 57,583 106,201
Depreciation provided during the ERNFHREDTE
year 9 (48,246) (41,461)
Exchange realignment [EE Be. o) % 2,235 408
Discontinued operations CARIE & & EE
Additions wE 13,159 16,697
Depreciation provided during the ERFHREDTE
year (5,375) (3,396)
Exchange realignment [EE be. o) % 2,042 (547)
Deemed disposal of CTI BAE B IERIE 41 (29,230) -
At 31 December Ht_HA=+—8H 418,173 421,209

(a) The analysis of the net book value of other right-of-use

(a)  FLAto 5 M 2 B W I AE - DAL

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: B B B Ay SRS T
2020 2019
R R =Sy I
US$’000 US$’000
Sy i E S on
Land ;] 5,968 7,776
Farms and warehouses 3051 401,495 402,182
Machinery, vehicles and others 2 ~ P K H A 10,710 11,251
418,173 421,209
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

19 OTHER RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 19 HitERAEEE (E)

(b) An analysis of leases from continuing operations (b) FRRBFEREEEHEREEZN
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: WERZ T :

2020 2019

SECEE CF U

Note US$’000 US$’000

M 7t BV e n

(Restated)

(BEF)

Depreciation charge of other HAthfli HEEEZ
right-of-use assets: -S4k
Land + Hh 664 825
Farms and warehouses =3 ) =1 43,344 37,222
Machinery, vehicles and BEAS ~ VRH K H At
others 4,238 3,414
9 48,246 41,461
Interest expense on lease HEAEZNEEN
liabilities 8 48,892 45,426
Lease payments of short-term WG E R E K&
lease and leases of low- VA i AL M AL 1
value assets exempted from
capitalisation 9 13,905 5,481
Total amount recognised in PHEZANHERZ
profit or loss A 4% 111,043 92,368

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 30(d) and

35, respectively to the financial statements. 30(d) M35
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

B 75 $R & B A
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 20 4£YEE
Current Other
Breeders livestock biological
and layers - swine assets Total
HEaH EMEE H A .
RER -RE kW& E At
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Wit #iLTr #IL T #i i #rLTr
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(W7t (a) (H7E (b)) (W7t ()
At 1 January 2020: R_R_RE—~]—H:
At cost less accumulated A 2 T R
depreciation and impairment:
Cost A 137,049 - 50,320 187,369
Accumulated depreciation and R R
impairment (37,151) - - (37,151)
99,898 - 50,320 150,218
At fair value ARfE - 488,078 - 488,078
99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
Net carrying amount: I T 4
Continuing operations FFEREEHK
At 1 January 2020 R_B_RE—A—H 99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
Increase due to purchases/raising R /#7010 3% 178,657 726,229 246,360 1,151,246
Net changes in fair value NRERETR 6 - 2,820 - 2,820
Depreciation provided during the year ENFHEE 9 (48,505) - - (48,505)
Decrease due to sales [R]85 5 1 (51,624) (683,880) (244,408) (979,912)
Decrease due to culling TR 2 52 11 A (43,729) (7,828) - (51,557)
Exchange realignment T i % 2,967 2,259 828 6,054
At 31 December 2020 R_F-RE+ZA=+—H 137,664 527,678 53,100 718,442
At 31 December 2020: RER-REFZH=+—H:
At cost less accumulated A 2 5 RO
depreciation and impairment:
Cost B 177,256 - 53,100 230,356
Accumulated depreciation and 2 E R
impairment (39,592) - - (39,592)
137,664 - 53,100 190,764
At fair value ARfE - 527,678 - 527,678
137,664 527,678 53,100 718,442
Analysed into: AHWT
Current biological assets Lk ) 58,042 527,678 53,100 638,820
Non-current biological assets HE G E 79,622 - - 79,622
137,664 527,678 53,100 718,442
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20 £YEE (&)
Current Other
Breeders livestock biological
and layers - swine assets Total
L HHRE Aty .
RE# -RE BB w5t
Note US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$°000
Mt ELTF FELTT FI T Emwn
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(7 (a) (M7 (b)) (M7 (c)
At 1 January 2019: BB E—~A—H:
At cost less accumulated A 2 G RO
depreciation and impairment:
Cost A 129,718 - 53,040 182,758
Accumulated depreciation and BT E R
impairment (31,496) - - (31,496)
98,222 - 53,040 151,262
At fair value AR - 404,830 - 404,830
98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
Net carrying amount: R T £+
Continuing operations REREEY
At 1 January 2019 REZF—E—~H—H 98,222 404,830 53,040 556,092
Increase due to purchases/raising )30 3 129,331 1,014,384 605,396 1,749,111
Net changes in fair value NRESEFH 6 - 105,554 - 105,554
Depreciation provided during the year R R 9 (43,557) - - (43,557)
Decrease due to sales TR 852 11 0 (48,477) (1,007,742) (607,963) (1,664,182)
Decrease due to culling TR J2 S 1 A (35,463) (29,386) - (64,849)
Exchange realignment FE 36, 7 2 (158) 438 (153) 127
At 31 December 2019 R_F-WE+ZA=+—H 99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
At 31 December 2019: RoF-E+A=+—H:
At cost less accumulated WA, 25 BT R
depreciation and impairment:
Cost BRA 137,049 - 50,320 187,369
Accumulated depreciation and BT E R
impairment (37,151) - - (37,151)
99,898 - 50,320 150,218
At fair value AR - 488,078 - 488,078
99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
Analysed into: AT
Current biological assets B G E 33,548 488,078 50,320 571,946
Non-current biological assets EEW LG E 66,350 - - 66,350
99,898 488,078 50,320 638,296
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3] R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

20

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Breeders and layers

Breeders and layers of the Group are (i) sows and boars (collectively
“swine breeders”) held for the production of piglets for sales and/
or further raising to become swine parent stock or fattening swine,
(ii) chicken breeders held for production of hatching eggs in order
to produce day-old chicks, and (iii) layers held for the production of

consumable eggs.

Breeders and layers are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses as (i) they are not sold by the
Group and no active market exists; (ii) other references to market
prices such as market prices for similar assets are not available; and
(iii) valuation based on a discounted cash flow method is considered
unreliable given the uncertainty with respect to external factors, such

as climate and mortality rates, etc.

Cost includes all costs incurred during the growth cycle (e.g. cost of
new born animals, feed costs and farmer fees). Swine breeders are
depreciated using the straight-line method over their productive period
of 24 to 36 months starting from the reproduction phase, while chicken
breeders and layers are depreciated using the straight-line method
over their productive period of 12 months, both taking into account a

residual value.

Current livestock — swine

Current livestock — swine are piglets and fattening swines and are
stated at fair value less costs of disposal. Fair values are determined
based on market prices, and where transaction prices are not available
for certain age groups, based on prevailing market prices of other age
groups, with adjustments taking into account difference in weight.

Other biological assets

Other biological assets comprise poultry and aquatic livestock other

than breeders and layers.

Poultry livestock are pullets, broilers and hatching eggs, while aquatic
livestock comprise shrimp and fish. Poultry and aquatic livestock are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, which are not materially

different from their fair value due to short production cycle.

n

20
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

An analysis of the estimated physical quantities of the Group’s

biological assets as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Livestock

Aquatic

BE
KA

The estimated physical quantities of biological assets were based on

experience and historical data. The Group conducts full physical

count in swine farms by rotation to ascertain the quantity and physical

condition of swine and project the overall weight. For poultry livestock,

the Group performs real time update on stock movement to project the

overall weight. For aquatic livestock, the Group uses sampling method

to project the overall weight.

Fair value measurement of biological assets

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s

biological assets measured at the end of the reporting period

on a recurring basis.

20

£YEE (])

Hitat ()
(d) A 4 R i K 2 2 Y R R A
W
2020 2019
% .
Tons Tons
L 3
366,000 348,000
18,800 15,300

TR AR B ) 2 W 2 AN T B T B
JEE S B o AR A R 0 2 R AT AT R
Ve 2 4 A S Rtk 00 > B Al S R o R
4 V5 5 7 A A O O A T W SR DA A B A R
B o AR [ K Ay Y PR bR O 3 AR A
HApwma o

(e) 2y ¥ Y O o AR
(i) RN Z R
TS AT I R A SR I A A
PR RS R A RAE o

Fair value measurement as at

31 December categorised into

RTZA=Z+—HARMERRZ 8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S8 AN Y| k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

LTI LT oL FIL oL ST

2020 e e 2.2
Current livestock — Swine EWHE - B - - 527,678 527,678
2019 —R AR
Current livestock — Swine AT — B B 488,078 488,078
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥

20 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20

Notes: (continued)
(e) Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of

the reporting period in which they occur.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used
in the determination of fair values within Level 3 of the
hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable inputs at the end of
the reporting period used in the valuation models.

Type Valuation technique

e i {805 %

Market comparison approach

7 355 be e

Current livestock — swine

HHEE - %

(ii) Information about level 3 fair value measurements

The calculation of fair value of current livestock — swine
is performed by the Group’s relevant finance department
and operations team on a quarterly basis using a series of

systematic procedures.

There is an active market for live swine in Vietnam. The fair
value of suckling swine, weanling swine and fattening swine
are determined based on transaction price per head and their
weight.

The estimated fair value of swine increases/decreases as a
result of an increase/decrease in the transaction price. As at
31 December 2020, if transaction price increases/decreases by
10%, the estimated fair value of swine would have increased/

decreased by US$52,073,000 (2019: US$48,318,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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£YEE ()

Bt (4F)
(e) R R A R L A ()
(i) ARG Z R (H)

BRE-FORERSZ-NET DA
Zh— HaR R o MR — SR A%
B 2 T Z PR > S O\ SR A = A
S o AR AR B 2 SR Y R A 3 R
01 5% A v A A T 2 RS o

R HUR 5 = AU 0 2 SO A R
it BR P Z AR 7 ¥ B FEAR AR K i
WA BEN2Y -

Key unobservable inputs

FEATEENZ Y

Transaction prices of:

— Suckling swine US$43.3 to US$45.0

(2019: US$47.5 to US$49.2) per head
— Weanling swine US$37.5 to US$102.9
(2019: US$35.4 to US$104.4) per head
— Fattening swine US$3.2 to US$3.3
(2019: US$3.5 to US$3.5) per kg

2 G ik

- FLFE R E43 330 £45.03% 50
(ZF—JUM + 47,5505 49.2540)

- /MR 3750 E102.9% €
(ZR— U4 £ 354360 F104.4300)

- TS AT3.2EILEIIHT
(ZF—JU4 1 35K TTFE3S5ET)

(i)

H =R R M ] 12 B H

HHBE -BEZARMETIRETEA
15 [0 5 B 85 0 0 5 0 I ke — R 51
R B RGHE

L T AL A G R T o SR N
BT MEFH Z 03 oA T3 Ao 4 B A2 5 (R A
T Lk iy A

R I 0N ARG BHBE 3 & 5 AR B
T LTS T R R F
FTHZH=Z+—H BER 5 EE R
Tt/ T k10% » R 8 02 i Al st % b
Ik Fk5,207.38 K50 (ZF —JU4E ¢+
4,831.8#i378) ©
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N #® B B & R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 EBREE
2020 2019
R R R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M F L Fi FEILFoo
At 1 January: Hm—H—H:
Cost BRAR 47,288 37,908
Accumulated amortisation Eat (13,913) (11,611)
Net carrying amount R T A 33,375 26,297
Net carrying amount: R T Y
Discontinued operations [RE I T F7
At 1 January wm—H—H 33,375 26,297
Acquisition of a subsidiary g S S NG| 42 - 11,289
Amortisation provided during the — 4& N & $1& 3 44
year (2,819) (2,462)
Exchange realignment [ va, 5 H% 2,070 (1,749)
Deemed disposal of CTI BAE B IR E 41 (32,626) -
At 31 December Nt+_H=+—H - 33,375
At 31 December: R+_H=+—H:
Cost SR AR - 47,288
Accumulated amortisation B B A - (13,913)
Net carrying amount UEgTTRER I - 33,375
Note: Hiat :

The Group’s intangible asset represents customer relationship of the Group

arising from business combination, which is stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

22

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#® BB B A R 2 F

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Company name

kA

CP China Investment Limited

(“CP China”)

CP Food Investment Limited

CP Food Enterprise
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.

TR 3 (5 B AR

Chia Tai Food Enterprise

(Qinhuangdao) Co., Ltd.

A3 (R )
AR ©

C. P. Food (Nantong) Co., Ltd.
EXREH (FE) A RAR ©

C. P. Food (Zhanjiang) Co., Ltd. @
TE e (RT) IR A R

Jilin Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd.
HHRIERR AR A ©

CP Food (Sugian) Co., Ltd. @
E KA B (E) A O

Place of
incorporation/
operations
WL,/
BHEME

Cayman
Islands/Hong Kong
FEHE/ i

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
T/ B

PRC/PRC
L

PRC/PRC
L

PRC/PRC
L

PRC/PRC
L

PRC/PRC
L

PRC/PRC
L

22 REEARNER

Percentage of attributable

Issued ordinary/ equity interest held by

registered capital
CHI%ER
& A

US$79,228,000
79,228,0003 ¢

1 share
U e

US$85,700,000
85,700,0003 7¢

US$117,460,000
117,460,000 7t

US$14,280,000
14,280,0003 7T

RMB99,500,000
99,500,000 A

RMB380,000,000
380,000,000 A R

RMB856,298,060
856,298,060\ R

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Company  Group
VAW 4 7 T BE T 4 Lo
Anwl AEM

100.0%  100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

- 100.0%

#HEEWE AT Z R

Principal activities

FEEH

Investment holding

BE B

Investment holding

Erd<gid e

Production and
sale of value—added
processed food products

7 88 TR T %

Production and
sale of value-added
processed food products

P 81 TR T %

Poultry farming and
sale of chicken

meat products
BHRER
T 3 7 A E i

Poultry farming and
sale of chicken

meat products
EHAE R
P 5 A E

Poultry farming and
sale of chicken
meat products
BHERE R

T B 0 A

Poultry farming and
sale of chicken
meat products
BEEBR

JEE 639 30 A
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Percentage of attributable
Company name incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ equity interest held by
operations registered capital ~ Company Group
EEA oL,/ CRATSEM WA BHE 4
B Mg A& Anw AL
Fujian Chia Tai Food Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB218,000,000 - 70.0%
and its subsidiaries ! dig 218,000,000 A R ¥
HEERRHARAF
T LW g 2w ©
Hubei Chia Tai Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC/PRC RMB280,000,000 - 100.0%
WAL IE KA BRA F @ BB 280,000,000 R
CP Aqua Company Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong 1 share - 100.0%
Bl Tl U S 4
C. P. Aquaculture PRC/PRC RMB148,000,000 - 100.0%
(Dongfang) Co., Led. hE 148,000,000\ B %
MoK A ORJF) A L2 /] o
Modern State British Virgin Islands/ US$106,984,000 100.0%  100.0%
Investments Limited Hong Kong 106,984,0003& 7C
RERETRTE FE
C. P. Vietnam Corporation Vietnam/Vietnam VND - 70.8%
(“CpvC”) Wi W 9,188,671,500,000
9,188,671,500,000
B A
Hannick Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong 2 shares - 100.0%
(R 20 SRy
Notes: Mt
(i) Established as a foreign equity joint venture enterprise under PRC law. (i)
(ii) Established as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. (ii)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the
Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

22 RHE2RANER (&)

Principal activities

FEEEH

Poultry farming and
sale of chicken
meat products

R E R
FE S E A E i

Poultry farming and
sale of chicken
meat products

RHERER
P S A

Investment holding

BB B

Production and
sale of shrimp fry

P S ML

Investment holding

BE

Integrated agri-
food business

A RUR R

Property investment

LUE S8

e B RS A A A AR o

o [ 355 e R S % A T B R A3 o

b h B B R Z A 4 R A E > R
Fy > RS BACAE PSR A AN AC AR [
AR ER Ay o FESE R o B BT A I Al I R
A AN OB G B R R TR -
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N % B B & R A A
Notes to Financial Statements
B 3% 8ROk M e
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
23 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELENER
2020 2019
SECEE SRk
Note US$’000 US$’000
M i FEoLF FoLFo
Investments in joint ventures, REBLENKE
included in non-current assets: BENIERBEEN :
Share of net assets AN 35 16,915
Due from joint ventures, included in JEW A& A EKIE » SR
prepayments, deposits and EAA R ~ e R
other receivables At W R 3K 29(a) - 5,758
Due to joint ventures, included in BT EBNEHRE 4E5R
other payables and accruals il A B 3k M T AR B 32(b) - (22,120)
Interests in joint ventures 8 A SE R A 35 553
Note: i

None of the Group’s interests in joint venture is regarded as individually
material. The following table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information

of all joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

ACHE B £ A R RS SR 3 AR R K o TR
e DARE 25 ¥ MR 2 B A S Z W B RHAR L

Other Total
Profit comprehensive comprehensive
for the year income income
AW A  Hibemdss mlksE e
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FILFT B n B n
2020 o e 22
Group effective interest A 5 A R i
Continuing operations PR B LY (50) - (50)
Discontinued operations C&RIEBEEG 4,344 1,380 5,724
4,294 1,380 5,674
2019 — % JUE
Group effective interest AHE A R 25
Continuing operations TR RS (37) - (37)
Discontinued operations LA IR AR 2 2,634 (265) 2,369
2,597 (265) 2,332

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s investments in joint
ventures amounted to US$35,000 (2019: US$16,915,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B3 R R M aE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24 REBEQTINER
2020 2019
R R R
Note US$’000 US$’000
M F L Fi FEILFoo
Share of net assets FEAL B G & (a) 856,433 117,348
Goodwill on acquisition W S A W) e 1,474,569 28,199
Investments in associates TP Wi 7 2 ) B B 2,331,002 145,547
Due from associates, included in JFEAS Bh 2% A Bl wk0E - AN TE
prepayments, deposits and other ARk~ $ 4 B il R
receivables i 29(a) 96,320 2,585
Due to associates, included in JRE A W 2% A B aKOE - A
other payables and accruals Al JRE A MR K B AR 2 32(b) (108,669) (38)
Interests in associates I 2 oy ) I RE 25 2,318,653 148,094
Notes: Mt -
(a) The Group has interests in a number of associates. Except CTI and (a) AR MR B AT AR o BT IERRE

its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (collectively, the “CTI
Group”), none of which is regarded as individually material. The

following table summarises, in aggregate, the financial information of

T LW A ) > A A 3 R I A R (AR T IE
RBEE G ) > M S0 AT o] B8 S — S A4 2 A1
TR o T AR A RE 55 35 51 e 2 Wi 4w 2 B

all associates that are accounted for using the equity method: PR gL
Other Total
Profit comprehensive comprehensive
for the year income income
AR R emlkss  RmREiE A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
B/ on B/ n FEILF oL
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZZELT A= —HILEE
Group effective interest A 55 1 A5 B i
Continuing operations PR
— CTI Group — IEXBEEM 66,450 - 66,450
— Others — Jfih (226) 2,065 1,839
Discontinued operations C&IEREEY 24,937 6,006 30,943
91,161 8,071 99,232
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_F-NET_H=Z+—HILEE
Group effective interest AR AT R R
Continuing operations FRE RS
— Others — At (58) - (58)
Discontinued operations DRI #8220 26,506 (1,748) 24,758
26,448 (1,748) 24,700

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in associates amounted to US$2,331,002,000 (2019:

US$145,547,000).

4,554.T# 3K70) ©
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E - F4E+ A =+—H L4 )¥

24 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24 REEATNER (E)
Wit o (4F)

HIAR v vl T B o AT 2 e S

Notes: (continued)

(b) Particulars of the principal associate, which is indirectly held by the (b) AR HBWT :

Company, are as follows:

Percentage of

HAASL

Place of Interest

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable
Company name operations registered capital to the Group Profit sharing Principal activities

JRSL, CRTEER, ASE
AR b B A A JREAG HE 25 JEA i B 30
Chia Tai Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB4,158,722,926 35.0% 35.0% Investment holding and
(“CTI”) g 4,158,722,926 N R I trading of raw materials
ERBEARAR(TIERBE]) B e K SRR B

On 1 December 2020, CTI, originally a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed the acquisition of 43 entities that are
principally engaged in swine business from CTAI, a related company
of the Company, for an aggregate consideration of RMB28,140 million
(equivalent to approximately US$4,312 million). The consideration
was settled by means of issuance of new shares in CTI to CTAI
representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged by such issue. Upon
completion of this transaction on 1 December 2020, CTI is owned as to
35% by the Company and 65% by CTAL

Accordingly, the financial results of CTI for the period from 1 January
2020 to 30 November 2020 were de-consolidated and presented as
“Discontinued operations” (note 41) in the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. Prior year comparative information
has also been restated to conform with the current year presentation.
Financial results of CTI for the month of December 2020 were equity
picked up and shown under “Share of profits and losses of a 35%-owned
associate - CTI” on the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Upon completion of the acquisition of 43 entities, CTI Group is
principally engaged in the production and sale of animal feed and
breeding, farming and sale of swine and sale of pork. CTI is a non-listed
corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available.

Summarised financial information of CTI Group, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policy, and a reconciliation to the carrying
amount in these financial statements, are disclosed below:

ERBE > TR —FKARAR ZE A Z M~
Wl R IFAET A H BRI IERER
—HKARA T REAF > ORI 43K FEE R
ST A TR RRE > SR %5 2814008 A R (R
FRHI43.1208350) o BRETE DL IERZE BAT
FW A A o AN IE KB AT 4R AR IR B AR 1y
65% c MR _FEST A —HBREHK » &K
@ﬂﬁ%ﬁss%mk&ﬁ > HR65% A E K FE
% °

R IERBERRE R _FE—-H -HE
e A = F kS AU T A OF AR
¢ 1 Wk B 5 o R R S YR A A ] £ 2 T o B0
R O AL A8 TR AR I B R A T DA R 588
S k41251 o ol 5 O AR 4E 2 3y
KM HEF] o IERBEEH T ZZ4E T H M H
S 7t B AR 2 o 2 MR 3 A A% £ 4 ThI WA 8 A DL T
A B4R = — K AK35% 2 T 4wl — IE K%
jd -

SERMRA3RK A AR > IE KRB M A S
ST R - BB - RSB B R o IERHE
b B MR R LU E N W TR g

R AT o 2 FEAE AR > BRI AR
V0 S 5 SR AR 2 > e A A 5 A 4 M v {3 M
WEMT :

As at
31 December 2020
R RAE
+ZHA=1+—H
US$°000
FIL Tt
Gross amounts of CTI Group’s: TE KB AR DL 45 T A A
Current assets i ib=yz3 2,638,763
Non-current assets I L Y ¥ 7,319,643
Current liabilities i) FfE 2,340,837
Non-current liabilities J B £ 1% 867,455
Total shareholder’s equity B oM 25 4 6,526,601
Net asset value W 6,750,114
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in CTI Group: B 4 [ 7 T K 4 T 2 T SR
CTI Group’s net assets: TE R AR ] s 6,526,601
Group effective interest AR 5 I A RORE 2 35%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements kA S 5 R O R v 2,284,310
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FhA b E M LA
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K B4 2 549,832

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Notes: (continued)

(c)

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24 REEQTINER(E)

et : (4F)
(continued) (c) (80
For the month of
December 2020
ZRFE
TZHN
US$’000
FLF g
Revenue WA 868,074
Gross profit BF 157,889
Net change in fair value of biological assets A A A 2 B T VR R 19,562
Profit before taxation B A5t iy it 213,002
Profit after taxation [ B 1% i A 200,226
Other comprehensive income F At 2 i Wi £ 13,343
Total comprehensive income Z i W B A 213,569
Net profit attributable to shareholders Fie H= 4 ¥ O oA S ) AR
after net change in fair value of biological assets 58 T ROR 2 46 A 189,856
Net profit attributable to shareholders i 2 4 Y oA A ) AL
before net change in fair value of biological assets 55088 T IR Z i A 170,294
Included in the above profit: FEA G :
Depreciation and amortisation Preg Rk (7,491)
Interest expense, net B2 A (4,941)
Income tax expense i AR (12,776)

The additional depreciation for the month of December 2020 raised
from the fair value upward adjustment on transaction completion date

amounted to US$5,836,000.

The Group’s trade receivable, trade payable, other receivable and other (d)
payables with associates are disclosed in notes 28(c), 31, 29 and 32(b)

to the financial statements, respectively.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the final fair value of (e)
the total identifiable net assets acquired and therefore the amount of

goodwill on acquisition may be adjusted subsequently.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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RERZFEFZAN  RAR SR AR
E R Z AT 2558368 KT o

A 5 TS A E 2 R S Rk - RET R S
WK ~ At M WO Ak B A B A W 3k > B4 3 Bk
T B A Z W EE28(c) ~ 31~ 29K32(b) °
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 $R & B A

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

25

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

25 HtemEE

2020 2019
SECEE SRk
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt 76 Tt FILT 7T
Equity investments measured at FVOCI RELS B AT =
(non-recycling): 3 75 4 b 22 T W 25 )
iR
(R IEEREHAR) ¢
Listed equity investment, at fair value bWz R E - A
R (b) — 17,206

Notes: Mt it

(a) The Group held the above equity investments for long-term strategic (a) AR R R S B B A Sy RIS - e
purposes and designates them as equity investments measured at FoAE A I R A A T WA R R T B
FVOCI (non-recycling). HeR) °

(b) The movement of the Group’s equity investment is as follows: (b) ARG T HE 2 B R BT

2020 2019
o —E
US$’000 US$’000
FICT It FILTIC

At 1 January w—H—H 17,206 15,042
Net change in fair value 2 S fH 5 T AR (6,388) 3,568
Disposals e - (1,096)
Exchange realignment it 58, 3 859 (308)
Deemed disposal of CTI BE IR R E 41 (11,677) -
At 31 December wtH=+—H - 17,206

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B A R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
GOODWILL 26 MBWE
2020 2019
TRTRE ZRUE
US$’000 US$’000
F6 F L FIL T
At 1 January WH—H—H 35,030 35,461
Exchange realignment [ ba, ) 2% 2,342 (431)
Deemed disposal of CTI HAEHEERRE 41 (37,372) -
At 31 December mt_H=+—H - 35,030
Goodwill represented the assets that do not meet the criteria BB TR B W 2 M B I RAET R 2 &
for recognition in the financial statements including workforce B A E B R O R
and synergies that the Group expected to achieve through the N1 B i [F) R g
business combinations.
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units T B B T T R 43 LB T R 1B 5% 43 WL B W
(CGU) identified according to the country of operation and ok 1] ) B 4 A B B o
the operating segment.
As at 31 December 2019, the entire goodwill was included R-Z—NFETH=1T—H > 2¥8%ET)
in the statement of financial position of CTI Group, which R IE R EEE G M B RRES > IE
became an associate of the Group on 1 December 2020 (note RIEHEE P _F _FET+ - H—HE AR
41). The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined EE 2 B s AT (K1) - BleEEEALA
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use W] WK I 4 B T R A A T AR o %R
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by BT RR R A T R A% R R 5 AE 0T i B E A
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond HEAT W B A B T o A SR ] M Bl A i R
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated T3 53 % B A 5 IR~ 3 1Y R R IEATHE S o Bl
weighted average growth rate of 3%. The cash flows were SRBFHIIEHERND%ETIER - RHZI
discounted using a discount rate of 12%. The discount rate BTG BLAT > 3 BT AH B B 4 A A BLAL
used was pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the A B Z 0 B o
relevant CGUs.
INVENTORIES 27 FE
2020 2019
SEOEE SRR
US$’000 US$’000
EEFH KA
Raw materials JE OB 315,712 585,231
Work in progress TE 3 9,702 6,912
Finished goods R 83,753 161,260
409,167 753,403
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
28 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28 BUESERIKRERE
2020 2019
SECRE Rk
US$’000 US$’000
FEoLF o FoLFo
Trade receivables JE W’ 5 iR Ak 123,285 246,296
Bills receivable JE W 22 48 - 11,715
123,285 258,011

Depending on the requirements of the market and business,

the Group may extend credit to its customers. The Group seeks

to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management

and interest may be charged by the Group for overdue trade

receivables at rates determined by the Group with reference

WP T B R AR B IR T EF
BT o A 55 0 3B 465 IR K HR U A 2 R
i o A8 B 5 BT 58 IR AR AT I ) 2 A5 K > T
HE 17 1% A 4R 1 2 2% i 5 4 ) A 2 A R
B HEFRER > AEHMRAEREPER
JE I o AR 55 T e B o Wk e O R 2 MR i S

pslll

to market practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no Br (DB 5% H O A e ) I F -
significant concentration of credit risk. An aging analysis of
the Group’s trade and bills receivables, based on the date of
delivery of goods, is as follows:
2020 2019
SEoEE SRR
US$’000 US$’000
L Tt FoTox
60 days or below 60H E LT 106,968 219,916
61 to 180 days 61&180H 14,509 31,582
Over 180 days Z A 180H 1,808 6,513
123,285 258,011
Notes: Wik
(a) The movements of impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables (a) JRE WA B 0 Rk B SR SR A R S B T -
are as follows:
2020 2019
i S 202 R
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mtk ES En
At 1 January W—H—H 11,810 11,596
Impairment allowance, net VAL T A R A 9 1,231 2,569
Uncollectible amounts written off 3 W el =2 i 4 (11) (2,355)
At 31 December mt_HA=+—H 13,030 11,810
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type, etc). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020 RE-B-ZE+-H=1—H
o HE -84 T 1900 4
BT (FrTr)

B EE ()

Weighted average expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount (US$’000)
Expected credit loss (US$°000)

As at 31 December 2019 RE-Z—-NIE+ZA=+—H
IR B %
WM (L Tr)
Bl E (ErFr)

Weighted average expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount (US$’000)
Expected credit loss (US$'000)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 are
aggregate amounts of nil (2019: US$2,742,000) and US$53,054,000
(2019: US$175,268,000) due from joint ventures and related
companies, respectively, arising from transactions carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured,
bear interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and are
repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by the Group to

its independent third party customers.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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(b)

Neither past due

BWEZERREE (K

Wik :

(#)

B D8 BT HE 0 10 7 » DA
UMD L 800K SRR B
S 25 0 5 5 T 53 AL 905 M (D S M
W B R RN o BRI T
SRS ~ SO WEIRELDL 2 s H B
I P RS AR L ) 4
ULES TR

VLR 35 A T A 4 T A B Ak O R 488 £ A5
1 A7 £ IR B # R

Less than 180 Over 180 days

nor impaired days past due past due Total
REMBARE — BHARISOR  BMZR180H At
0.01% 0.25% 81.64% 9.56%

80,694 39,796 15,825 136,315

8 101 12,921 13,030

0.01% 0.84% 79.11% 4.38%

214,667 40,682 14,472 269,821

21 340 11,449 11,810

(c) AL FRET AT HZERE

Ty Wk AL 35 A AR T 48 W SR AL 5 W T R
Rt 2 (2 —JU4E 1 274.283650) K5,305.4
B RIC (ZF—JUAE « 187,526,883 70) 4 51 B
JRE WS 7 A S B R W] Z K IH o 4 SRR JIE
TR o I 4% TR A SR [ BT S 2 R R EHR > KA
G ST RO (BURSE T s = & P R
B2 R R BAG R HIHA) -
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B8R R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
29 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 29 BEREN - ZREeREMERERER
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
SEOEE SRk
US$’000 US$’000
B/ n FL T
Prepayments FH A IR 3% 149,485 182,987
Deposits w4 1,022 15,443
Other receivables S Al JE W B K 145,295 96,292
Derivative financial instruments fik4m TR - 359
295,802 295,081
Notes: Mt
(a) Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables (a) AREMP T REF A=+ — HZHEMNE
as at 31 December 2020 were aggregate amounts of nil (2019: Ko BRI BRR P > AR AFHR(CE
US$5,758,000), US$96,320,000 (2019: US$2,585,000) and —JUAF £ 575883 00) ~ 9,632.08FE I (ZF—I
US$44,165,000 (2019: US$146,039,000) due from joint ventures, 4E 12585895 50) K4,416.58 50 (B — U+
associates and related companies, respectively. 1184,603.98 370 ) 40 il by EWL 5 B A 36 ~ BB A
H e B W] 2 HOH o
The balances with joint ventures were unsecured, interest-free and BRAEBREZIRE  RTR_FZ—LFE+2A
had no fixed terms of repayment, except for an aggregate amount of Et—HZAEFSS0EFETEEE T AEME
US$5,501,000 due from certain joint ventures which bear interest rate TR 2R 4.9% 51 B IR E R RS » HARERHH
at 4.9% per annum and were repayable on demand as at 31 December SRR - S T J ] R o
2019.
The balances with associates and related companies are unsecured, L 2 ] T By W) 2 ARG SR S B K
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. A [ 2 R AR o
(b) As at December 2020, the balance of impairment allowance for deposits (b) REREZRETZAZ—H o ERTHERAM

and other receivables was US$5,244,000 (2019: US$4,911,000) that
resulting from default events that are expected over the remaining life
of the exposure (lifetime ECLs).
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

30

ReERBTERREMERASREEN

2020 2019
TRTRE ZRUE
US$’000 US$’000
BV e n
Cash and bank balances other than time Bl& BBRAT &7 O B 16 & W A7)
deposits 339,703 407,920
Time deposits E I R 209,689 34,436
Total cash and bank balances B4 B SRATAE R R A 549,392 442,356
Less: Pledged deposits W M ER (11,896) (17,699)
Less: Time deposits with maturity over three W B BB = A 2 E AR
months (1,605) (2,293)
Cash and cash equivalents Bl T Bl W 535,891 422,364

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dong
(“VND”) amounted to US$64,442,000 (2019: US$366,752,000) and
US$451,087,000 (2019: US$67,712,000), respectively. RMB and
VND are not freely convertible into other currencies. Under Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations in China and the Law
on Foreign Investment in Vietnam, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB and VND into other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business for our foreign currency businesses
such as imports of raw materials and equipment, distribution of

dividends, etc.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are

deposited with credit-worthy banks with no recent history of default.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

BoRIREFAZTH s REEZ AR
W e L P L P B R RAT 547 43 T 7. 6,444.2
B RIE (2R —JUAE 2 306,675 28 3 I0) K4l
5,108.7# HKIC# R IC (= F—JL4F ¢ 6,771.28{
J6) o N RWE Bt R JE 3 AN RE F B e R At £
W o AL e IR o T A L T ARG T - R B R
Ao BB AR L 0 T A 4R S A o AR AR A o
5 008 4% RO AT W LR 2 AT AR N IR
Bt g A SEAR ORI LW > DUEATOM SE B 22 5
P 1 AR R B > A IR

AR SRAT 2 Bl & 1 45 HSRAT ¥ B A9 A7 OR ik
BURIJE, o ML AR 4 [0 2 B 4 v o SR B O PR 4%
S TR K o NSRBI TR S A2 kAR BT 2
B o ST A A B TR A7 R A TR 9] 4 46 R
AR B R Z 8T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

30 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 30 BRERBAERRAMRESREEN
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) (%)
Notes: (continued) Mt = (4F)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (c) Rl oY T AR I B A R

The table below sets out the changes in the Group’s liabilities from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which

cash flow were, or future cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s

A A AR S T O B A M AL R
¢ A BLG AN I B A 2 AL o il T Bl O A Y £
it 2 LB 4 R R AR B RN o A AR
Aok B Y AR A v o SR L A ) O A WY B

consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing B ©
activities.
Bank Corporate Lease
borrowings bond liabilities Total
AT e e HLEE £ k]
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
F T Ee o E e on E /e on
At 1 January 2020 MoBFRE—-H—H 1,722,976 11,833 477,110 2,211,919
Changes from financing cash flow: B S E)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings 1 BRAT A K 2,113,529 - - 2,113,529
Repayment of bank borrowings LR SRAT AT (1,906,336) - - (1,906,336)
Redemption of corporate bond Vi I A 2B 5 - (11,973) - (11,973)
Capital element of lease OS2
rental paid A& A - - (43,282) (43,282)
Total changes from financing T B A R AR )
cash flows 1,930,169 (140) 433,828 2,363,857
Exchange realignment [ e il 3 65,190 140 4,331 69,661
Other changes: HAib 528 -
Increase in lease liabilities from entering 4 N BRI 5T 3731 AL 65 1
into new leases during the year 14 i A4 AL B LA - - 70,742 70,742
Acquisition of subsidiaries WSS B g A ) 6,630 - 96 6,726
Amortisation of upfront fee T S ) 4 e Y 2,439 - - 2,439
Deemed disposal of CTI A th 8 IE KR (868,501) - (28,450) (896,951)
At 31 December 2020 e 3
+=-H=+—H 1,135,927 - 480,547 1,616,474
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(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

30 BRERBAEFARAEMRSREEN

(c) Al S B 9 A v B R R () -

Bank Corporate Lease
borrowings bond liabilities Total
ST fedies MEAMS Hagm
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEILFT Enen FEILFT En
At 1 January 2019 W_F—N4FE—H—H 1,666,326 145,041 - 1,811,367
Impact on initial application of B UCER 4 0 W B A e o
IFRS 16 A 1655 2 8 - - 388,410 388,410
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2019 N EB—IE—H—H BB 1,666,326 145,041 388,410 2,199,777
Changes from financing cash flow: Al Bl RS E) -
Proceeds from new bank borrowings B R T A AR 1,655,480 - - 1,655,480
Repayment of bank borrowings TR SRAT A 3k (1,586,142) — — (1,586,142)
Redemption of corporate bond [HEEES e - (130,545) - (130,545)
Capital element of lease rental paid CATRLE A 4 2 A8 4 - - (34,096) (34,096)
Total changes from financing cash flows il B 4 v 4 B ) 69,338 (130,545) (34,096) (95,303)
Exchange realignment B 5, 308 (14,537) (3,004) (102) (17,643)
Other changes: Hfb 5B -
Increase in lease liabilities from entering S B ET SR AL BT
into new leases during the year B A - — 122,898 122,898
Amortisation of upfront fee T S 4] U A Y 1,849 341 - 2,190
At 31 December 2019 R_FJET_H=1+—H 1,722,976 11,833 477,110 2,211,919
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
30 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 30 RERBITEFERREMREREESR
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) (%)
Notes: (continued) Wit : (A7)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) FHEE B 43 s
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows for leases MHEF AR ERBEEZSFUTUTHE
comprise the following: I -
2020 2019
TR ORI Z2—hAE
US$’000 US$’000
E e on E 7 n
Within investing activities ARG B 4,077 28,442
Cash flows for land use rights T £ P 2 B4 i 4,077 28,442
Within operating activities BETEREWEE) 70,532 59,286
Within financing activities A AE R S B) 43,282 34,096
Cash flows for other right-of-use assets T A P R ¥ 2 B 113,814 93,382
31 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 31 EBREZRIKRERE
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of A 42 [ % e 0 R HE A B 5 R AR MR 8 4
the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (W& H AE) T :
follows:
2020 2019
SECEE SE R
US$’000 US$’000
F L F e n
60 days or below 60H = LT 260,051 312,496
61 to 180 days 61%2180H 91,296 30,032
Over 180 days Z ¥ 180H 33,748 8,517
385,095 351,045
Bills payable JE A B2 4 6,129 95,071
391,224 446,116

Included in the Group’s trade payables as at 31 December
2020 is an aggregate amount of nil (2019: US$1,631,000),
US$132,337,000 (2019: nil) and US$71,170,000 (2019:
US$69,746,000) due to joint ventures, associate and related
companies respectively, arising from transactions carried out
in the ordinary course of business of the Group. The balances
are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable within credit
periods similar to those offered by its independent third party
suppliers.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

AREEMP ZF_FET A=+ —HZ BN
HOERORGE8E I WEER S EIEEN
JE AT £ A 3~ W A R S B A W) Z BR0E
AR (2 —JLF 16318 300) ~ 1
3,233 78 F 8 (ZF—L4a : %) KX1,117.0
HEIL (CF—JUAE £ 6974.685KT0) - %%
SREFUT AL ~ S B S M B A (B
7 S ) 8~ 5 =y 3k E T T R AR 2 AR S I A
#) o



32

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
B A R 2

b ¥ HE

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32 HtENRRREREH
2020 2019
SEORE SE A
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt L Tt FL T I
Contract liabilities HH A (a) 29,813 107,086
Deferred income 8 1E YL A - 46,038
Accruals THREH 217,706 264,540
Other payables Al JE A5 R 3% 175,758 141,430
Derivative financial instruments it 4w T H 10,824 -
434,101 559,094
Notes: Mt
(a) As at 31 December 2020, the Group has contract liabilities of (a) REZZFFEFTFZHA=Z+—H » KEENAGHA
US$29,813,000 (2019: US$107,086,000), which represents the 5 #52,981.38 F 50 (ZF—JU4E « 1fR708.68 3%
obligation to transfer goods to customers for which the consideration Je) o AR ) R i 2 5 R £ T i 3T
has been received. All contract liabilities at the beginning of the £ o RERE IR A & R A6 SR ARG
reporting period were recognised as revenue in the current reporting 1P 42 i 40 A8 A £ i IR T S R WA o
period from performance obligations satisfied upon delivery of goods.
(b) Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31 (b) AREFPR FZRET A= HZH MR

December 2020 were aggregate amounts of nil (2019: US$22,120,000),
US$108,669,000 (2019: US$38,000) and US$53,520,000 (2019:
US$64,790,000) due to joint ventures, associates and related

companies, respectively.

The balances with joint ventures, associates and related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment, except
for (i) an aggregate amount of US$22,111,000 due to certain joint
ventures which bear interest rate at 2% per annum, and are repayable
on demand as at 31 December 2019, (ii) US$3,027,000 due to a related
company which bear interest rate at 6% per annum and are repayable
within one year as at 31 December 2019, (iii) US$25,945,000 (2019:
US$23,126,000) due to a related company which is repayable within
one month and, (iv) US$13,789,000 (2019: nil) due to a related
company which bear interests at 3.85% — 4.35% and are repayable

within one year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—T R -2 FER

FRAKFERE LB/ EF (T
2,212.0 % 50) ~ 1{€866.9W KX (ZF—Ju
AE 1 38835 I0) K5,352.08 K0 (ZF—JulE .
6,479.08 3K IT) 4 il s EAT &5 8 A3 -~ BiE A w]
T B A W] Z 3KOE o

BABAYE  BEATDRMBARZRE BT
(R ZF—WE+ZH=+—H» A5F2,211.1%
FHTCHEAT 5 T 48 A T IR R 2% 5 B K A%
TORME » GOVRZF—WETZHA=1+—H
302.7# 35 70 HE A — 5 B L2 ) 5 35 4R R 3R 6%
BRI N BR > (iii)2,594.58 K 7C (%
—JUAE © 2,312,685 350 ) JE AT — % B A W] SROE
TR A AR > DL Giv) 1,378.98 368 (=
T JUAE ) RE AT — 5K B2 Tk AR R R
3.85% — 4.35%wFFE R TR —4E AR SN AR
SRS SEHRAT  H R % B R A o

171



172

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

[N B & R 2 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 $R & B A
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
33 BANK BORROWINGS 33 HRITER
2020 2019
SEORE SE A
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t E i i FLF
Bank borrowings, secured AR AT AR 5k (a),(b) 115,168 186,694
Bank borrowings, unsecured JHE AR AT SR AT A 3K 1,020,759 1,536,282
Total bank borrowings SRAT A K AR A 1,135,927 1,722,976
Analysed into amounts repayable: — fE¥E &% % ¢
Within one year or on demand — AR N B R R 306,307 1,174,796
In the second year ) = 72,648 365,771
In the third to fifth year NE=FHAE 391,872 165,639
Beyond five years i A 365,100 16,770
Total bank borrowings SRAT A #k AE 1,135,927 1,722,976
Portion classified as current 4358 R I ) B A A
liabilities (c) (306,307) (1,174,796)
Non-current portion Ik B B A 829,620 548,180
Notes: M ik
(a) At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s property, plant (a) RE-BZRET A= —H s AREE T

and equipment with carrying amounts of US$92,470,000 (2019:
US$153,135,000) (note 16(b)) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings of the Group.

(b) At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s land use rights with
carrying amounts of US$36,318,000 (2019: US$54,596,000) (note 18)

were pledged as security for bank borrowings of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 33 RITEME)
Notes: (continued) Mt (4F)
(c) The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings of the Group are (c) AR A [ 2 BRAT A ek R G L DL W s LA
denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
—zan i
US$’000 US$’000
Enn En
Us$ ESH 746,802 672,079
VND L ) 163,907 343,530
RMB NG 225,218 707,367
1,135,927 1,722,976
As at 31 December 2020, none of the covenants relating to bank MR REFH=Z+—H MR E
borrowings had been breached (2019: nil). PR SR AT A R Bk (B —JU4E ¢ ) o
(d) As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current portion of long- (d) AR BEFTAZT—H o AREEREMRAT
term bank borrowings amounted to US$44,265,000 (2019: MK Z TR F44,426. 58 K0 (B — L4 .
US$330,043,000). 3£i3,004.38 3 5C) °
CORPORATE BOND 34 DHEEH
2020 2019
SRORE SE A
US$’000 US$’000
F L FiL Er n
At 1 January w—H—H 11,833 145,041
Redemption g [l (11,973) (130,545)
Amortisation of upfront fee T 5 40 4 2 i B - 341
Exchange realignment T B8, i 140 (3,004)
At 31 December, non-current B+H+_H=+—H EiFKH — 11,833

On 29 November 2016, the corporate bond with a
principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to
US$146,305,000) was issued and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. After deducting the issuance costs, the Group
received a net proceed of RMB990,000,000 (equivalent to
US$144,842,000) from the issuance. CTI used the proceeds
from the issuance for repayment of loans from financial

institutions and replenishment of working capital.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
34 CORPORATE BOND (continued) 34 wEEH(H)
The coupon rate of the corporate bond was fixed at 3.69% A FEE S 2 B R O EE R I4E3.69% ©
per annum. The maturity of the corporate bond shall be 5 A EEFZ IR A TR > N E =4 KIE
years, with CTD’s right to adjust the coupon rate and a right KRB E VA B A R B R E &
of redemption exercisable by the holders at the end of the BEHEZREE RE_Z2—-NWHET+_H
first three-year period. During the year ended 31 December =t+—HILEER > FTEEFHRAEEHRLE
2019, certain bond holders exercised their redemption rights 5 2 RS R AT TR T B - N =2 — L
as per the terms and conditions of the corporate bond. As at FEH A= H o A SR R R R R [
31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the corporate bond 1% 5 N RWE8,239.48 (FHZE M ,183.38 35 50)
after these redemptions was RMB82,394,000 (equivalent to BN FE—NLET+_H=+—HZ2 5 mEut
US$11,833,000) and was classified as a non-current liability as SR IR A o
at 31 December 2019.
On 23 July 2020, the Group held a meeting with its corporate WNoFZ-FFELA =0 REEEPE
bond holders and obtained their approval on early repayment EHRRFE NBITE® > WESERSFA A#R
by the Group. Hence, instead of the original repayment date in WEAREEREIER - Hk > REFAR T
November 2021, the Group had repaid the corporate bond on FENHZHEBEREER £ _—48+—H
3 August 2020. PR R e
35 LEASE LIABILITIES 35 WHEAME
2020 2019
TRTRA ZRJUE
US$’000 US$’000
B n FIL T
At 1 January #—H—H 477,110 388,410
Continuing operations FEREER
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B o g 2 ) 96 -
New leases WA 57,583 106,201
Payments £F 3%k (37,818) (29,854)
Exchange realignment I S i % 2,286 479
Discontinued operations DRI RS B
New leases 1 B 13,159 16,697
Payments (L (5,464) (4,242)
Exchange realignment I S i % 2,045 (581)
Deemed disposal of CTI PR B IR R E (28,450) —
At 31 December mht+_H=+—H 480,547 477,110
Analysed into: AU ¢
Current portion B ER 4 38,076 36,749
Non-current portion FE U B 5 4y 442,471 440,361
480,547 477,110
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 35 MHESE(HE)
At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable as MN-R-RE+_HAH=+—H - HEAGME
follows: BEBESMUT
2020 2019
SECEE SRk
US$’000 US$’000
E i i FLFo
Within 1 year —4E RN 38,076 36,749
After 1 year but within 2 years —AEBE AN 36,636 35,987
After 2 years but within 5 years THEBEHEN 114,316 109,699
After 5 years HAEDIE 291,519 294,675
442,471 440,361
480,547 477,110
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 36 HttERBAME
2020 2019
SECEE Sk
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve an FLFo
Provision for severance allowance 3 B HE 1,576 1,583
Non-current portion of deferred income B B B 4y i 38 T e A 22,040 56,325
Derivative financial instruments 4T H 1,266 -
24,882 57,908
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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37 DEFERRED TAX 37 EEHIE
Net deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised in the AREE PN LA BB RN E PR Z FELER
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: HERE/ABWT :
2020 2019
SECEE CEJUE
US$’000 US$’000
< i FLF
Deferred tax assets R 9 B I 8,242 12,154
Deferred tax liabilities B G Bl IH A & (39,550) (82,373)
(31,308) (70,219)

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and

AR A > A B T 2 90 A0 B I T S B

liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows: Bnr -
Revaluation Losses
of properties, Depreciation ~available for
plantand  Revaluation in excess of offsetting
machinery of other  Revaluation related future Dividend Net deferred
and intangible financial ~ of biological ~ depreciation taxable  withholding tax assets/
assets assets assets allowance profits tax Others  (liabilities)
FR
ES T WEEN  MEER
RERREYE  RbeR kHo BEME RAEZ 13} HRERE
GEEMN  WEEN O EEEN  NENRE  THEHER  hARE Kb wE/ (A
US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$000
#nfrn  Fifr  FExfx  Fifr  Exfx  Fifr  ErTfxi FEiFx
At 1 January 2020 REZB_RE
—J—H (26,476) (3,041) (40,408) 5,221 10,420 (11,101) (4,834) (70,219)
Continuing operations HRREBEH
Deferred tax credited/ R AN/
(charged) to profit or loss ~ (FIBR) 2 EHEBE
during the year (note 12) — (Mf7£12) (98) - (838) (249) 9 12,253 7,026 18,085
Deferred tax credited to B B 3
equity during the year ZBIERA 1,339 - - - - - 253 1,592
Exchange realignment JEE 3o 7 % (136) - (179) 20 377 - 148 230
Discontinued operations A% L &8 3
Deferred tax credited/ SRR R/
(charged) to profit or loss  (IfR) Z ERERIA
during the year 765 - - - - - (2,683) (1,918)
Deferred tax credited to BB Y
equity during the year BRI - 1,597 - - - - - 1,597
Exchange realignment EE 567 (950) (131) - - 240 - (61) (904)
Deemed disposal of CTI ~ HfEHH & E A% E
(note 41) (Hit41) 15,127 1,575 - - (3,828) - 7,355 20,29
At 31 December 2020 R_B_F4E
+ZH=Z+—H (10,429) - (41,425) 4,992 7,200 1,152 7,202 (31,308)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
N B A B 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

37 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities and their movements during the year are as follows:

37

i SE B E ()

TR Py > AR 2 B A BT Y A
W

Revaluation Losses
of properties, Depreciation available
plantand  Revaluation in excess of ~for offsetting
machinery of other  Revaluation related future Dividend Net deferred
and intangible financial o biological ~ depreciation taxable  withholding tax assets/
assets assets assets allowance profits tax Others  (liahilities)
JR
Wk KRR EERN  MRER
HAEREEE e £ BHEE O BAEZ 135} FRERH
EEM  EEEM  EEEHN  WENRE  TEEER  WEEER e &/ (a8
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$'000 Us$'000
Frfr  Fxfr  FExTx  ExTrx  FExtr  ExTx  ExTx  FExTx
At 1 January 2019 REZ-0E
—~H—H (24,487) (1,331) (24,182) 1,927 10,592 (19,567) (13,395) (70,443)
Effect of adoption of AT 50 R o
IFRS 16 LEN =4 % - - - - - - 8,166 8,166
At [ January 2019 Sy
(restated) —f—H (B&H) (24,487) (1,331) (24,182) 1,927 10,592 (19,567) (5,229) (62,277)
Continuing operations HREREH
Deferred tax credited/ SRR R/
(charged) to profit or loss ~ (1F%) Z EREBA
during the year (note 12)  (H#t12) (116) - (16,187) 3,393 (10) 8,466 (756) (5,210
Deferred tax credited to 4 J RS P 38 A
equity during the year BRI 19 - - - - - - 19
Exchange realignment T AR (34) - (39) (99) (1) - 112 (137)
Discontinued operations A% 1L 88 3
Deferred tax credited/ SRR RN/
(charged) to profit or loss ~ (1kk) Z EHHIE
during the year 1,246 - - - (40) - 999 2,205
Deferred tax charged to B B 0
equity during the year ZEEHH (40) (1,191) - - - - - (1,831)
Disposal of other financial  t &l & &
assets - 10 - - - - - 20
Acquisition of a subsidiary — HU8— % W 2 7
(note 42) (Wit42) (2812) - - - - - - (2812)
Exchange realignment [FE 3 i (242) 61 - - (45) - 40 (186)
At 31 December 2019 REB-NE
+ZHZ+—H (26,476) (3,041) (40,408) 5,221 10420 (11,101) (4,834) (70,219)
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

37

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The Group has tax losses arising in mainland China that will expire

within five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

At 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of unused tax losses of US$151,372,000 (2019:
US$175,376,000) as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
unrecognised tax losses arose in mainland China, and will expire within

five years from the end of the reporting period.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on any dividends distributable by
the subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008 onwards.

At 31 December 2020, temporary differences unrecognised for deferred
tax liabilities relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
amounted to US$65,776,000 (2019: US$239,501,000). Deferred
tax liabilities of US$6,578,000 (2019: US$23,950,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these retained profits as it is probable that profits will

not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

n

37
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
SHARE CAPITAL 38 B
Shares B 7
2020 2019
CECERE R
US$°000 US$’000
<y an FEL T
Authorised W E
Ordinary shares: 2EAE W :
36,000,000,000 shares 36,000,000,000/%
(2019: 36,000,000,000 shares) of P:§~7‘L¢ * 36,000,000,000/¢)
US$0.01 each T JB T H0.0136 7T 360,000 360,000
Convertible preference shares: 3 ¥
Series A — 20,000,000,000 shares AZ %1 - 20,000,000,000/%
(2019: 20,000,000,000 shares) of P:§~7‘L¢ * 20,000,000,000/¢)
US$0.01 each T JB T H0.0136 7T 200,000 200,000
Series B — 4,000,000,000 shares B& %1 — 4,000,000,000/8%
(2019: 4,000,000,000 shares) of RN 4900,000,000,&)
US$0.01 each 5 JB i {60.0158 7T 40,000 40,000
240,000 240,000
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid CBAT KRB
Ordinary shares: 2EAE W :
24,071,837,232 shares 24,071,837,232 1
(2019: 24,071,837,232 shares) of (=% U4 - 24,071,837,23218)
US$0.01 each B JBL i ££0.015% 76 240,718 240,718
Convertible preference shares: 3 a5
Series B — 1,261,077,748 shares B& %) - 1,261,077,748%
(2019: 1,261,077,748 shares) of (=% —JUAF - 1,061,077,7480K)
US$0.01 each T JB T H0.0136 7T 12,611 12,611
253,329 253,329

There is no movement in the Company’s issued ordinary shares
and convertible preference shares during the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019.

T 490 I S PR HBE e S ) o
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38

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Convertible preference shares

The convertible preference shares are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company and are entitled to the
same dividends that are declared for the ordinary shares.
Convertible preference shares do not carry the right to vote
in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the Company’s
residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of the
Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference
shares, pari passu as between themselves by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts of the convertible
preference shares held by them respectively, an
amount equal to the aggregate of the issue price of
all the convertible preference shares held by them
respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari
passu basis among the holders of any class of shares in
the capital of the Company other than the convertible
preference shares and other than any shares which are
not entitled to participate in such assets, by reference
to the aggregate nominal amounts paid up on the shares
held by them respectively; and
(iii)  the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to
and be distributed on a pari passu basis among the
holders of any class of shares including the convertible
preference shares, other than any shares not entitled to
participate in such assets, by reference to the aggregate
nominal amounts of shares held by them respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by
the Company or the holders thereof.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 39 to the
financial statements.

A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (“2002 Share
Option Scheme”) which became effective on 26 November
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date. On 22 June 2012, the
board of directors of the Company approved the Company to
terminate the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new
share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) in place of the
2002 Share Option Scheme, which will remain in force for a
period of ten years from that date.

The Share Option Scheme is operated for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Company’s directors, senior executives, employees of
the Group and those participants that, in the opinion of the
directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the
Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of
ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of share options granted
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer (including the date of offer
granted), upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after the grant and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.
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39

40

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary share of the
Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at a shareholders’ meeting.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had no share

options outstanding.

There was no grant of share options during the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a) The merger reserve represents the excess of the total
of the consideration transferred for the acquisition
of subsidiaries through business combinations under
common control and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interest over the carrying amount of the
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and pre-acquisition
reserves combined by the Group.

(b) The other financial assets fair value reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for other financial assets in note 2.4 —
Investments and other financial assets.

(c) The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
office premises held for own use set out in note 2.4 —
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation.

A

39

40

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

=

BRRESTE (&)

Sl JBL MR < A M by o O o MEAS TR (1)
Ay v JBe Ay T U B HEE E AG R I AR B 2
A P WA T AR 5 % i) AR 2 W) A BE A H T
T A AE S FO U6 A2 It 2 ¥ 9 B - 4 Wi £ 5
Fe(iii) A< 23 W] 0 My 2 Wi > L=F 2
w2 e o R RE RO\ IR A B S B
IR KRG BB ZRER o

RoBoBER B EF A
IRV EE T TP

REEZRZRERZF-LE+TZA
S HIRE N o M B A B2 AT

Eh]

AREMZHEHERRE R _BER TN
H#+ZA=1HIMEEZ SR REH IR
RERARERET RN

(a) A ORGSR SR
R P A i i 2 ) o e 2 AR
T Tt 28 s e 42 ol 1 B 2 2 S > AR
7S RO A O > R LR
S T A4 O v 2 S

At 5 i 5 28 2 o {6 48 )5 4% HEORS FY
RE2.4 — B B Ho At A Pt 2
At 7l 28 T HR A B BT S BOR R BE

Yo SR Al )3 IR R B RE2.4 -
3~ W R B R AT Ptz A R
SEME T T R AN 0 8 A BOR PR B o



40

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

RESERVES (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with the PRC Companies Law or the Law
of the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and
Foreign Investment as applicable to the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. None of the
Group’s PRC reserve funds as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were distributable in the form of cash dividends.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

2.4 — Foreign currencies.

In April 2019, CPVC (an indirect subsidiary of the
Company in Vietnam) completed the process of
converting its retained profits of VND7,446,879,000,000
(equivalent to US$319,554,000) to its share capital.

In September 2019, CTI (an indirect subsidiary of
the Company in PRC) completed the process of share
capital reorganisation. The balance of reserves of CTI
on the reorganisation effective date (i.e. 30 April 2019)
was transferred to capital reserve according to PRC

Company Law.

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

2.4 — Hedging.
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41

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 1 December 2020, CTI, originally a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed the acquisition of
43 entities that are principally engaged in swine business
from CTAI, a related company of the Company, for an
aggregate consideration of RMB28,140 million (equivalent
to approximately US$4,312 million). The consideration was
settled by means of issuance of new shares in CTI to CTAI
representing 65% of its share capital as enlarged by such issue.
Upon completion of this transaction on 1 December 2020,
CTI is owned as to 35% by the Company and 65% by CTAI

Accordingly, the financial results of CTI for the period from 1
January 2020 to 30 November 2020 were de-consolidated and
presented as “Discontinued operations” in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Prior year
comparative information has also been restated to conform
with the current year presentation. Financial results of CTI for
the month of December 2020 were equity picked up and shown
under “Share of profits and losses of a 35%-owned associate -
CTI” on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

A
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 BB R A =
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
41 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 41 BRUEKEXEK(E)
(a) Results from the discontinued operations have (a) CESREFEEmREENZTKIE
been included in the consolidated statement of BB EHNT :
comprehensive income as follows:
For the
period from For the
1 January 2020 year ended
to 30 November 31 December
2020 2019
BE
TR OERE e
—H—H=E ZE LA
+—A +=A=+—H
=+ B ILHIE IE4EBE
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi FLFo
REVENUE® A 4,182,282 3,465,596
Cost of sales 89 B AR (3,585,058) (2,938,738)
Gross profit BF 597,224 526,858
Other income and expenses, net oAl A T B F B (355,033) (343,071)
Results from operating activities BB EEZEHK 242,191 183,787
Income tax Bt 45 it (53,534) (40,423)
Results from operating activities, REeWmdmEtz
net of tax? b B 1% £ 4@ 188,657 143,364
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI® BAE B TERE Z W4 1,466,255 -
— Excess of value of new shares issued — BRI KRB Z 81T
over net asset value of deemed A E A
disposal of CTI 1,449,626 -
— Exchange fluctuation reserve — IE K % WAl Z A1 BE I Bh
attributable to CTI recycled to fil 485 o 8 AR A
profit or loss 16,629 -
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR M1 A 4F i # 1,654,912 143,364
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 $R & B A

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD
h#® BB B A R 2 F

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
41 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 41 CORIEREXK (#)
(a) (continued) (a) (%)
For the
period from For the
1 January 2020 year ended
to 30 November 31 December
2020 2019
®E
TRTRE e
—H—H=E “E—NE
+—R +=A=+—H
=+ A kW Ik 45
US$’000 US$’000
Ve Er n
Profit attributable to: e ) 5B T -
Shareholders of the Company A ]
Profit excluding gain on deemed o A S A LA B
disposal of CTI IERBE 2 Wi 169,643 128,863
Gain on deemed disposal of CTI BAE BRI E 2 s 1,466,255 -
1,635,898 128,863
Non-controlling interests I 4 o) ek O A 19,014 14,501
1,654,912 143,364

Revenue excluded intersegment sales from discontinued

operations to continuing operations.

(2) Results from operating activities, net of tax, included (2)
unrealised profit adjustment arising from intersegment sales
from discontinued operations to continuing operations.

(3) An one-off gain on deemed disposal of CTI of (3)

US$1,466,255,000 was recorded upon the completion of
the aforesaid transaction, representing (i) the difference
between the agreed value of CTI of US$2,322,552,000 and
the net asset value of CTI attributable to shareholders of
US$872,926,000 on transaction completion date, and (ii) an
one-off gain on recycling of exchange reserve as a result of the
deemed disposal of US$16,629,000.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

N 4 B A8 R 24 7
Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
41 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 41 EBRLEREEK(E)
(b) Effect of deemed disposal of CTI on the financial (b) PBAAE B TR R B S AR A S8 ) H

position of the Group on the date of completion is as

follows:

W BN Z BT

US$’000

E e an
Property, plant and equipment Wy ~ Wi B wk i 810,650
Investment properties wEYE 7,575
Land use rights - M i RE 128,845
Other right-of use assets HoAth Al A REE & 29,230
Intangible assets W& 32,626
Investments in joint ventures REBEERTRE 22,272
Investments in associates S AT G 113,880
Other financial assets H Aty 4 b & 2 11,677
Goodwill R 37,372
Other non-current assets oAt I 3 B 4,621
Deferred tax assets BRI E 3,635
Total non-current assets AR A A 1,202,383
Inventories e 379,853
Trade and bills receivables JE W B 5 Mk M 461,505
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FHAFHR K ~ $& 4 S o Ath E i iR 3 398,986
Pledged deposits [RELELE=S¢ 956
Cash and cash equivalents BB &5 EY 430,145
Total current assets MW K R 1,671,445
Trade and bills payables JE AT B 5 MRk I 52 323,212
Other payables and accruals Al R A R ok K T 2 ¢ ) 522,604
Lease liabilities MEAME 6,370
Bank borrowings SRAT AT K 748,808
Dividend payables JRE A JBE S 60,257
Income tax payables JE A BT A5 B 17,453
Total current liabilities S R =E iy 1,678,704
Lease liabilities HEAE 22,080
Bank borrowings SRAITAE K 119,693
Other non-current liabilities HoAl I i B £ A 35,086
Deferred tax liabilities 9% 7 Bl I A 23,864
Total non-current liabilities 48 Jk i B A 200,723
Net assets and liabilities BERAEFHE 994,401
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 $R & B A
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
41 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 41 BRUEKEXEK(E)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
US$’°000
FJFIL
Net assets and liabilities & & A 994,401
Shareholders’ equity RS 872,926
Non-controlling interests Ik 52 ) 1 A 25 121,475
Total equity HE %3 4830 994,401
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of CEBEZ B ABE&EEY (430,145)
Net cash outflow W& W (430,145)
(c) An analysis of the cash flows of the discontinued (c) KA CKRIEREERZ B4
operations is as follows: T
For the period
from 1 January Year ended
2020 to 30 31 December
November 2020 2019
ER
TR OERE BE
—H—HZE 2 LA
+—1 +=ZA=+—~H
=+ B ILE R4 BE
US$’000 US$’'000
F L FiL E Sy arn
Cash flows from operating activities REEHZHERE 171,013 271,651
Cash flows from investing activities BEGEH B LM (125,541) (45,831)
Cash flows from financing activities Rl 5 B 2 Bl AR R 57,497 (199,542)
Net cash inflow from discontinued RKACKIEREEBEZFHERA
operations 102,969 32,278
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

BB A R 2 7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 41 CORIEREXE (H)
Operating segment information (d) WEHKESE
China feed and
swine food operations
v B RE B R R SR
For the period
from 1 January For the
2020 to year ended
30 November 31 December
2020 2019
®E
TR OERE BE
—H—H=ZE RN
+—A=Z=+H +=ZH=Z+—H
1k 1 14
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi E T n
Segment revenue BB
Sales to external customers BT RE R 4,182,282 3,465,596
Intersegment sales SRR 2 o 130,794 83,888
4,313,076 3,549,484
Reconciliation: PEER -
Elimination of intersegment sales S [B] 2 6 S K 8 (130,794) (83,888)
Consolidated revenue WA 4,182,282 3,465,596
Segment results 4y JH R IR
Discontinued operations B ¥ T YL 234,254 183,440
Share of profits and losses of: JRE A ¥ 1) % s 1R -
Joint ventures HEME 4,344 2,634
Other associates H AT 2 A 7] 24,937 26,506
263,535 212,580
Reconciliation: WEER
Bank interest income SRAT R B 2,222 2,881
Finance costs on bank borrowings and #4745 3k St A JE 48 25 > B 5 AR
corporate bond (23,566) (31,674)
Results from operating activities K880 B 2k 2 A 242,191 183,787
Other segment information HAth 43 R
Depreciation and amortisation P78 % i 8 53,925 46,090
Capital expenditure B A BH % 159,405 116,044
Additions of other non-current assets 37 3 HAth JE i 8 & & 17,303 76,913
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

% B B &R 2

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
41 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 41

(d) Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information
Revenue from external customers

All revenue from external customers is from Mainland
China based on the location of the customers.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b ¥ HE

41

(e)

following transactions with related parties during the

period/year:

Sales of goods to:

High Orient Enterprises
Limited (“HOEL”)
and its related entities”

Joint ventures

Associates

Other related entities with same
shareholdering structure as CPG

Purchases of goods from:

HOEL and its related entities®

Chia Tai Enterprises International
Limited (“CTEI”) and its
subsidiaries”

Joint ventures

Associates

Other related entities with same
shareholdering structure as CPG

Rental income received and
receivable from HOEL and its

related entities”

Rental expenses paid and payable
to:
HOEL and its related entities"
Other related entities with same
shareholdering structure as CPG

Royalty fee to CTAI*

SAP system license and maintenance
service fee paid to CPF IT Center
Co., Led. (“CPF IT”)"

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The discontinued operations of the Group had the

B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

41

(e)

Note
M i

BEEMT

High Orient Enterprises
Limited ([HOEL )X
JL B A 2
TEak

T 2 A )

BLCPGH M I Jit HE S 4 2
Al B A 2

HEEMA :
HOEL J H: B i 4> 3%~

IE KA S B A )
(TCTEL) K 3 bt & 2> %]~
ER-gie 3

R /N
BLCPGH HH [F] B hE 2 =
Ho At B LA 2

TEHOEL K H: [ 8 £ 3 e Wi
K ez e A

JE A B B4 A 42
P
HOEL J H: B 4 4> 3
HLCPGH HH ] JBe M 2 b =
J Atk B LA 2

Ll PNy

SAPZR S FTF 7] i K #i1s 1 2 Ik
% % T CPF IT Center Co.,

Led. (TCPFIT)) " (vi)
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For the period
from 1 January
2020 to 30
November 2020
BE
g%
—H—H=ZE
+—A

=+ HILHIE
US$’000
F6 F L

1,133,752
31,498
1,319

2,620

1,069,672

4,118
23,118
203

44,516

1,019

385

1,710

37

800

BEAh > ACHR 2 B Ik A R R
1,4 PR B A WA A2 5

Year ended
31 December
2019

L2
I
+=H=+—H
1k 4 B
US$’000
STE T T

848,201
27,022
2,638

5,137

876,853

3,006
21,900

26,493

1,238

653

523

873
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% B B &R

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

41 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(e) (continued)

A H

41 CRIEREXEE(E)
(e)  (#)

For the period
from 1 January

SAP technical service fee paid to SAPH; fig IR % % 7 L ifg £ [H
Shanghai Zheng Yuan Computer AR A BR AT
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai ([ L¥gER])"

Zheng Yuan”)”

Project management fee to Chia HEEEETIERBESBR

Tai Handing Modern Agricultural 23R4 A PR A 7] *

Technology Co., Ltd.*

Interest income on trade receivables i HHOEL MK H B A2

from HOEL and its related entities — HEWE 5 Mk 3k = F) & A
Equipment procurement and R RE R YT
installation contracts to Shanghai [ ¥ 1E 5% 75 8 45 A R 2 #]
Zhengcheng Mechanical- (I ¥ ER]) *
Electrical Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Zheng Cheng”)*
Acquisition of subsidiaries*: W i L Jg 2 R
Hainan Chia Tai Animal ) 1E K % AR i IR K &
Husbandry Co., Ltd. (“Hainan WHRAFR ([HWEIEKR])

CT”) from CT Animal
Husbandry

C. P. Aquaculture (Beihai) Co.,
Ltd. (“CP Beihai”) from CPF

W CPEU I b 3% (b ¥g) K &
fRHE FRA R ([ b b))

Jilin Deda from other related I HABBLCPG A AH F R Z
entities with same shareholders RS E AT N N
as CPG

Lianyungang Chia Tai Agro- ) 1E K = WA R A B WO
Industry Development Co., Ltd. HE IR OK R R R AR
(“Lianyungang CT”) from Chia 2w ([HZEEIE KRR
Tai Lianyungang Co. Ltd. BRE]

Acquisition of a right-of-use asset 3 HH B ¥ 3 In] IE K A% i 55 H
and a lease liability for renting a B A B ([ 1E KRG

premise from CPQS Realty and
Development Co., Ltd. (“CPQS
Realty”)*

7 5 M 7 | ) WAL — T P e
<95
Fe L F R
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(vii)

(xii)

2020 to 30

November 2020

e
gy
—~HRE

A

= H R

US$’000
HIT T T

554

10,172

8,849

9,195

Year ended

31 December
2019

BE

Sy IS
+ZA=+—H
1R 47 %

US$’000
FoToC

601

1,363

6,106

9,510

9,862

4,968

19,015
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.

b E B E R 2

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(e)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Prices of goods sold to related parties were determined with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the goods. The
procedures to determine the prices of products sold to related
parties are the same as those used to determine the prices of
products supplied to independent third parties customers. The
selling prices to related parties shall be no more favourable
than those made available to CTI Group’s customers which

are independent third parties.

Price of goods purchased from related parties were determined
on the basis of arm’s length negotiations taking into account
the prevailing market prices. The methods and procedures
to determine the prices of goods purchased from related
parties are the same as those used to determine the prices of
goods purchased from independent third party suppliers. The
purchase prices from related parties shall be no less favourable
than those made available to CTI Group from suppliers which

are independent third parties.

The rental income related to the lease and/or use of relevant
non-feed related fixed assets located in the PRC by HOEL and
its related entities, which was determined by reference to the
depreciation charge of the relevant assets and applicable tax

costs incurred by CTI Group.

The rental expense was determined by reference to the
depreciation charge of the relevant assets and applicable tax

costs incurred by the related companies.

The royalty fee was charged at 0.2% of the net sale value of
fresh-food products and 0.4% of the net sale value of cooked-

food products sold.

SAP system license and maintenance service fee paid to
CPF IT comprises of maintenance service fee for providing
maintenance services (including regular updates) of the SAP

system.

SAP implementation service fee of US$14,000 (2019:
US$30,000) and SAP technical service fee of US$540,000
(2019: US$571,000) for providing ongoing training and
technical assistance services were paid to Shanghai Zheng

Yuan.
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 3] R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

41

(e)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of the
incurred construction cost of production facilities of CTI

Group’s food processing plants located in the PRC.

The interest income was charged on trade receivable balances
due from related companies at rates determined by CTI Group

with reference to market practice.

The equipment procurement and installation fee at the new
or replacement feedmill production facilities was paid to
Shanghai Zheng Cheng.

In November 2019, CTI Group acquired the entire
interest in Hainan CT from CTAI. The consideration of
RMB69,470,000 (equivalent to approximately US$9,862,000)
was fully settled as at 31 December 2019. The transaction was

accounted for as an asset acquisition.

In December 2019, CTI Group acquired the entire interest in
CP Beihai from CPF. The consideration of RMB35,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$4,968,000) was fully settled
in March 2020. The transaction was accounted for as a

business combination of entity under common control.

In December 2019, CTI Group acquired 49.33%, 48.14%
and 2.53% interest in Jilin Deda from Chia Tai (China)
Agro-Industrial Ltd., Chia Tai Song Liao Co., Ltd. and
Mass Success Enterprises Ltd. respectively. Out of the
total consideration of RMB133,950,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$19,015,000), RMB119,509,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$17,316,000) has been settled at this
report date. Details of business combination is set out in note

42 to the financial statements.

Hainan CT, CP Beihai and Jilin Deda are principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of animal feed products in the
PRC.

n

41
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(e)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(continued)

In January 2020, CTI Group acquired a 70% interest
in Lianyungang CT from Chia Tai Lianyungang Co.
Ltd. for a consideration of RMB66,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$9,700,000). The consideration
of RMB61,768,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$8,849,000), being adjusted with the dividend paid by
Lianyungang CT between agreement date and transaction
completion date according to the terms set out in the
agreement, was fully settled in March 2020. The transaction
was accounted for as a business combination of entity under

common control.

Lianyungang CT is principally engaged in the manufacture

and sale of animal feed products in the PRC.

In April 2020, CTI acquired a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for renting a premise for office premise from CPQS

Realty.

These related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

These related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, but were exempt from the disclosure and

shareholders’ approval requirements due to their size.

These related party transactions also constitute connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B A% 8RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
42 BUSINESS COMBINATION 42 EBEH
In December 2019, CTI Group acquired 100% interest R —FEFZH > ERBEEBERIEKR
in Jilin Deda Feed Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Deda”) from Chia Tai (PR BHRARAR - IERMERRAR &
(China) Agro-Industrial Ltd., Chia Tai Sung Liao Co., Ltd. KB EERRAFR DB SNRE L AR
and Mass Success Enterprises Ltd., at a cash consideration £%3,395.08 (R 491,923. 78 370 ) W7
of RMB133,950,000 (equivalent to approximately AR AR R PR A 7] (175 AR AR K 1 2 100% 8%
US$19,237,000). Jilin Deda is principally engaged in the WE o 35 AR R 3 2 5 b ] 22 8 mh i AR R o
manufacture and sale of animal feed in the PRC.
43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43 HEEE
Guarantees were given by certain subsidiaries in the Group ANEBETFHBATEFREB ST E=H%
to financial institutions in the PRC for certain indebtedness B2 8 TEB M5 TR At R o s 42
of independent third party customers of the Group. In the 6 Vo B S 3 A S A A R B A R 2 R
case of financial guarantees provided which exceed the 2 55 ] B v 2 B 1R BRI 5% 4 B RS A
net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries, our maximum ZHEE WHBENBAR R 24+
contingent liabilities are limited to the net asset value of these H=1+—HZBEEH 52215883550 (=
subsidiaries. The net asset value of the relevant subsidiaries F—JUE £ 2,12098F50) - KEEPB -F
as at 31 December 2020 was US$22,158,000 (2019: —EZFET A=t HABEEZESER KA
US$21,209,000). The contingent liabilities of the Group AfE51,016. 183550 (ZF—Ju4E : 1,054.19
in respect of such guarantees as at 31 December 2020 were FKIL) °
US$10,161,000 (2019: US$10,541,000).
44 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 44 REHELTH
As lessor EREAA
The Group leases its investment properties under operating REEBEREHEZHEHHELREYE
lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated with original Bk 8 Z A 2 1 23R R % o AL ER AT
terms ranging from 1 to 3 years. Rental income recognised PR 2 B WA &3038 K8 (ZF—JL
by the Group during the year was US$303,000 (2019: AR 128.685300) (RES) » FEE R M B #H
US$1,286,000) (restated), details of which are included in FZMEETN B ER -
note 7 to the financial statements.
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments to be MR _ZEL_H=Z+—H » REFRR
received by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable A 1] [ BELAH P 22 R B R s T B ORI
operating leases with its tenants are as follows: BIMEREWT :
2020 2019
ZRORE Sy | IS
US$’000 US$’000
E T a7 E e n
Within one year —4E N 190 548
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FoBEHF (BIEERMAE) 1 520
After five years TAEDIE - 210
191 1,278
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B 7% 3R 3R M =
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45 BEREE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as (a) AREFEPBREPRZ EARRBEWMT

at the end of the reporting period:

2020 2019
SECEE SENE
US$’000 US$’000

Contracted, but not provided for:

F 7 T 70 FKL Tt

T A > H WG AR 1 -

Buildings Mg 24,530 120,750
Plant and machinery TR I e e 2 54,100 99,272
78,630 220,022

Note: Wit

Included in the Group’s capital commitment of buildings and plant and
machinery and as at 31 December 2020 are amounts of US$2,121,000
(2019: US$9,317,000) and US$19,203,000 (2019: US$30,206,000),

respectively, contracted but not provided for, to related companies.

AEFEP _F_FEFT A=+ —HA MBS
B B b 28 T 2 B A 7R M A A4 0 s B 212.1
HEIL (ZF—JUE - 931783 58) K1,920.3#
K0 (= —JUAE ¢ 3,020.685 3¢ 1) B B 8 2 =)
CEEA o (H AR 1 Y 3 2 AR AR A o

(b)  As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s share of (b) Mo _RE+T+H=+—H » X4

capital commitments, contracted but not provided
for, of associates amounted to US$88,914,000 (2019:

US$8,677,000).

] A B N ] 2 BB A AH M R A I
WAl 2 B AR E 8,891 .4 35 5T (-
B—JLE : 8677 HEIE) o
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B A% 8RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &
46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 BEXRS
(a) The continuing operations of the Group had the (a) AR ) 2 F A 48 SR A 9 4 B
following transactions with related parties during the BMANLFEUTHRS :
year:
2020 2019
SEBOEE SR
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it By an FoLFo
(Restated)
(R EF)
Sales of goods to: SHEEES T - (1)
HOEL and its related entities” HOEL % H: B 2 4> 2%~ 340,244 225,110
ITOCHU and its entities”® 7 T RE B T A S 3,215 2,543
Other related entities with same BLCPGA H ] B S 2.
shareholdering structure as CPG JL At B £ 3 1,666 4,819
Purchases of goods from: WHEAENE : (ii)
HOEL and its related entities” HOEL % H: B # 4> 2%~ 275,586 139,969
CTEI and its subsidiaries® CTEL K H: [} & A w]- 734 -
ITOCHU and its entities® A7 TR 8 T HC R A 2,004 4,422
Associate IR /A 2,111 1,379
Other related entities with same BLCPGA H ] B 2 2.
shareholdering structure as CPG JL At B 2 A 3 4,455 22,443
Rental income received and receivable FEHOEL K H 7 2 4 3 BE UL (iii)
from HOEL and its related entities" FekzHE kA" 334 230
Rental expenses paid and payable to: AT X AT HEXH T : (iv)
HOEL and its related entities" HOEL % H: i 2 4> 2% 925 809
Other related entities with same BLCPGA H ) B 2 b 2.
shareholdering structure as CPG JHfth B LA 2 298 232
Royalty fee to CPG* I # Y CPG* (v) 50,971 41,729
Royalty fee to CTAI* T ETIEREW (vi) 1,753 1,416
SAP system license and maintenance  SAPZ %t #F 7 w5 M 4 15 i £
service fee paid to CPF IT" MR % % ¥ CPF IT" (vii) 245 245
SAP technical service fee to SAPH: il Ik % & 7 L ifg e "
Shanghai Zheng Yuan” (viii) 548 216
Installation and construction fee to: ZHERTHEERE T (ix)
KSP Vietnam Co., Ltd. KSP Vietnam Co., Ltd.
(“KSP Vietnam”)* ([KSP#irg )" 16,730 32,944
CSCEC-CP Science & Technology g IE KR A R A
Co., Ltd. (“CSCEC-CP”)" (TP gIER]D " 2,457 -
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N

(a) (continued)

Project management fee to Chia
Tai Handing Modern Agricultural
Technology Co., Ltd.”

Acquisition of subsidiaries”:
Zhangzhou C.P. Chia Tai
Aquaculture Co., Ltd. (“CP

% B B F R & 78

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 46 REEXRS (&)

(a)
JHH BT IE RSB
BEREARA R
AL s o ) 2 )

7] CPFH i 388 b W 1E K
KREFRAFR ([ KEE

Zhangzhou”) from CPF 1)
C. P. Aquaculture (Dongfang) Co., 7 CPFC I b K 2
Ltd. (“CP Dongfang”) from CPF (R J7) A BRA A
(I MRy 1)

C. P. Aquaculture (Zhangjiang) Co., 7 CPFC I b K 2

Ltd. (“CP Zhanjiang”) from CPF

Acquisition of 43 entities
from CTAI

Notes:

(1) A B2 ]
(b ¥eiear )
I 1E K # 4K
Wl 43 % 2 7]

(#0)

Note
A

(xi)

(1)

Prices of goods sold to related parties were determined with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the goods in
respective local markets. The procedures to determine the
prices of products sold to related parties are the same as
those used to determine the prices of products supplied to
independent third parties customers. The selling prices to
related parties shall be no more favourable than those made
available to the Group’s customers which are independent

third parties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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2020 2019
ZRIFE ZELE
US$’000 US$’000
E ) an FEoToC
(Restated)

(HEH])

2,455 244
18,321 —
32,804 -
9,288 -
4,311,520 —

1) N 9 B o B (R 4T B
v g AR R o A 1) B
N 8 8 o s o B AT A R X R ) B
LS =05 % 5 P M A i B A T —
B o 16 B 2\ 5 4 A AN
ARG 45 T L =05 R P A
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46

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Price of goods purchased from related parties were determined
on the basis of arm’s length negotiations taking into account
the prevailing market prices in respective local markets. The
methods and procedures to determine the prices of goods
purchased from related parties are the same as those used to
determine the prices of goods purchased from independent
third party suppliers. The purchase prices from related parties
shall be no less favourable than those made available to the

Group from suppliers which are independent third parties.

The rental income comprises of (i) US$102,000 (2019: nil)
related to the lease and/or use of fixed assets located in the
PRC by HOEL and its related entities, which was determined
by reference to the depreciation charge of the relevant
assets and applicable tax costs incurred by the Group, and
(ii) US$232,000 (2019: US$230,000) related to the lease of
certain properties of the Group in Hong Kong to other related
companies at rates determined by the Group with reference to

market rates.

The rental expense was determined by reference to the
depreciation charge of the relevant assets and applicable tax

costs incurred by the related companies.

The royalty fee was charged at 1.5% of the net revenue from
sale of goods by CPVC.

The royalty fee was charged at 0.2% of the net sale value
of fresh-food products and 0.4% of the net sale value of
cooked-food products sold by the subsidiaries of CP China, a
subsidiary of the Group.

SAP system license and maintenance service fee paid to CPF
IT comprises of maintenance, implementation and technical

assistance fee of US$245,000 (2019: US$245,000) by CPVC.

SAP implementation service fee of US$297,000 (2019:
US$54,000) and SAP technical service fee of US$251,000
(2019: US$162,000) for providing ongoing training and
technical assistance services were paid to Shanghai Zheng
Yuan by CP China and its subsidiaries.

The installation and construction fee for carrying out
construction works and to procure and install equipment was
paid to KSP Vietnam by CPVC and to CSCEC-CP by CP

Zhanjiang respectively.

n

46
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BEXS (&)

(a)

(%10

Mfatk o (4F)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

AR I LN R 1 S RO T 45 T R
FUVHE 7 #6875 B TR W 7S A Bl B b 17 355 1
T AL A AE o FH R EE 1 A 2N 4R
S A 08 2 N 5 = 7 5% R 1 T I
VAR SRR o D B 20\ o B 0 2
AETAS S AN I AR 4R I8 T 438 0 S 58 = 0 %
RE i R i 2 AR o

AL WA B FE () BB B 1028 K8 (2
FT—JUE ) 2 B HHOEL K 3 B
AT RS JIRR IR
A 45 S 5 AT T 0 B 2 BT
AR R AR T € - R (i) HAAR 25233
BRI (ZFE—UE 308K ZH
BAAS S 1 AL T AR B W T 1
MBI A W 2 M4 > AL E B E N B
&t -

L4 32 Y 775 AL e ) AT I P AT
R AR A A B SR AR I S

WAL % 595 E CPVCHE & 8 7 b 2 3 I
AP1.5%5E 5

#F A2 T35 H CP China (AR M #— K
o J5 2 W) ) B ) A S R R A
Z B 00 2% Rom T A i 2 89
E#90.4%jt 57 o

CPF 1T A ISAPR %8 iF 7l 8 K Ak &
PR 5 2 40 65 HCPVCAE AT # Ak 6 B
A~ B AN B9 b By #2458 300 (2
B JUEE 2458 3K00) o

CP China 8% B8 2 5] 1) i 1E B 52 A
SAPE i It # #29.78 K8 (ZF —
AR 15 4 FE50) RSAPEG IR 2515
EI6 (TR IR 16.283550) KR
B R 25T % S B 0 5 Bl PR o

CPVCIKSP# B B b e de I 4 71 1iy o
HEIE R AR 285 T TR e s LR
% TR BRI A B R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(x)

(xi)

The project management fee was charged at 3.0% of the
incurred construction cost of production facilities of the

Group’s food processing plants located in the PRC.

In April 2020, the Group acquired the entire interest in CP
Zhangzhou from CPF. Consideration of RMB128,900,000
(equivalent to approximately US$18,321,000) was fully
settled as at 31 December 2020. The transaction was
accounted for as a business combination of entity under

common control.

In May 2020, the Group acquired the entire interest in CP
Dongfang from CPF. Consideration of RMB230,800,000
(equivalent to approximately US$32,804,000) was fully
settled as at 31 December 2020. The transaction was
accounted for as a business combination of entity under

common control.

In June 2020, the Group acquired the entire interest in CP
Zhanjiang from CPF. Consideration of RMB65,350,000
(equivalent to approximately US$9,288,000) was fully settled
as at 31 December 2020. The transaction was accounted for as

a business combination of entity under common control.

CP Zhangzhou, CP Dongfang and CP Zhanjiang (upon
commencement of production) are principally engaged in the

production and sale of shrimp fry in the PRC.

These related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

These related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, but were exempt from the disclosure and

shareholders’ approval requirements due to their size.

These related party transactions also constitute connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

46
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REXZ (&)
() (%)
Wik : (40

(x) BERCReSis GLE Y NS P/l A
PR 14 2 E R L 2 A T S AR
3.0%wH o

(xi) W R IRAENH > AR GECPF
FOA b Wi Z 2B e B o AR 2 N R
T 142,800 CFH 484 491,832,185 58 8)
WMoRZRET DA =S H BB
BT o WA I W R R SR B A 0 o

NIRRT A > AR EAECPEYU
R DRSO 2 AR RE - R AR
W 2453,080 8 (FH % 2 £93,280.4 8 5 70)
RoFFE+A=1+—HEBEA
B o WAL Gy Ry LI R S S o

PR TRAEN A AR MR CPRE
R DRI Z 2 AP RE o AR
6,535% (FAZ A #1928 8 3£ 08) It =&
ZREFZAZT - H OB - %
R 5 ke Fe ] el NI SEH A o

i - D ERUT B b BT R 4
A HORS ) S SR 2 A o I A
HYR -

# % 4 BN A B A L i R SR
T PUATE N SE BB AL 5 o

A R F YN RN 3 Y
T VUAT R R R 5 H %
S22 Ty PR KL LA G0 0 8 A e SR o

# % 4 B\ 3 B A A e L T B 5
T IYATE A RE R BHRE 5 o

201



C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3] 3R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

46 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 46 REEXRS (&)

(b) Balances with related parties (b) BB N 22 R R
Details of the Group’s balances with joint ventures, FRALEHEAGENE - FHEARK
associates and related companies included in trade A L oy ) 22 TR O R B S R B IR
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other SRR YR S AR AR ~ R4 St HE
receivables, trade payables and other payables and WOk~ A B 5 VR sk T It JE ) B
accruals are disclosed in notes 28(c), 29(a), 31 and R % TR © 4 B R N % ik
32(b) to the financial statements, respectively. Fif5E28(c) » 29(a) » 31 %32(b) N °
(c) Compensation of key management personnel who are (c) AEEFEEAR (P AESR) ZH
also directors of the Group: 1
2020 2019
TRTRE ZEUE
US$’000 US$’000

F 7 T 70 FL Tt

Short-term employee benefits J 391 B ) 2,942 3,259
47 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 47 SWMIEDE

Other than the unlisted and listed equity investments being 5% 3 5] i A BA T R R M BE 25 I w4 R s R 2R
classified as equity investments at fair value through other WERARBEEBH M2 HIESF 2k R
comprehensive income as disclosed in note 25 to the financial T B b T R 25 38 T A i A B s i 2 B s
statements and the forward exchange contracts and interest 29 ~ 32 K364 Wl 4 38 ks A5 A 4 il T HEL Y 2
rate swap contracts being classified as derivative financial HME A R R M R A FAD » A R R
instruments as disclosed in notes 29, 32 and 36, all financial L2 —NE+H=+—H > XEFZF
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and B4 E i N B E DL AR IR 2 e g
2019 were financial assets and liabilities stated at amortised EMRERE -

cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

48 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 48 S£RMIEMAREE

INSTRUMENTS
Fair value hierarchy DAEZ R
Fair value measurement categorised into
2 feffi gt Z 40 4
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
W T =N k]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FrLTrxr FxTrx HFrTrt FrTrx
As at 31 December 2020 RORORETA=Z+—H
Recurring fair value measurement 38 3]k 2 fo 4 5 &
Financial liabilities: SRl fifd
Derivative financial instruments: MeEemITH:
— Forward exchange and interest — 35 1] AP I % ) 2R i 1]
rate swap contracts, included BrIA] o A B A
in other payables and accruals MRk R R # A - 10,824 - 10,824
— Forward exchange and interest — 35 1] AP I % ) 2R i 1]
rate swap contracts, included A s AR H A
in other non-current I B A A
liabilities - 1,266 - 1,266
As at 31 December 2019 R+ _H=+—H
Recurring fair value measurement ¥ 8]k 2 s 51 &
Financial assets: S b & B
Equity investments measured at HE 25 B ¥ AL R
FVOCI (non-recycling): 408 L b, 2 T W 25 B R O W)
TRER EHAE) :
— Listed ] 17,206 - - 17,206

Derivative financial instruments: MiAEmTH:
— Forward exchange and interest — 3 A B e A R i ] A

rate swap contracts, included s AL A R TE AT IR K - %

in prepayments, deposits and G T Al JE Wk

other receivables - 359 - 359
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there BREREER_Z-NET A=
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2. HIR4EREWN > WS — K58 0 2 M

fzo
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48

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

There is no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year
ended 31 December 2020. The movement during the year
ended 31 December 2019 in the balance of these Level 3 fair

value measurements is as follows:

Financial assets:

Other financial assets — unlisted:
At 1 January 2019

Disposal

Exchange realignment

A

48 EWMIAEMNRAAEFE (&)

BREZZRELH=ZHIEEER
S S A S B8 = A0 o R E R JUAE
A = H RS NS = A0 A e

BEHBEETNT
31 December
2019
ey I
+=H=+—H
US$’000
FEo T T
L E

oAt 4 i B -k B -
W _FE—NF—H—H 1,076
8 (1,096)
[ B8, 7 % 20

At 31 December 2019

BREF-AEFZH=1H -

The fair value of the forward exchange contracts and interest
rate swap contracts in Level 2 is determined by the forward
rates quoted by the same banks for the same delivery dates of
the contracts and the market valuation quoted by the same
banks at the end of the reporting period, respectively.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

9 AR ) e ) 3 i ) IR 5 A 2
O FAE TS 53 B 2 [ — SR ERAT A e 7 391 R 14 [
B0 5 I P i v 2 0 R R B Y 5 B M A

7 4R [ 2 TR T P o ST R e R 0 % A
B ] Z A o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
N B A R 2

AND POLICIES

The Group has exposure to the following risk:

(a)

7

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R M BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥
MR EES S RBEE
A 45 i 5 DL R
(a) EB=ERK

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group
monitors interest rate movements and determines
appropriate hedging activities when necessary. The
Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts
to manage its interest rate exposure for the floating
interest rate borrowings. The Group’s exposure to
market risk arising from changes in interest rates in
respect of cash and cash equivalents is considered
relatively minimal.

The following tables set out the carrying amounts of
the Group’s bank borrowings and corporate bond as
at the end of the reporting period that are exposed to
interest rate risk:

2SR [0 T 2 3 R o B A A 2 1
ZARH AT o AR P B e B R
05 B IR 2 B0 A G ) o ACSR
CURT 2 SR 45 0 7] LA B L 7 B A
A KA A 3R B o A5 1 T L R A
B iy 51 BB 4 X Bl 4 S AE Y 2 i 5
I 58 ) A

PATF 7 AC SR 7 e R - SRAT A K
T A 08 25 75 T 35 0 OG0 o 1 4 M T
fi > RFIWMT

2020 2019
RO ZE I
Carrying  Effective Carrying Effective
amount interest rate amount interest rate
YIRS WRmEfE  ARRE
US$°000 % US$’000 %
F#ICFic FoLFoo
Fixed rate denominated in: ] 2 A R I DL T & W A FLA
RMB AR 123,259 4.88 310,789 4.97
US$ X0 12,821 0.96 50,256 3.18
136,080 361,045
Floating rate denominated in: ¥F BRI %P T & & HAL
Us$ ESn 750,981 2.17 621,823 5.01
RMB AR 101,959 5.15 408,411 4.91
VND R 146,907 3.74 343,530 6.38
999,847 1,373,764
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49 BXERKEESSREE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, through

(a) RB=EmEk(H)

T 2 W B A R BT A KA A A
REGHT > ACH B BRI I B 25

the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the V4 R Rt (O b B WA 5 ) -
Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other

variables held constant):

US$
US$
RMB
RMB
VND
VND

ESw
ESw
N
N
L P )
B )

2020 2019

SROBE S

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit after  profit after tax
basis points  tax and equity and equity

B B¢ 1% di e 5 1% ¥ )
B 3 3 B b 5 3 m Lo HE 25 3 Jm

/CBA) /(WA S (A)
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E 5y Ve T n
100 (7,163) (5,785)
(100) 7,163 5,785

100 (765) (3,063)
(100) 765 3,063

100 (1,175) (2,748)

(100) 1,175 2,748
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E - -4+ _HA=+—H L4 ¥

Bt % L B TR T 8 I R ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks and financial institutions. This cash
management policy limits the Group’s exposure to
concentration of credit risk. Impairment on cash and
deposits has been measured on a 12-month expected
loss basis. The Group considers that its cash and
deposits have minimal credit risk based on the external
credit ratings of the counterparties (i.e. banks and
financial institutions where cash and deposits are
placed).

A significant portion of the Group’s sales are made
to customers in the agricultural industry and, as such,
the Group is directly affected by the well-being of
that industry. However, the credit risk associated with
trade receivables is considered relatively low due to
the Group’s large customer base and its geographical
dispersion. The Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. Gross
carrying amount of trade receivables of US$16,718,000
(2019: US$10,838,000) were supported by guarantee
issued by bank provided by customers as at 31
December 2020. The Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs for trade receivables,
using a provision matrix that based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. For details of the Group’s credit risk
exposure on trade receivables, please refer to note
28(b) to the financial statements. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group
as set out in note 43, the Group does not provide other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 43. The Group held assets
of US$1,615,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
US$537,000) as pledge for the guarantees granted
to independent third party customers. The Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the ECLs
allowance determined for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default.
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(b)

FERAR

AC K T WK T2 B RAT S 4 B A7
OB A7 AR o b IH B 445 B R S
&7 A B R h 2wl o Bl K
AR WA #1248 A B YIS B 4R
Al o BRI A IBOB B AR AR A SR AT A0
<5 B G 1) 1T AR B RE A > AR IR
Ty LB B T A7 5K 0 A5 P L A, o

AREEZHERTHETRERF
P Otk A 4 ] R BB 2 AT R
BB o R N AREEERRAE
R B B R AR A ] Hb [ > A T
JAE W M T 2 £ D AT ) S b A o AR
B2 [ Ry A M PR AL R P X BRI -
N _FFE+_H=+—H > L
1,671.8# F 6 (ZF —Ju4 : 1,083.8
W SEI0) Z ME W B By W sk 48 MR i i
PR Z AT R BT 4% - AR M
TR 1% 5 2 M i B2 ) IR sk 1ol
5 B G - 0 R B 5 R
B RHEEA A > MR AR E W
BUBEME R R AR BR B T R o
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ZFAE Y R 2 R A B D, e ) T R
ZH BB BAGFRRBA SR Z £
%Eo

I T A B 75 0 Y k43 P9 48 1) T 4
B2 WA F G DR AL > AR S 1 N 3 A R AL
Al A5 R R Ao A 42 T 4 B LB o
WA > A BB R BT
T A5 B R B O A M R 43 B i o AR
Mp 2 RE+ A= —H A
SEAE 05 % P S OR T B 2 Bk A
F161.58 K0 (ZF—JUF 1 53. 78 3%
JG) o AR 55 [ i VRN A 4 B S 1R 8
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49

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

RMB and VND are not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions are
conducted with reference to the exchange rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China and banks in Vietnam,
respectively. Payments for imported materials and
remittance of earnings out of mainland China and
Vietnam are subject to the availability of foreign

currencies.

The products of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates operating in mainland
China and Vietnam are sold primarily in RMB and
VND, respectively. Revenues and profits are thus
predominantly denominated in RMB and VND. For
certain subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
funds denominated in RMB and VND may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported
materials and equipment.

Should RMB and VND appreciate/depreciate against
the US$, it may increase/reduce the foreign currency
equivalent of such earnings available for distribution by
these subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the
Company.

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in
mainland China and Vietnam and most transactions
are conducted in RMB and VND. The Group has
entered into forward exchange contracts to manage its
foreign exchange risk.

A
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AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at

the end of the reporting period to a possible change in
RMB and VND exchange rates (with all other variables
held constant) of the Group’s profit before tax and

equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries).

(c) SMERBR ()

Bt % L B TR T 8 I R ()

T 2 B A At 53 S R S B 1R L
T o A SR 2 B A Al i R % R AR (P
SR [0 A 8 B B i 2 ) 2 B R S
B Z o AR5 ) T R A
B T 0L g G R T RE A 2 A 2
BUBFRE - % SF A BAG SEAh

The analysis excludes differences that would result from ST B S AR AR ] 2 B A W R
the translation of the financial statement of foreign AR A E R .
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
Appreciation/ Increase/ Increase/
(depreciation) in (decrease) in (decrease)
RMB or VND  profit before tax in equity
N B gl b v JE B % i i HE 43
FHE Q) Bm/ (WA B (8
US$’000 US$’000
FLF FILF
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZHET A
Zt—HIEEE
If US$ weakens against RMB i o A\ R R {H 3% 113 20
If US$ strengthens against RMB  fi 3€ 0 A\ R ¥ FHE (3%) (113) (20)
If US$ weakens against VND i 36 70 9 7 ) 2 {H 3% 72 57
If US$ strengthens against VND {3 70 i 8 i J& FH{ (3%) (72) (57)
Appreciation/ Increase/ Increase/
(depreciation) in (decrease) in (decrease)
RMB or VND  profit before tax in equity
NG T W 5 i i ) e
FHE,/ (2 fE) B, (W) K, (W)
US$’000 US$’000
FEx T FIL T
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z - hET2H
=t —HIEE
If US$ weakens against RMB fiE e \ R4 3% (839) (868)
If US$ strengthens against RMB EM YN SR (3%) 839 868
If US$ weakens against VND ik 2 70 WS B g JE W A 3% 221 176
If US$ strengthens against VND Ay 5 70 95 W 7 FE T (3%) (221) (176)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
—E2 -2 R

209



210

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% R & MY &

C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
ho#® B A R 2 A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E ~F - FE+_H=+—H L4 &

49

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49

AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

(d)

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between

funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2020

Within 1 year

B 7 R B B IR D R BUR (48D

REE T E R

A ) 10757598 5 B8
Ak o A 5 A B 2 )
GRER

ACER B A B S U 2 B

SR D O A 2 4 B il 4l I SRAT A
VUM AT SE B & oK

TRMAR R AR Z BN > AR
VR AR 4 £ A0 AR U Bk L A B 5 L

REFZEEFZH=1—H

or on demand 1to5 years  Over 5 years Total
HER K
Bk — 4 —EHE B B
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FwFI #i T FFr FiFr
Trade and bills payables JE A5 5 IRk R 391,224 - - 391,224
Other payables and accruals JoAl R 1 ek R AR 393,464 - - 393,464
Lease liabilities MEAH 87,003 307,421 418,570 812,994
Bank borrowings SRAT 5 % 306,307 464,520 365,100 1,135,927
Estimated interests on bank st SRAT A R B
borrowings 27,900 67,711 31,144 126,755
Guarantee issued in respect RELHEZT P AT R
of certain indebtedness of R Z R (W 743)
independent third party customers
(note 43) 10,161 - - 10,161
1,216,059 839,652 814,814 2,870,525
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019

(d)

Within 1 year

REBETRERE (&)
REF-NEHZA=Z+—H

or on demand 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
HE R
R4 —Fh4E LA A
US$000 US$’000 US$’000 US$000
FrTrx FrTrx FrTrx FIL T
Trade and bills payables JE A8 B MR ok T 446,116 - - 446,116
Other payables and accruals HiEMEZRFERER 405,970 - - 405,970
Lease liabilities M 84,697 300,281 423,155 808,133
Bank borrowings PATHE 1,174,796 531,410 16,770 1,722,976
Corporate bond EEF - 11,833 - 11,833
Estimated interests on bank R SRAT 1S 2 B,
borrowings 59,197 48,441 14,919 122,557
Estimated interests on corporate bond it & £ % # & 398 414 - 812
Guarantee issued in respect of certain A IEZHEFZ
indebtedness of independent third HTEBGREZER
party customers (note 43) (Hit43) 10,541 - - 10,541
2,181,715 892,379 454,844 3,528,938
() Capital management (e) EXERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital A4 A5 P A B R R A DR R AR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49

AND POLICIES (continued)

B 7 R B B IR D R BUR (48D

(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EXEHE(E)
The Group monitors its capital structure using a A 45 B ) ) 0 B L R B R L R
number of financial ratios. A key ratio is the net debt ZeM o o — I R BN R FE R
to equity ratio, which is total bank borrowings and it b > BIVERAT A K B A SR 25 AR A
corporate bond less cash and deposits divided by total MBS RAF R BRI RE S A - AER
equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the net debt 0 2 TSR % A o 0 5 R A L R
to equity ratio at reasonable level. Capital represents BUKHE o B AR TG W] 43 S 45 A A W B
the equity attributable to owners of the Company. The NZHERR o O 9 OR 2 v AR 5 B 2
net debt to equity ratios as at the end of the reporting EWTF :
periods were as follows:
2020 2019
SECEE SR AK
Note US$’000 US$’000
At ik FIL T FIL T T
Total bank borrowings and SRATRE R K
corporate bond i SR 2 ML 33, 34 1,135,927 1,734,809
Less: Pledged deposits W SR K 30 (11,896) (17,699)
Time deposits with maturity FHHBEBR=MA Z
over three months & W47 K 30 (1,605) (2,293)
Cash and cash equivalents Ble KBS HEY 30 (535,891) (422,364)
Net debt TR 586,535 1,292,453
Total equity HE 25 58 %1 4,032,710 1,967,038
Net debt to equity ratio A RE AR PR 0.15 0.66
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 50 AN EH BT ER
THE COMPANY
2020 2019
e
US$’000 US$’000
i E e n
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I B K
Property, plant and equipment L E BN Y& 165 220
Interests in subsidiaries T B e 2 ) R 25 1,825,949 1,825,949
Total non-current assets #8 LR B A 1,826,114 1,826,169
CURRENT ASSETS i B R
Due from subsidiaries JEE W BOFT D A )k e 418,724 370,123
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — TEATHR K ~ $% 4 S 3 b g W M 3k 319 344
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KBS EY 37,865 5,484
Total current assets H B R 456,908 375,951
CURRENT LIABILITIES it B £
Other payables and accruals G At I8 A i T % T 4 3,100 3,258
Bank borrowings SRATAE K 12,821 289,430
Total current liabilities £ B £ 15,921 292,688
NET CURRENT ASSETS U )& R 440,987 83,263
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT RO RO B AR
LIABILITIES 2,267,101 1,909,432
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik B £
Bank borrowings SRAT A 595,399 209,277
Other non-current liabilities oAt I3 B & 797 801
Total non-current liabilities #8JE R B A1 596,196 210,078
NET ASSETS B 1,670,905 1,699,354
EQUITY HE 25
Issued capital EE AT A 253,329 253,329
Reserves (note) it fh (M) 1,170,742 1,368,078
Proposed final dividend itz S SS 246,834 77,947
TOTAL EQUITY HE it 48 30 1,670,905 1,699,354
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C. P. POKPHAND CO. LTD.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 50 AQFHHBMRRR (K
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: Mt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAT Z RN T
Share
premium  Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
Bepriaa ik EHERKR  ROEAE k]
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000
M it FILTFIT FETLTFIT FLF T FILFL

At 1 January 2019 RoE—JuE—H—H 10,740 979,382 359,382 1,349,504
Profit for the year and total AR ) S 2 T WA 2 4

comprehensive income for the year - - 122,503 122,503
2019 interim dividend ZE R IREE 13 - (25,982) - (25,982)
2019 final dividend proposed TRV HER RS 13 - (77,947) - (77,947)
At 31 December 2019 and REZ-NhETA=Z1T—HRK

1 January 2020 “ERORE-H—H 10,740 875,453 481,885 1,368,078
Profit for the year and total AR A i A

comprehensive income for the year 2 i W B AR - - 172,915 172,915
Special dividend 5 7 e S 13 - (25,983) - (25,983)
2020 interim dividend SERIREPHIRL 13 - (97,434) - (97,434)
2020 final dividend proposed TR CREHERIIBS 13 - (246,834) - (246,834)
At 31 December 2020 NoF_FE+-H=1+—H 10,740 505,202 654,800 1,170,742

=

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 51 HHETF

The comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive

income has been presented as if the operations discontinued

during the year had been discontinued at the beginning of

prior year (note 41).
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